
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE
OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME
TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2016 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of information pertaining to the
Southern Gila County Economic Development
Corporation's grant award from the United
States Department of Agriculture to conduct a
food hub feasibility study.  (Karalea Cox)

Presented

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to repeal the
previously adopted Gila County Building Code
Ordinance No. 2014-03 and any other
previously adopted Building Code Ordinances
for unincorporated areas of Gila County; and,
adopt Ordinance No. 2016-03, the Building
Code Ordinance for Unincorporated Areas of
Gila County Arizona.  (Scott Buzan)

Continued

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Supervisors' Annual Property Tax
Sale/Auction for the sale of real property
deeded to the State of Arizona by Treasurer's
Deed in the year 2016.  (Michael
Pastor/Marian Sheppard)

Conducted



 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Service Agreement No. 110916-1 between the
Gila County Community Services Division,
Housing Services, and Rodriguez
Constructions, Inc. for Major Rehabilitation
Project No. HH#9908, whereby Rodriguez
Constructions, Inc. will provide housing
rehabilitation services to a single family
household unit located in Payson, Arizona, for
a fee of $57,250 with all work to be completed
by June 30, 2017.  (James Menlove/Malissa
Buzan)

Approved

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a
Memorandum of Understanding between the
County of Gila and the Gila County Superior
Court for the provision of information
technology support to the Courts Group. 
(Kelly Riggs)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to elect a
Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the Board of
Supervisors (BOS), which will become effective
immediately after the BOS meeting on
December 6, 2016.  (Tommie Martin)

Elected

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of the Rental Housing Bridge Approved



A.   Approval of the Rental Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out
Version between Health Choice Integrated
Care, LLC and Gila County DBA Gila County
Public Housing Authority, which will allocate
funds in the amount of $19,200 to be used to
help Gila County residents who meet the
program qualifications for the period of July 1,
2016, through June 30, 2017.

Approved

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 14 to an
Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income
Weatherization Program Implementation
between the Gila County Division of
Community Services and Arizona Public
Service Company extending the term of the
agreement to December 31, 2017, with a not
to exceed amount of $106,429 for calendar
year 2017 and to make some other minor
changes.   

Approved

 

C.   Acceptance of a grant award from the Arizona
Companion Animal Spay and Neuter
Committee in the amount of $5,000 that will
be used to expand Gila County's discounted
spay/neuter services in Gila County for a
period of one year.

Accepted

 

D.   Authorization of the Chairman's signature on
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 091216
between Gila County and the Town of Payson
whereby Gila County will provide an economic
development grant in an amount not to exceed
$8,500 to the Town of Payson to begin phase I
of the grading and landscaping for the
American Gulch Project as approved by the
Board of Supervisors at its September 6,
2016, meeting.

Authorized

 



 

E.   Approval of Professional Services Contract
No. 071014-2 with the Bose Public Affairs
Group to provide consulting and lobbying
services for Gila County at the federal
government level in a not to exceed amount of
$75,000 for the period November 17, 2016, to
November 18, 2020.

Approved

 

F.   Approval to reappoint Stanley Gibson to the
Gila County Industrial Development Authority
Board of Directors for another six-year term
retroactive from January 20, 2016 to
December 31, 2021 (with a one-time
adjustment to the term of office); and,
approval to reappoint Trena Grantham to said
Board for the term beginning January 1,
2017, through December 31, 2022.

Approved

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the October 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the October 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the October 2016 activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional
Constable's Office

Acknowledged

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the October 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

K.   Approval of the November 15, 2016, November Approved



K.   Approval of the November 15, 2016, November
22, 2016, and November 29, 2016 Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

L.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of November 1, 2016,
November 8, 2016, November 15, 2016,
November 22, 2016, and November 29, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

M.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of October 31, 2016
through November 4, 2016; and, November 7,
2016 through November 11, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

N.   Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for Oct. 24-30,
2016; Oct. 31-Nov. 6, 2016; Nov. 7-13, 2016;
and, Nov. 14-20, 2016.

Approved

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to  



7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

 

 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board
of Supervisors may vote to go into
executive session on one or all of the items
listed in this section.  No action will be
taken by the Board while in executive
session.)

 

 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go
into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) to receive
legal advice from the Board of Supervisors'
attorney regarding the lawsuit of Strawberry
Ridge Estates LLC v. Gila County, 1
CA-TX-14-0004; consider its position in the
lawsuit; and, after the regular meeting has
been reconvened, move to direct the County
Attorney’s Office to proceed as directed in the
executive session regarding this agenda item. 
(Jeff Dalton)

Directed Staff

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go
into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 
38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) regarding the offer extended
by the Arizona Attorney General's Office to
represent Gila County's interests in the matter
of Sunrun Inc. v. Gila County, et. al., TX
2016-001025, and, after the regular meeting
has been reconvened, move to direct the
County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed
in the executive session regarding this agenda
item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Directed Staff

 



 

9. WORK SESSION ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion regarding the powers
and duties, financial responsibilities,
personnel requirements, open meeting law
restrictions, and decision making process of
the Gila County Board of Supervisors.
(Tommie Martin)

Discussed

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.
THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)
THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   
ARF-4047     Presentation      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk

of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation by the Southern Gila County Economic Development
Corporation (SGCEDC)

Background Information
Karalea Cox of the SGCEDC submitted a request to present information
to the Board of Supervisors regarding a U.S. Department of Agriculture
(USDA) grant that was recently awarded to the SGCEDC to conduct a food
hub feasibility study.

Evaluation
It would be beneficial for the Board of Supervisors and members of the
public to receive this information.

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of information pertaining to the Southern Gila County
Economic Development Corporation's grant award from the United States
Department of Agriculture to conduct a food hub feasibility study. 
(Karalea Cox)

Attachments
SGCEDC Presentation 12-6-16



Copper Communities Food 
Hub Feasibility Study

Southern Gila County Economic Development Corporation
Partnering with:

USDA – Rural Development
Copper Corridor Economic Development Coalition

And 
Local First Arizona



Our Purpose Here Today

• To introduce the study process to stakeholders, 
producers and consumers 

• To encourage participation in the study



What is a Food Hub?

USDA definition is: “a business or organization that actively manages the 
aggregation, distribution, and marketing of source-identified food products 
primarily from local and regional producers to strengthen their ability to 
satisfy wholesale, retail, and institutional demand.”



What does a Regional Food Hub do?
• Carries out or coordinates the aggregation, distribution, and marketing of primarily 

locally/regionally produced foods from multiple producers to multiple markets.

• Considers producers as valued business partners instead of interchangeable suppliers and 
is committed to buying from small to mid-sized local producers whenever possible.

• Works closely with producers, particularly small-scale operations, to ensure they can meet 
buyer requirements by either providing technical assistance or findings partners that can 
provide this technical assistance.

• Uses product differentiation strategies to ensure that producers get a good price for their 
products. Examples of product differentiation strategies include identity preservation 
(knowing who produced it and where it comes from), group branding, specialty product 
attributes (such as heirloom or unusual varieties), and sustainable production practices 
(such as certified organic, minimum pesticides, or “naturally” grown or raised).

• Aims to be financially viable while also having positive economic, social, and 
environmental impacts within their communities, as demonstrated by carrying out certain 
production, community, or environmental services and activities.



How Food Hubs are Working in an 
Evolving Food System

• Regional food hubs are increasing market access for local and 
regional producers.

• Regional food hubs complement current food distribution systems 
and are customized to meet a specific region or community’s 
needs.

• Regional food hubs are having significant economic, social, and 
environmental impacts within their communities.

• The success of regional food hubs is fueled by entrepreneurial 
thinking and sound business practices coupled with a desire for 
social impact.



A Feasibility Study

• Purpose:
• to better understand current supply of local food in 

the Copper Communities & the potential to increase 
production

• to investigate local opportunities to connect 
producers with a reliable market, and connect buyers 
with reliable local food supply through the creation of 
a food hub

• Phase I: Data Collection & Outreach (Nov 2016 – Mar 
2017)

• Phase II: Data Aggregation, Development of a Food 
Hub Tool Kit & Recommendations for Producers (Mar – 
June 2017)

• Phase III: Education & Information Distribution to 
Producers and Consumers (June – Sept 2017)



A Feasibility Study

What is the Copper Corridor 
Region?

How do I participate?

• Provide us with your contact 
information today

• Participate in electronic surveys

• Attend Informational 
Community Meetings in 
January



Questions?



   
ARF-4024     Public Hearing      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Submitted For: Scott Buzan, Chief

Building Official 
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03, Building Code Ordinance for
Unincorporated Areas of Gila County Arizona.

Background Information
Ordinance No. 2016-03 with proposed amendments repeals the current
Building Code Ordinance for the Unincorporated Areas of Gila County
adopted on September 2, 2014, and replaces it in its entirety with the
Gila County Building Code with amendments for the unincorporated areas
of Gila County.  The required public notice was posted in the Silver Belt
Newspaper on November 16, 2016 meeting the required minimum 15 day
notice as stated in ARS 11-251.05. 

Evaluation
The previously adopted Building Code Ordinance has been in effect for
over two years.  During this past year the Building Official has
had numerous discussions not only with staff and contractors, but with
the public and other Building Officials with the intent to modify the
existing Ordinance so that it can continue to evolve and improve as well
as remain a legally enforceable document that will safeguard health,
safety, property and public welfare.  Some of the modifications include
code section clarifications, the addition of energy standards and the
adoption of the 2012 International Energy Code as an optional code,
reduced requirements, and increased safety measures.  Since the building
codes are international in their content, some of the amendments are
specific to Gila County's geographical location.

The new Building Code Ordinance as amended was approved by the
Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board on February 26, 2016.

Conclusion
Change is inevitable and adapting the Building Code Ordinance to



Change is inevitable and adapting the Building Code Ordinance to
encompass relevant changes in the building codes and the construction
industry allows the County's customers more flexibility in complying with
the codes without the County having to invest time and money adopting
the newer codes.  In addition, keeping the document current and
accessible provides customers and staff a tool which helps to
educate them about code amendments and specific
requirements adopted and enforced by Gila County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors conduct a public hearing
and then adopt as amended Ordinance No. 2016-03, the Building Code
Ordinance for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County Arizona.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to repeal the previously adopted Gila
County Building Code Ordinance No. 2014-03 and any other previously
adopted Building Code Ordinances for unincorporated areas of Gila
County; and, adopt Ordinance No. 2016-03, the Building Code Ordinance
for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County Arizona.  (Scott Buzan)

Attachments
Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03-FINAL
Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03-DRAFT
Ordinance Current
Ordinance Public Notice



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 1 
 

 
 

 
BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF GILA 

COUNTY ARIZONA 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016-03 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REPLACE PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED BUILDING CODE 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03 AND ALL PRIOR BUILDING CODE ORDINANCES OF THE COUNTY 
OF GILA IN ITS ENTIRETY AND PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF THIS GILA COUNTY 
BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE BY REFERENCE REGULATING THE CONSTRUCTION, 
ALTERATION, CONVERSION, MOVEMENT, ENLARGEMENT, REPLACEMENT, REPAIR, 
EQUIPMENT, USE AND OCCUPANCY, LOCATION, MAINTENANCE, REMOVAL, AND 
DEMOLITION OF THE BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES AND APPURTENANCES TO SUCH 
BUILDING AND STRUCTURES IN GILA COUNTY; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF PERMIT 
FEES, AND PROVIDING FOR AN ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD. 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is empowered to make and enforce all  regulations not in 
conflict with general law, pursuant to A.R.S §11-251(31), and may adopt ordinances necessary or proper to carry 
out the County's responsibilities not otherwise limited or conflicting with other laws, pursuant to A.R.S . §11-
251.05(A); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has properly noticed this Ordinance in compliance with A.R.S 
§11-251.05(C); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors is authorized to adopt a Building Code by Reference in 
compliance with A.R.S. §11-861. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopts as 
amended the Building Code Ordinance of Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, which will go 
into effect 30 days after Board of Supervisors’ approval: 
 

BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF 
 GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
 
SECTION 101 

 
This Ordinance shall be known as the GILA COUNTY BUILDING CODE. 

 
 
 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 2 
 

SECTION 101.1 
PURPOSE AND INTENT 

 
The purpose of this Code is to provide minimum requirements to safeguard the public health, safety 
and general welfare through affordability, structural strength, means of egress facilities, stability, 
sanitation, light and ventilation, energy conservation and safety to life and property from fire and 
other hazards attributed to the built environment and to provide safety to fire fighters and emergency 
responders during emergency operations. 
 

SECTION 101.2 
ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. BUILDING SAFETY 
 
 The Building Safety Department shall administer the provisions of this Building Ordinance: 
 

1. The official responsible for the administration of this Ordinance shall be the Chief 
Building Official of Gila County.  The rules for administering this Ordinance are as noted 
in the respective Codes as adopted or as otherwise provided herein. 

 
2. All permits or licenses issued by authority of this Ordinance shall comply with the 

provisions of this Ordinance.  Any permit or license issued in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be considered null and void and have no effect. 

 
3. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall conflict with the exemptions provided pursuant 

to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-812 and § 11-865. 
 
      B.  ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 
 

 1.   Authority and Purpose 
 

a. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-862 there shall 
be and is hereby created the Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board.  Whenever the 
terms “Board”, “Advisory Board”, “Board of Appeals” or “Advisory and Appeals Board” 
appear in the Building Code or the Building Code Ordinance, they shall mean the 
Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board. 

 
b. This Advisory and Appeals Board is established to hear and decide appeals of orders, 

decisions, or determinations made by the Building Official relative to the application and 
interpretation of the Building Code and to determine the suitability of alternative 
materials and construction methods. 
 

c. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall also provide technical advice to the Building 
Official to assist in the formation and adoption of revisions or amendments to the 
Building Code and the Building Code Ordinance. 

 
d. The functions, duties and rules of procedure for conducting the business of the Advisory 

and Appeals Board shall be as specified in this section. 
 
 
 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 3 
 

2.  Members and Qualifications 
 
a. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall consist of seven (7) members appointed by and 
 serving at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors. Initial appointments shall be made as 
 follows: 

    i. Two members shall be appointed to four year terms. 
    ii. Two members shall be appointed for three year terms. 
  iii. Two members shall be appointed for two year terms. 
  iv. One member shall be appointed to a one year term. 
 

b. Thereafter, members shall be appointed for a term of four (4) years, staggered so that at 
 least one but not more than two terms expire each year. 
 
c. The Building Official shall serve as a non-voting ex officio member of the Board and 
 shall act as secretary to the Board. 
 

 d. Members of the Advisory and Appeals Board must be residents of Gila County but 
 cannot be employees of Gila County government. This Board shall include members 
 from the following categories to the extent that persons meeting the qualifications are 
 available and willing to serve: 

 .i An architect duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 
       .ii A professional engineer duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 

        .iii A general contractor duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 
      .iv A person representing the public.  
       .v A person engaged in the electrical, mechanical or plumbing trade. 

 
e.    Each member of this Board shall have substantial experience in at least one of the fields 
 covered by the Building Code and must be qualified by experience and training to decide 
 on matters pertaining to building construction. 
 
f.   Members of this Board shall serve without compensation except for reimbursement of 
 expenses as approved by the Board of Supervisors. This Board shall not be empowered to 
 incur debts, nor make any purchases nor enter into any contracts or agreements binding 
 Gila County. 

 
 3. Vacancies 
 
  a. A vacancy shall be filled in the same manner in which original appointments are made.  

  An appointment made to fill an unexpired term shall be made for the remainder of that  
  unexpired term only. 

 
 b. Board members may resign from their appointed position at any time for any reason.  
  However, a thirty (30) day written notice of resignation should be provided to the  
  Secretary of the Board. 

 
 c.  The Board of Supervisors may remove any member who is absent from more than three  
  (3) consecutive Board meetings or 50% or more of all Board meetings held during any  
  one calendar year or for other due cause as determined by the Board of Supervisors. ` 
  Written notice of removal shall be delivered to the member being removed and a copy  
  shall be furnished to the Secretary of the Board who will provide the Chairman of the  
  Board with a copy. 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 4 
 

 d. Members shall give advance notice of any anticipated absence to the Secretary of the  
  Board to allow the Secretary to assure the presence of a quorum. 

 
 4.   Duties of the Board 

 
a. The Board shall hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by 

the Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the Building Code 
and to determine the suitability of alternative materials and construction methods. The 
Board shall also provide technical advice to the Building Official to assist in the 
formation and adoption of revisions or amendments to the Building Code and the 
Building Code Ordinance. 

 
b. The Board shall elect from its members a Chairman and Vice-Chairman by majority vote 

of the members at the first meeting of each calendar year to serve for a term of one 
calendar year. 

 
c. Legal Counsel shall be provided by the Gila County Attorney or a Deputy County 

Attorney. 
 

d. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings, shall conduct all hearings, and shall exercise 
and perform such other duties as may be required or assigned by the Board. The 
Chairman shall rule on procedure or on order of presentation at all Board meetings or 
hearings. 

 
e. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall assume the duties of the 

Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers and is subject to the same 
restrictions as the Chairman. 

 
f. In the absence of both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, a Chairman pro-tempore 

shall be elected by majority vote from among the members present. In the absence of the 
Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers and is subject to the same 
restrictions as the Chairman. 

 
g. All members present at a hearing or meeting of the Board shall vote unless abstaining due 

to a conflict of interest. In the event of a tie, the Chairman shall call for an additional or 
amended motion in an attempt to resolve the tie. If the tie cannot be resolved, the vote 
shall be reflected in the minutes. 

 
h. Any member of the Board who has a conflict of interest in any matter brought before the 

Board shall make known such interest in the record of the proceeding and shall refrain 
from voting upon or otherwise participating in the deliberations and decisions regarding 
such matter. 

 
i. The Secretary of the Board shall keep or cause to be kept minutes of the proceedings of 

the Board and shall provide an agenda to each Board member prior to the time set for any 
Board hearing or meeting. 

 
j. The Secretary of the Board shall be custodian of the records of the Board. 

 
 5.  Hearings and Meetings 

 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 5 
 

a. The Board shall meet at the call of the Chairman, or at the request of the Building 
Official, or as needed in any calendar year. 

 
b. All Board meetings and hearings are subject to the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 

 
c. Notice of the date, time and place of any regular or special meeting or hearing of the 

Board, including an agenda of the matters to be addressed, shall be given at least seven 
(7) days prior to the meeting by posting notice to the general public. 

 
d. The Board may approve, approve with conditions and/or stipulations, deny or continue 

any issue brought before them. 
 

e. The Board shall be the judge of the qualifications of a person appearing as an expert 
witness. The Board shall determine the extent of consideration to be given to the 
testimony or evidence presented by a person appearing as an expert witness. 

 
f. During any hearing or meeting of the Board, The Building Official may be called upon to 

clarify the Code requirement(s) and/or support the position of the Building Safety 
Department on any particular order, decision or determination currently held or being 
enforced. 

 
    6. Quorum and Voting 

 
a. Four members constitute a quorum. If a quorum cannot be obtained, the meeting shall be 

rescheduled. 
 

b. Any vote of the Board shall be recorded in the minutes. If the vote is not unanimous, each 
member’s vote will be recorded individually. 

 
c. An approval of a motion shall be accomplished by an affirmative vote of a majority of 

members present. The motion is then considered to have carried or been passed. 
 
d. Any motion that fails to obtain a majority vote of the members present shall be 

considered a denial of the motion. The motion is considered to have failed or been 
denied. 

 
e. The Board may reconsider a motion which has passed if a member who voted in favor of 

the original motion makes a motion to reconsider within the same meeting and the motion 
to reconsider passes. 

 
  7.   Appeals 

 
a. Any person(s) may initiate an appeal of an order, decision, or determination made by the 

Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the Building Code. A 
Notice of Appeal must be filed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such an order, 
decision, or determination. The Board may refuse to grant a hearing of any case in which 
the appellant requests a waiver of any provision of the Building Code. 

 
b. A Notice of Appeal must be filed with the secretary of the Advisory and Appeals Board 

specifying the reasons and circumstances for the appeal. Appeals of orders, decisions, or 
determinations made by the Building Official relative to the applications and 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 6 
 

interpretation of the Building Code shall be made in writing and shall be directed to a 
specific order, decision or determination of the Building Official. The Board shall limit 
their consideration of the appeal to that specific order, decision or determination. 

 
c. The Secretary of the Board shall furnish copies of all records pertaining to the appeal to 

each member of the Board.  Appeals must be based on a claim that 
i. the true intent of the Building Code has been incorrectly interpreted or 

ii. the provisions of the Building Code do not apply or 
iii. the proposed form or method of construction is equal to or better than required by 

the Building Code. 
iv. A self-imposed or financial hardship does not constitute grounds for an appeal. 

The appellant must bear the cost of any tests or research required to substantiate 
appellant’s claim(s). 

 
d. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing for an appeal within fifteen 

(15) days of receipt of the Notice of Appeal. Public notice of the hearing shall be posted 
(7) days prior to the hearing date. An appeal stays all proceedings against the appellant in 
the matter appealed, unless the Building Official notifies the Board in writing that, in the 
Building Official’s opinion, a stay creates imminent danger to life or property. Under 
these circumstances, proceedings shall not be stayed except by court order or by 
determination of the Advisory and Appeals Board as a result of a properly noticed public 
meeting specifically called for that purpose. 

 
e. If the appellant fails to appear at a hearing, the Board may choose to continue the hearing 

to a later date at which the appellant can be present. 
 

f. In any hearing for appeal, the Building Official may be called upon to clarify the Code 
requirement(s) and/or to support the position of the Building Safety Department on the 
particular order, decision or determination being appealed. 

 
g. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall make a decision within fifteen (15) days of the 

date of the meeting called to decide the appeal. A decision in favor of the appellant shall 
be in the form of a written directive to the Building Official to carry out the decision of 
the Board subject to any conditions and/or stipulations required by the Board. In any case 
where the Board denies an appeal, the Board reserves the right to refuse to consider 
another appeal on the same subject matter and like circumstances for one year from the 
date of the hearing in question. 

 
h. Appeals will be heard at special meetings called and noticed pursuant to the requirements 

of this section. Hearing dates will be scheduled to allow for noticing and posting 
requirements to be met. 

 
i. In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall disclose any evidence, witness(es) 

or testimony, other than their own, that they intend to present at the hearing. Failure to 
disclose may be cause for the Board to delay the presentation of such evidence, 
witness(es) or testimony. 

 
j. The Board may request that the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney be present 

at appeal hearings. In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall disclose their 
intent to be represented by an attorney. The Board may choose to continue a hearing 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 7 
 

where an appellant is represented by an attorney and, for whatever reason, the County 
Attorney or Deputy County Attorney is unable to appear on behalf of the Board. 

 
k. Findings and decisions of the Advisory and Appeals Board shall be binding upon the 

Building Official and the appealing party subject to appeal to the Board of Supervisors. 
Only the appellant or the Building Official may appeal a decision of the Board to the 
Board of Supervisors. All findings, decisions and rulings made by the Board shall be 
reported in writing to the Board of Supervisors. 

 
 8.   Limitation of Authority 
 

 The Advisory and Appeals Board shall have no authority relative to interpretation of the  
 administrative provisions of the Building Code nor shall the Board be empowered to  waive 
 requirements of the Building Code. 

 
SECTION 102 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 Terms used in this Ordinance shall be defined as provided in the adopted Code books, appendices and 

amendments listed in Section 5 BUILDING CODE of this Ordinance, except as herein otherwise 
provided. 

 
 Building Official or Chief Building Official shall mean the Chief Building Official of Gila County. 
 
 Board shall mean the Gila County Board of Supervisors unless the reference is within Section 8 of 

this Ordinance and/or is clearly intended to mean the Advisory and Appeals Board. 
 
 Board of Supervisors shall mean the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
 Building Code or Gila County Building Code shall mean this Building Code Ordinance and, more 

specifically, the collection of code books, appendices and amendments listed in Section 5 BUILDING 
CODE of this Ordinance. 

 
 Building Code Ordinance or this Ordinance shall mean this complete Ordinance. 
 
 County or Gila County shall mean the unincorporated areas of Gila County excluding Indian 

Reservations. 
 
 HUD shall mean the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
 LPG shall mean liquefied petroleum gas. 
 
 OMH shall mean the State of Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing. 
 

SECTION 103 
ENERGY STANDARDS 

The following minimum energy values shall apply for all commercial and habitable residential 
buildings:  
 Roof: 2x4 construction R-13 
  2x6, 2x8, 2x10, 9.5” & 11.875 I-Joist construction R-19 
  2x12 construction R-30 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 8 
 

  All other dimensions and ceilings with attic spaces R-38 
  Alternative materials - Discretion of the Building Official 
  Wall: 2x4 construction and basements R-13 
  2x6 construction or greater R-19 
  Alternative materials - Discretion of the Building Official  
     Floor (wood or steel framed): R-19 
 Window U-Factor:  .35 
 Skylight U-Factor:  .55 
 

SECTION 104 
BUILDING CODE 
 

The following described documents containing the following described codes, appendices and 
amendments are hereby adopted by reference, as if fully set out herein, as the Gila County Building 
Code pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-861. 

 
A. International Residential Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, 

Inc. including: 
 
1. Appendix A (Sizing and Capacities of Gas Piping) 
 
2. Appendix B (Sizing of Venting Systems Serving Appliances Equipped with Draft 

Hoods, Category I Appliances and Appliances Listed for Use with Type B Vents) 
 

3. Appendix C (Exit Terminals of Mechanical Draft and Direct-vent Venting Systems) 
 

4. Appendix G (Swimming Pool, Spas and Hot Tubs) 
 

5. Appendix H (Patio Covers) 
 

6. Appendix J (Existing Buildings and Structures) 
 

7. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend section R101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 

 
b. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 1. by adding “non-

habitable” after “similar”, and by adding “and the floor surface is not more than 30 inches 
above grade.  Floor area is measured using the outside dimensions of the foundation.”  after 
(18.58 m²)  and by adding “Detached accessory structures shall be located an approved 
distance from other structures and property lines.” 

 
c. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 2. by replacing the wording 

in this subsection with “Wood, wire, chain link and similarly constructed fences not over 6 
feet high measured from grade.  Rock, concrete, masonry and similarly constructed fences 
not over 4 feet high measured from grade.” 

 
d. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 3. by deleting “are not over 

4 feet (1219 mm) in height measured from the bottom of the footing to the top of the wall” 
and replacing it with “will retain 48 inches or less of unbalanced fill.” 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 9 
 

 
e. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 10. by adding “Detached” 

before “Decks”, by deleting “are not attached to a dwelling and do not serve the exit door 
required by Section R311.4” and by adding “Detached accessory structures shall be located 
an approved distance from other structures and property lines.” 

 
f. Delete section R105.3.1.1 Determination of substantially approved or substantially 

damaged existing buildings in flood hazard areas. 
 

g. Delete section R112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 
 

h. Amend section R202 Definitions by adding SLEEPING ROOM.  A room within a 
structure consisting of a minimum floor area of 70 square feet and not less than 7 feet in 
any horizontal dimension, has a built in closet either  
for clothing or storage, and used primarily for sleeping 
Replace Table R301.2 (1) CLIMATIC AND GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA 
with the following table: 

 
 TABLE R301.2(1) AMENDED   

CLIMATIC and GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA for GILA COUNTY 
SNOW LOADS1 

BELOW 4,500 ft. elevation 4,500 to 6,000 ft. elevation ABOVE 6000 ft. elevation 
ROOF LIVE LOAD 20 PSF 2 ROOF LIVE LOAD 40PSF ROOF LIVE LOAD 40 PSF 3 

GROUND SNOW LOAD 28 PSF GROUND SNOW LOAD 57 PSF GROUND SNOW LOAD 57 PSF 3 

Includes: Christmas, Claypool, Cutter, 
Deer Creek Village, Doll Baby Ranch, 
Dripping Springs, Gisela, Globe, Gila 

County Fairgrounds, Greenback 
Valley, Hayden, Jakes Corner, Miami, 

North Bay Estates, Punkin Center, 
Roosevelt, Rye, Tonto Basin, Tonto 

Creek Shores, Wheatfields, 
Winkelman                                                                               

.                                                                                         

. 

Includes: Bear Flat, Beaver Valley, 
Bonita Creek Estates, Camp 

Geronimo, Christopher Creek, East 
Verde Park, El Capitan, Ellison Creek 
Estates, Flowing Springs, Geronimo 
Estates, Haigler Creek subdivision, 
Hunter Creek Ranch, Kohl's Ranch, 
Mesa Del Caballo, Oxbow Estates, 
Payson, Pine, Rose Creek Lodge, 
Round Valley, Strawberry, Tonto 

Natural Bridge, Tonto Village, Verde 
Glen, Whispering Pines, Young 

Includes: Canyon Creek Fish 
Hatchery, Colcord Mountain Estates, 
Diamond Point Lookout, El Capitan 

Peak, Gordon Canyon Ranch, 
Mazatzal Peak, Mead Ranch, 

Mountain Meadows, Mt. Ord, Nail 
Ranch, OW Ranch, Pinal Peak, 
Ponderosa Springs, Signal Peak, 

Tonto Creek Fish Hatchery, 
Washington Park                                                                        

. 
1. Some ground snow loads were interpolated from known roof snow loads.  
2. The minimum roof / live load required by Code = 20 psf  
3. or per historical data available.   

  



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 10 
 

 
   

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY 4, 5 WIND DESIGN 

B C County-wide 

Includes:  Christopher Creek, Doll 
Baby Ranch, East Verde Park, Gisela, 

Geronimo Estates, Haigler Creek, 
Hayden, Jake's Corner, Kohl's Ranch, 

Payson, Pine, Ponderosa Springs, 
Punkin Center, Rose Creek Ranch, 

Rye, Roosevelt, Roosevelt Lake 
Estates, Strawberry, Tonto Basin, 

Tonto Village, Wheatfields, 
Washington Park, Whispering Pines, 

Winkelman, Young 

Includes:  Chaparral Estates, Central 
Heights, Copper Canyon Ranches, 
Christmas Mine, Claypool, Cutter, 

Dripping Springs, Dripping Springs 
Rd., El Capitan, Gila County 

Fairgrounds, Globe, Hobbs Ranch 
Rd., Miami, Peridot, Pioneer Hills, 

Pioneer Pass Rd., Russell Gulch Rd., 
San Carlos, San Carlos Reservoir, Six 

Shooter Canyon 

SPEED:                                                                   
3 Second gust = 90 m.p.h.                                           

Fastest mile wind speed = 76 m.p.h.                                                          
.                                          

TOPOGRAPHIC EFFECTS:                                      
No                                                    

(Exposure B is presumed)                                                                                                                                                               
. 

4. See map on file in Community Development for more detailed information. 
5. Site Category D is presumed   

FACTORS AFFECTING DESIGN 
  BELOW 4,500 feet 4,500 feet and ABOVE 
WEATHERING Negligible Moderate   

FROST 
Bottom of footing must be 12" min. 
below undisturbed ground surface. 

Bottom of footing must be 12" min. 
below undisturbed ground surface and 

18" min. below finished grade. 
WINTER DESIGN TEMP Averages 28 degrees Averages 17 degrees 
MEAN ANNUAL 
TEMPERATURE Averages 65 degrees Averages 55 degrees6 
AIR FREEZING INDEX Less than 1500 cumulative degree days below freezing 
ICE BARRIER 
UNDERLAYMENT Not required 

TERMITES Moderate to heavy 
FLOOD HAZARDS As determined by the Gila County Floodplain Dept. and/or Engineer 
6. Based on Payson area.   
i. Amend Table R301.5 MINIMUM UNIFORMLY DISTRIBUTED LIVE LOADS by 

replacing the number “30” with “40” for habitable attics and attics with fixed stairs. 
 

j. Amend Table R301.5 MINIMUM UNIFORMLY DISTRIBUTED LIVE LOADS by 
replacing the number “20” with “40” for sleeping rooms. 
 

k. Amend Table R302.6 DWELLING/GARAGE SEPARATION by replacing all 
references to ½-inch with 5/8-inch Type X. 
 

l. Amend section R302.7 Under-stair protection by replacing ½-inch with 5/8-inch Type X. 
 

m. Amend section R305.1.1 Basements by adding “garages and porches” after the words 
“laundry rooms.” 

 
n. Amend section R310.5 Emergency escape windows under decks and porches by adding 

“relatively level and unobstructed” before the word “path” and by adding “by 36 inches ² 
o. Amend section R311.3.1 Floor elevations at the required egress doors by deleting “7 ¾ 

inches (196 mm)” and replacing it with “8 inches.” 
 

p. Amend section R311.3.2 Floor elevations for other exterior doors by deleting “7 ¾ 
inches (196 mm)” and replacing it with “8 inches.” 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 11 
 

 
q. Amend section R311.7.5.1 Risers by deleting “7 ¾ inches (196 mm)” and replacing it with 

“8 inches.” 
 
r. Amend section R312.1.2 Height by deleting “adjacent fixed seating.” 
 
s. Delete section R313.2 One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire systems. 

 
t. Amend section R403.1.4.1 Frost protection by deleting Exceptions: 1., 2., and 3.  

 
u. Amend section R502.3.3 Floor cantilevers by adding after Table R502.3.3(2) “All other 

floor cantilevers not pertaining to Table R502.3.3(1) and Table R502.3.3(2) shall be limited 
to a span of 48 inches without Building Official approval or engineered design.” 

 
v. Amend section 606.9.1 Horizontal lateral support in its entirety to read as follows: 

“Minimum reinforcement requirements for masonry elements shall consist of reinforcement 
by at least one #4 rebar, in both the horizontal and vertical directions at no further than 4 
feet on center.  Additionally, a single #4 rebar is required within 6 inches of the top of the 
masonry walls, placed horizontally and within 6 inches vertically of the end of the wall and 
at openings.”   Concrete walls will have the same requirements as masonry except the 
horizontal reinforcement will be at not more than 2 feet on center. 

 
w. Amend section R802.5 Allowable rafter spans by adding “Cantilevered portions of rafters 

that are not notched shall be limited to a span of 48 inches without building official 
approval or engineered design.” 

 
x. Amend Chapter 11 Energy Efficiency to state this chapter is optional and not required.  If 

an applicant requests to follow this chapter at the time of plan submission and the 
construction complies with this chapter, the County will note such compliance on the 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
y. Amend section M1503.1 General by adding “Changes in duct size or direction shall be 

made through the use of an approved mechanical connection.  Taped connections and/or 
transitions are prohibited.” 

 
z. Amend section G2412.2 Liquefied petroleum gas storage by adding “Installation and 

placement of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) tanks that supply a LPG piping system 
regulated by this Code must be permitted and inspected.” 

 
aa. Amend section G2415.12 Minimum burial depth by deleting “except as provided for in 

Section G2415.12.1” and replacing it with “for metal piping and a minimum depth of 18 
inches (457 mm) below grade for plastic piping” 

 
bb. Delete section G2415.12.1 Individual outside appliances. 

 
cc. Amend section P2503.5.1 Rough plumbing by deleting “for piping systems other than 

plastic,”. 
 

dd. Amend section P2602.1 General by adding “Use of a portable toilet is allowed on a 
temporary basis during construction or repair of an approved private sewage-disposal 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 12 
 

system and is not to be used as permanent sanitary source.  Toilet facilities shall be 
provided for construction workers and such facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary 
condition.” 

 
ee. Delete section P2904.1.1 Required sprinkler locations. 

 
ff. Amend section E3404.9 Energized parts guarded against accidental contact by adding 

“Ground mounted photovoltaic systems containing energized parts operating at 50 volts or 
more shall be guarded against accidental contact by approved enclosures.” 

 
gg. Amend section E3903.2 Habitable rooms by adding “The wall switch shall be readily 

accessible and located in close proximity to the entrance of the room being entered.” 
 

hh. Amend section E3903.3 Additional locations by adding “and the interior” after the word 
“exterior.” 

 
B. International Building Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, Inc. 

including: 
 
1. Appendix C (Group U-Agricultural Buildings) 
 
2. Appendix H (Signs) 
 
3. Appendix I (Patio Covers) 
 
4. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend Section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 

 
b. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 1. by adding “non-

habitable” after “similar” and by adding “and the floor surface is not more than 30 inches 
above grade.  Floor area is measured using the outside dimensions of the foundation.”  
after (11 m²)  and by adding “Detached accessory structures shall be located an approved 
distance from other structures and property lines.” 

 
c. Amend section 105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 2 by replacing the wording 

in this subsection with “Wood, wire, chain link and similarly constructed fences not over 
6 feet high measured from grade.  Rock, concrete, masonry and similarly constructed 
fences not over 4 feet high measured from grade.” 

 
d. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 4. by deleting “are not 

over 4 feet (1219 mm) in height measured from the bottom of the footing to the top of the 
wall” and replacing it with “will retain 48 inches or less of unbalanced fill.” 

 
e. Delete section 113 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 
f. Amend section 202 Definitions by adding the following definitions: 

 
i. Assisted Living Center.  An assisted living facility that provides resident rooms or  



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 13 
 

residential units to eleven or more residents. 
 
ii. Assisted Living Facility.  A residential care institution, including adult foster care, 

that provides or contracts to provide supervisory care services, personal care services 
or directed care services on a continuing basis. 

 
iii. Assisted Living Home.  An assisted living facility that provides resident rooms to 

ten or fewer residents. 
 
iv. Directed Care Service.  Care of residents, including personal care services, who are 

incapable of recognizing danger, summoning assistance, expressing need, or making  
basic care decisions. 

 
v. Supervisory Care Service.  General supervision, including daily awareness of 

resident functioning and continuing needs. 
 

g. Amend section 202 Definitions by replacing the definition for Personal Care Service 
with “Assistance with activities of daily living that can be performed by persons without 
professional skills or professional training and includes the coordination or provision of 
intermittent nursing services and administration of medications or treatments.” 
 

h. Amend section 308.3 Institutional Group I-1 to read as follows: 
“This occupancy shall include buildings, structures or portions thereof for more than 16 
persons who reside on a 24 hour basis in a supervised environment, receive custodial  
care, and are capable of self-preservation, except as provided for assisted living centers.   
This group shall include, but not be limited to, the following:” 
 

i. Amend section 308.3 Institutional Group I-1 by replacing “Assisted living facilities” 
with “Assisted living centers.” 

 
j. Amend section 308.3.2 Six to sixteen person receiving care by adding “, except as 

provided for assisted living homes” after the words “Group R-4.” 
 

k. Amend section 308.4 Institutional Group I-2 by replacing “Nursing homes” with 
“Assisted Living Centers.” 

 
l. Delete section 308.4.1 Five or fewer persons receiving care. 

 
m. Amend section 310.5.1 Care facilities within a dwelling to read as follows: 

“Licensed care facilities for 10 or fewer persons receiving care that are within a single-
family dwelling are permitted, provided that the requirements of Section 425 for this 
Code are met.” 
 

n. Amend section 310.6 Residential Group R-4 by adding “except as provided for assisted 
living homes” after the words “self-preservation.” 
 

o. Amend section 310.6 Residential Group R-4 by replacing “Assisted living facilities” 
with “Assisted living homes.” 

 
p. Amend section  310.6 Residential Group R-4 by adding “and Section 425” after the 

words “in this Code.” 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 14 
 

 
q. Amend section 310 Residential Group R by adding the following sections: 

i. 310.6.1 Condition 1.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 
provide supervisory care services, in which occupants are capable of self-
preservation by responding to an emergency situation without physical assistance 
from staff.  Condition facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified as 
Group I-2. 

 
ii. 310.6.2 Condition 2.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 

provide personal or directed care services, in which occupants are incapable of self-
preservation by responding to an emergency situation without physical assistance 
from staff. Condition 2 facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified as 
Group I-2. 

 
r. Amend Chapter 4 Special Detailed Requirements Based On Use and Occupancy by 

adding the following Section 425 ASSISTED LIVING HOMES: 
 

i. 425.1 Applicability.  The provisions of this section shall apply to a building or part 
thereof housing not more than 10 persons, excluding staff, on a 24-hour basis, who 
because of age, mental disability or other reasons, live in a supervised residential 
environment, which provides licensed care services. Except as specifically required by 
this division, R-4 occupancies shall meet all the applicable provisions of Group R-3. 

 
ii. 425.2 General.  Building or portions of buildings classified as R-4 may be 

constructed of any materials allowed by this Code, shall not exceed two stories in 
height nor be located above the second story in any building and shall not exceed two 
thousand square feet above the first story, except as provided in Section 506. 

 
iii. 425.3 Special Provisions.  R-4 occupancies having more than 2000 square feet 

above the first story shall be of not less than one-hour fire-resistive construction 
throughout. 

 
iv. 425.3.1 Mixed Uses.  R-4 occupancies shall be separated from other occupancies as 

provided in Table 508.4. 
 

v. 425.4 Access and Means of Egress Facilities 
 

vi. 425.4.1 Accessibility.  R-4 occupancies shall be provided with at least one accessible 
route as provided in Section 1104.1. 

 
vii. 425.4.2 Exits 

 
viii. 425.4.2.1 Number of Exits.  Every story, basement, or portion thereof shall have not 

less than two exits.  Exception: Basements and stories above the first floor containing 
no sleeping rooms used by residents may have only one means of egress as provided 
in Chapter 10. 

 
ix. 425.4.2.2 Distance to Exits.  The maximum travel distance shall comply with 

Section 1016, except that the maximum travel distance from the center point of any 
sleeping room to an exit shall not exceed 75 feet. 

 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 15 
 

x. 425.4.2.3 Emergency Exit Illumination.  In event of a power failure, exit 
illumination shall be automatically provided from an emergency system powered by 
storage batteries or an onsite generator set installed in accordance with the National 
Electric Code. 

 
xi. 425.4.2.4 Emergency Escape and Rescue.  R-4 occupancies shall comply with the 

requirements of Section 1029, except that Exception #1 does not apply to R-4 
occupancies. 

 
xii. 425.4.2.5 Delayed Egress Locks.  In R-4 Condition 2 occupancies, delayed egress 

locks shall be permitted in accordance with Section 1008.1.9.7, Items 1, 2, 4, 5, and 6.  
 

xiii. 425.5 Smoke Alarms and Sprinkler Systems. 
 

xiv. 425.5.1 Smoke Alarms.  R-4 occupancies shall be provided with smoke alarms 
installed in accordance with Section 907.2.11.2, and such alarms shall be installed in 
all habitable rooms. 

 
xv. 425.5.2 Sprinkler Systems.  R-4 occupancies shall be provided with a sprinkler 

system installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3.  Sprinkler systems installed 
under this section shall be installed throughout to include attached garages and 
Condition 2 facilities including any concealed spaces or spaces containing 
combustible materials.  Such systems may not contain unsupervised valves between 
the domestic water riser control valve and the sprinklers. In Condition 2 occupancies, 
such systems shall contain water flow switches electrically supervised by an 
approved supervising station, and shall sound an audible signal at a constantly 
attended location. 

 
s. Amend section 1008.1.2 Door swing by replacing the wording in exception 4 with “Doors 

within or serving a single dwelling unit in Groups R-2 and R-3, as applicable in Section 
101.2 and R-4.” 

 
t. Amend section 1013.4 Opening limitations by adding “For guards required more than 8 

feet above grade, when a guard is required above the first floor of a building, the 
requirements of this section cannot be met through the use of horizontal members.” 

 
u. Amend section 1101.2 Design by replacing the wording with “Buildings and facilities 

shall be designed and constructed to be accessible in accordance with this Code and ICC 
A117.1, and the “Arizonans with Disabilities Act” (Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 41, 
Chapter 9, Article 8), and the “Arizonans with Disabilities Act Implementing Rules” 
(Arizona Administrative Code, Title 10, Chapter 3, Article 4), which rules incorporate the 
federal “2010 Americans with Disabilities Act Standards for Accessible Design,” and 
shall apply to new construction and alterations. 
 

v. Delete CHAPTER 13  ENERGY EFFICIENCY. 
 

w. Amend Table 1607.1 MINIMUM UNIFORMLY DISTRIBUTED LIVE LOADS by 
replacing the number “30” with “40” for Residential One and two-family dwellings 
habitable attics and sleeping areas. 

 
x. Delete section 1612 Flood Loads 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 16 
 

 
y. Delete section 3109 Swimming Pool Enclosures and Safety Devices 
z. Amend section 3412 Applicability by replacing [DATE TO BE INSERTED BY THE 

JURISDICTION…] with “October 1, 1986.” 
 

C. International Existing Building Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code 
Council, Inc. as well as the following amendments: 
 
1. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila County.” 

 
2. Delete section 112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 
3. Amend section 1401.2 Applicability by replacing [DATE TO BE INSERTED BY THE 

JURISDICTION…] with “October 1, 1986.” 
 

D. National Electrical Code, 2011 edition as published by the National Fire Protection Association 
including the following amendment: 
 
1. Amend section 90.4 Enforcement by adding “The procedures and methods used to 

administer and enforce this Code shall be the same as those described in the following 
portions of the 2012 International Building Code: 
 
a. Section 102 APPLICABILITY 

 
b. Part 2 ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT excluding Section 106 FLOOR 

AND ROOF DESIGN LOADS.” 
 

2. Amend section 110.27(A) by adding “Ground mounted photovoltaic systems containing live 
parts operating at 50 volts or more shall be guarded against accidental contact by approved 
enclosures secured and accessible only to authorized personnel.” 
 

E. International Plumbing Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, Inc. 
including: 
 
1. Appendix E (Sizing of Water Piping System) 

 
2. Appendix F (Structural Safety) 
 
3. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 

 
b. Amend section 106.6.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] 

with “per the adopted fee schedule.” 
 

c. Amend section 106.6.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per 
the Building Code Ordinance, Section 106 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building 
Permit Fees.” 

 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 17 
 

d. Amend section 108.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with 
“per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 107 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 

e. Amend section 108.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording after “shall be liable” 
with “per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 107 VIOLATIONS AND 
PENALTIES.” 

 
f. Delete section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 
g. Amend section 305.4.1 Sewer depth by replacing the first [NUMBER] with “12” and 

the second [NUMBER] with “12.” 
 

h. Amend section 312.3 Drainage and vent air test by deleting “Plastic piping shall not 
be tested using air.” 

 
i. Amend section 405.3.1 Water closets, urinals, lavatories and bidets by adding the 

following: 
 

Exception.  Side clearances for accessible or ambulatory water closets shall comply with     
ICC/ANSI A117.1. 

 
j. Amend section 504.6 Requirements for discharge piping requirement 2 by adding 

“or discharge at least 6 inches above grade when discharging outdoors.” 
 

k. Amend section 504.6 Requirements for discharge piping requirement #5 by deleting 
the words “to the floor.” 

 
l. Amend section 701.2 Sewer required by adding “Use of a portable toilet is allowed 

on a temporary basis during construction or repair of an approved private sewage-
disposal system and is not to be used as a permanent sanitary source.” 

 
m. Amend section 903.1 Roof extension by replacing [NUMBER] with “12.” 

 
F. International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, Inc. 

including: 
 
1. Appendix A (Sizing and Capacities of Gas Piping) 

 
2. Appendix B (Sizing of Venting Systems Serving Appliances Equipped with Draft Hoods, 

Category I Appliances and Appliances Listed for Use with Type B Vents) 
 

3. Appendix C (Exit Terminals of Mechanical Draft and Direct-vent Venting Systems) 
 

4. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 

 
b. Amend section 106.6.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] with 

“per the adopted fee schedule.” 
 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 18 
 

c. Amend section 106.6.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per 
the Building Code Ordinance, Section 106 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building 
Permit Fees.” 

d. Amend section 108.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with 
“per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 107 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 

 
e. Amend section 108.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording after “shall be liable” 

with “per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 10 7 VIOLATIONS AND 
PENALTIES.” 

 
f. Delete Section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 
g. Amend section 306.3 Appliances in attics by replacing “largest appliance” with “largest 

component of the appliance.” 
 

h. Amend section 306.4 Appliances under floors by replacing “largest appliance” with 
“largest component of the appliance.” 

 
i. Amend section 401.2 Liquefied petroleum gas storage by adding “Installation and 

placement of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) tanks that supply a LPG piping system 
regulated by this Code must be permitted and inspected.” 

 
j. Amend section 404.12 Minimum burial depth by replacing “except as provided for in 

section 404.12.1” with “for metal piping and a minimum depth of 18 inches (457 mm) 
below grade for plastic piping.” 

 
k. Delete section 404.12.1 Individual outside appliances. 

 
G. International Mechanical Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, 

Inc. including: 
 
1. Appendix A (Chimney Connector Pass-throughs) 

 
2. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 
 

b. Amend section 106.5.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] with 
“per the adopted fee schedule.” 

 
c. Amend section 106.5.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per 

the Building Code Ordinance, Section 106 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building 
Permit Fees.” 

 
d. Amend section 108.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with 

“per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 107 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 
 

e. Amend section 108.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording after “shall be liable” 
with “per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 107 VIOLATIONS AND 
PENALTIES.” 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 19 
 

 
f. Delete section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 
g. Amend section 306.5.1 Sloped roofs by adding “Exception: This section shall not apply 

to group R-3 occupancies.” 
 

h. Amend section 505.1 Domestic systems by adding “Changes in size or direction shall be 
accomplished with an approved transition fitting.” 

 
i. Amend section 1004.1 Standards by replacing the wording after “UL 834” with “Boilers 

shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the ASME Boiler and Pressure 
Vessel Code, and Arizona Boiler Rules, Title 20 Chapter 5.” 

 
H. International Swimming Pool and Spa Code, 2012 edition as published by the International 

Code Council, Inc. as well as the following amendments: 
 
1. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila County.” 

 
2. Amend section 105.6.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] with “as 

per the adopted fee schedule.” 
 

3. Amend section 105.6.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per the 
Building Code Ordinance, Section 106 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building Permit 
Fees.” 

 
4. Amend section 107.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with “per 

the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 107 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 
 

5. Amend sect 107.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording in this section with “per the 
Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 107 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 

 
6. Delete section 108 MEANS OF APPEAL. 
 
7. Amend section 305.2.1 Barrier height and clearances by deleting “48 inches” replacing it 

with “60 inches.” 
 
8.  Amend section 305.3.2 Double or multiple gates by deleting “18 inches (457 mm)” and  
     replacing it with it with “24 inches (610 mm).” 
 
9.  Amend section 305.3.3 Latches by deleting “Where the release mechanism of the self-   
     latching device is located less than 54 inches (1372 mm) from grade, the release mechanism    
     shall be located on the vessel side of the gate at least 3 inches below the top of the gate, and  
     the barrier shall not have openings greater than ½ inch (12.7 mm) within 18 inches (457 mm)  
     of the release mechanism” and replacing it with “The release mechanism of the self-latching  
     device shall be located at least 54 inches (1372 mm) from grade, the release mechanism shall  
     be located on the vessel side of the gate at least 5 inches (127 mm) below the top of the gate, 
     and the gate and barrier shall not have openings greater than ½ inch (12.7 mm) within 24 
     inches (610 mm) of the release mechanism. 

 
I.   International Energy Conservation Code, 2012 edition as published by the International  Code 
Council, Inc. is adopted as an optional/non required standard.  If an applicant requests to  follow the code 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 20 
 

at the time of plan submission and the construction complies with the code, the  County  shall note such 
compliance on the Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
J.  Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities ICC A117.1-2009 as  published by the  

  International Code Council, Inc., as well as the following amendments: 
 
1. Amend section 203 Administration by adding “The procedures and methods used to 

administer and enforce this Code shall be the same as those described in the following 
portions of the 2012 International Building Code: 
a. Section 102 APPLICABILITY 
b. Part 2 ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT excluding Section 106 FLOOR 

AND ROOF DESIGN LOADS.” 
 
             2.   The Federal 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design shall take precedence over this Code        
       when in conflict.   
 
K.  Manufactured Home and Factory Built Building Installation Standards, as published and  

provided by the State of Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing (OMH), including the following 
amendments: 

 
1. A permit shall not be issued for the installation or relocation of a manufactured home within 

the unincorporated areas of Gila County unless the home can be shown to comply with the 
manufactured home construction and safety standards adopted by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to 
provide proof of compliance with this requirement.  A label certifying that the manufactured 
home has been inspected and constructed in accordance with HUD requirements in effect at 
the time of manufacture constitutes proof of compliance provided that the date of 
manufacture is not prior to June 15, 1976. 

 
2. Park model trailers will be permitted and inspected in the same manner as manufactured 

homes. However, park model trailers are classified as recreational vehicles (RVs) and, as 
such, are subject to the zoning, building and other regulations that apply to RVs. 

 
3. Manufactured homes are designed and built to be used as single family residences.  The 

conversion of a manufactured home to another use is not regulated by HUD or OMH and 
must be done in compliance with the Building Code. 

 
4. Manufactured homes may be converted for use as storage buildings subject to the following 

requirements: 
 

a. The storage building must be accessory to an established residential use. 
b. The installation and location must comply with the zoning requirements for a 

manufactured home. 
c. The installation and location must comply with the zoning requirements for an accessory 

building. 
d. The manufactured home cannot be: 

i. larger than the residence. 
ii. attached to the residence. 

iii. used as a dwelling, guest house or any habitable use. 
iv. connected to water, sewer or gas. 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 21 
 

e. The manufactured home may be connected to electricity subject to the requirements of 
the adopted Building Code(s). 

f. The kitchen and bathroom appliances and fixtures must be removed. 
g. The manufactured home will be: 

i. permitted as an accessory building. 
ii. inspected per the Office of Manufactured Housing installation guidelines for 

manufactured homes. 
h. Any alterations, remodeling or additions to the manufactured home will be permitted 

separately and inspected per the applicable Building Code(s). 
i. The Gila County Assessor’s Notice of Affixture is required. 
j. The HUD label must be removed and surrendered to Gila County. 

 
L. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-864, at least three copies of 

this Building Code shall be filed in the office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and kept 
available for public use and inspection.  For the purpose of making this Building Code accessible to the 
public, the offices of Community Development are hereby designated branch offices of the Office of 
the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  One copy of this Building Code will be kept in the office of the 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  One copy of this Building Code will be kept in the Globe office of 
Community Development.  One copy of this Building Code will be kept in the Payson office of 
Community Development. 

 
SECTION 105 
BUILDING PERMITS 
 

A. Application for a building permit must be filed for all proposed construction within the County 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 2, Article 9, § 11-321 and as required by 
this Ordinance.  Permit applications will normally be accepted Monday through Friday 
(excluding holidays) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. at: 
 
1. Gila County Community Development 

745 N. Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501 
 

2. Gila County Community Development 
608 E. Highway 260 
Payson, AZ 85541 

 
Applications may be submitted electronically or by mail in certain cases with prior arrangements. 
 

B. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 32, Chapter 10, Article 3, § 32-1151, a permit shall not 
be issued to any person(s) who propose to contract the performance of any construction or 
improvement regulated by this Code unless that person possesses a valid, unexpired and 
unrevoked Contractor’s license issued by the Registrar of Contractors of the State of Arizona. 
 

C. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 32, Chapter 10, Article 3, § 32-1121.A.5, a 
permit may be issued to owners of property who build or improve structure(s) on such property 
and do the work themselves or with their own employees or with duly licensed contractors if the 
structure(s) are intended for occupancy solely by the owner, are not intended for occupancy by 
the public or employees or business visitors and the structure(s) are not intended for sale or rent. 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 22 
 

 
D. While an owner may be issued a permit for the installation of a manufactured home or a factory 

built building, per the Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing, the installation must be done by 
an installer licensed by OMH. 
 

E. Permitting procedures shall comply with the requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, 
Chapter 11, Article 1, § 11-1601 through § 11-1610. 

 
 
SECTION 106 
FEES AND REFUNDS 
 

A. Building Valuation Data used to calculate permit fees shall be per the adopted fee schedule. 
 

B. Permit Fees consisting of fees due for plan review, building permits, plumbing, mechanical, 
electrical and miscellaneous permits, as described in the respective codes and ordinances, shall be 
per the adopted fee schedule. 

 
C. Abandoned Permit Applications-Extensions and Fees 

An application for a permit shall be considered abandoned 180 days after the date of application 
unless a permit has been issued or the applicant is actively pursuing the issuance of a permit.  The 
Building Official may issue an extension(s) not to exceed 180 days.  Requests for extensions must 
be made in writing and justifiable cause demonstrated. 
 
1. There is no charge for the first request for an extension of a permit application. 

 
2. There will be a $25.00 fee required with the second request for an extension of the same 

permit application. 
 

3. There will be a $50.00 fee required with the third or any subsequent request for an extension 
of the same permit application. 

 
4.  Payment of a fee does not insure approval of a request for extension.  If a request for extension          
   is not granted, any fee(s) paid will be returned. 
 

D. Expired Permits-Extensions and Fees 
Every permit issued shall be considered expired unless the work authorized is commenced within 
180 days after issuance or the work authorized is suspended or abandoned for 180 days after the 
work is commenced.  The Building Official may issue an extension(s) not to exceed 180 days.  
Requests for extensions must be made in writing and justifiable cause demonstrated. 
 
1. There is no charge for the first request for an extension of a permit. 

 
2. There will be a $25.00 fee required with the second request for an extension of the same 

permit. 
 

3. There will be a $50.00 fee required with the third or any subsequent request for an extension 
of the same permit. 

 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 23 
 

  4. Payment of a fee does not insure approval of a request for extension.  If a request for   
     extension is not granted, any fee(s) paid will be returned. 

 
E. Re-Inspection Fees 

In addition to any fees already paid, re-inspection fees may be assessed per the adopted fee 
schedule, at the Building Official’s discretion, or for any one or more of the following reasons 
when, upon the inspector’s arrival at a requested inspection: 
 
1. Access to the site is obstructed. 

 
2. The site is not accessible to the inspector. 

 
3. The permit is not posted on site. 

 
4. The approved plans are not provided on site or are not accessible to the inspector. 

 
5. The inspection record is not provided on site or is not accessible to the inspector. 
 
6. The required work has not been completed. 
 
7. The required work has been covered or concealed. 

 
8. The work deviates from the approved plans without the required review and approval. 
 
9. A third inspection will be required for the same previously noted and uncorrected issues. 
 
10. When re-inspection fees are assessed, no further inspections will be performed until those  
        fees have been paid. 
 

F. Investigation Fees 
 

1. Any person who commences work prior to obtaining a permit as required by this Ordinance 
will be charged an additional fee to cover the costs of investigation and inspection(s) 
necessary to confirm code compliance. 

 
2. The investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the required permit fee and shall be 

charged in addition to the required permit fee.  The minimum amount to be collected may not 
be less than $50.00.  Payment of the investigation fee does not exempt any person from 
compliance with Building Code requirements or any other applicable regulations. 

 
G. Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building Permit Fees 

1. Requests for refunds must be made in writing. 
 

2. Requests for refunds will be accepted and processed not later than 180 days after the date the 
fees were paid. 

 
3. Refunds will only be issued to the person who paid the fees or his or her designee with 

notarized permission of the person who paid the fees. 
 

4. 100% of any fees paid or collected in error will be refunded. 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 24 
 

 
5. Not more than 80% of the plan review fee will be refunded when the permit is withdrawn or 

cancelled before any plan review work has been done. 
 

6. Not more than 80% of the building permit fee will be refunded when the permit is withdrawn 
or cancelled before any work has been done under such permit and before any inspections 
have been performed. 

 
7. A minimum of $25.00 will be retained for administrative processing of any request for 

refund. 
 

H. Exempt Structures-Site Plan Review Fees 
 

Per section R105.2 of the International Residential Code and section 105.2.1 of the 
International Building Code, certain structures are exempt from the requirement to obtain a 
building permit.  However, these structures are not exempt from Gila County floodplain, 
zoning and wastewater regulations.  To insure compliance, a site plan review and approval is 
required prior to the construction of exempt accessory buildings and decks. 

 
A. A minimum fee of $25.00 will be charged for this review and approval. 

 
I. Code Violation Recording Fees 

The minimum fee to record or un-record a violation to a property deed is $25.00. 
 

J. Temporary Certificate of Occupancy Issuance Fees 
Fee is for new or each extension request. 
1. $100.00 residential. 
2. $200.00 commercial. 

 
SECTION 107 
VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 
 

A. Criminal Penalties-Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, tenant, 
employee or otherwise, who violates any provision of this Ordinance or violates or fails to 
comply with any order or regulation made hereunder is guilty of a Class 2 Misdemeanor pursuant 
to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-815.  Each and every day during 
which the illegal activity, use or violation continues is a separate offense. 
 

B. Civil Penalties-Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, tenant, 
employee or otherwise, who violates any provisions of this Ordinance shall be subject to a civil 
penalty. Each day of a continuing violation is a separate violation for the purpose of imposing a 
separate penalty. The civil penalty for violations of this Ordinance shall be established by 
separate resolution of the Board of Supervisors, but shall not exceed the amount of the maximum 
fine for a Class 2 Misdemeanor.  An alleged violator shall be entitled to an administrative hearing 
and review as provided in Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 2,  §11-815.  The 
Board of Supervisors shall adopt written Rules of Procedures for such hearing and reviews. 

 
C. Remedies-Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 2, §11-815, an 

alleged violator who is served with Notice of Violation subject to civil penalty shall not be 
subject to criminal prosecution arising out of the same facts.  However, all other remedies 
provided for herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive. The conviction and punishment of any 



Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 25 
 

person hereunder shall not relieve such person from the responsibility to correct prohibited 
conditions or improvements nor prevent the enforcement, correction or removal thereof.  In 
addition to the other remedies provided in this article, the Board of Supervisors, the County 
Attorney, the Inspector, or any adjacent or neighboring property owner who shall be damaged by 
the violation of any provision of this Ordinance, may institute, in addition to the other remedies 
provided by law, injunction, mandamus, abatement or any other appropriate action, proceeding or 
proceedings to prevent or abate or remove such unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, 
alteration, maintenance or use. 

 
SECTION 108 
REDRESS 
 
Nothing in this Code precludes any individual, company or corporation from seeking redress through the 
courts concerning any portion of this Code or any ruling made pertaining to this Building Code. 
 
SECTION 109 
AMENDMENTS AND REVISIONS 
 

A. Amendments and revisions to this Ordinance or to this Building Code may be initiated by any 
member of the public, the Chief Building Official, the Advisory and Appeals Board, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission or the Board of Supervisors. 

 
B. Amendments and revisions to this Building Code or this Building Code Ordinance must be made 

in accordance with the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 2, Article 4, § 
11-251.01.05 and Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-861 and § 11-864. 

 
C. The duties of the Gila County Building Safety Advisory & Appeals Board include the duty to 

provide technical advice to the Building Official to assist in the formation and adoption of 
amendments and revisions to this Ordinance or to this Building Code.  The Advisory & Appeals 
Board shall hold at least one public hearing on such proposals prior to making a recommendation 
to the Board of Supervisors. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of December 2016. 
 
ATTEST:                                               GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
________________________    ___________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk                      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
            
 
 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
__________________________              
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney, 
Civil Bureau Chief 
for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 1 
 

 
 

 
BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF GILA 

COUNTY ARIZONA 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03 2016-03 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REPLACE PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED BUILDING CODE 
ORDINANCE NO. 2011-04 2014-03 AND ALL PRIOR BUILDING CODE ORDINANCES OF THE 
COUNTY OF GILA IN ITS ENTIRETY AND PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF THIS GILA 
COUNTY BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE BY REFERENCE REGULATING THE 
CONSTRUCTION, ALTERATION, CONVERSION, MOVEMENT, ENLARGEMENT, 
REPLACEMENT, REPAIR, EQUIPMENT, USE AND OCCUPANCY, LOCATION, MAINTENANCE, 
REMOVAL, AND DEMOLITION OF THE BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES AND 
APPURTENANCES TO SUCH BUILDING AND STRUCTURES IN GILA COUNTY; PROVIDING 
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND 
COLLECTION OF PERMIT FEES, AND PROVIDING FOR AN ADVISORY AND APPEALS 
BOARD. 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is empowered to make and enforce all  regulations not in 
conflict with general law, pursuant to A.R.S §11-251(31), and may adopt ordinances necessary or proper to carry 
out the County's responsibilities not otherwise limited or conflicting with other laws, pursuant to A.R.S . §11-
251.05(A); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has properly noticed this Ordinance in compliance with A.R.S 
§11-251.05(C); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors is authorized to adopt a Building Code by Reference in 
compliance with A.R.S. §11-861. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopts as 
amended the Building Code Ordinance of Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, which will go 
into effect 30 days after Board of Supervisors’ approval: 
 

BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF 
 GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
 
SECTION 101 

 
This Ordinance shall be known as the GILA COUNTY BUILDING CODE. 

 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 2 
 

 
 
SECTION 101.1 
PURPOSE AND INTENT 

 
The purpose of this Code is to provide minimum requirements to safeguard the public health, safety 
and general welfare through affordability, structural strength, means of egress facilities, stability, 
sanitation, light and ventilation, energy conservation and safety to life and property from fire and 
other hazards attributed to the built environment and to provide safety to fire fighters and emergency 
responders during emergency operations. 
 

SECTION 101.2 
ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. BUILDING SAFETY 
 
 The Building Safety Department shall administer the provisions of this Building Ordinance: 
 

1. The official responsible for the administration of this Ordinance shall be the Chief 
Building Official of Gila County.  The rules for administering this Ordinance are as noted 
in the respective Codes as adopted or as otherwise provided herein. 

 
2. All permits or licenses issued by authority of this Ordinance shall comply with the 

provisions of this Ordinance.  Any permit or license issued in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be considered null and void and have no effect. 

 
3. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall conflict with the exemptions provided pursuant 

to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-812 and § 11-865. 
 
      B.  ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 
 

 1.   Authority and Purpose 
 

a. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-862 there shall 
be and is hereby created the Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board.  Whenever the 
terms “Board”, “Advisory Board”, “Board of Appeals” or “Advisory and Appeals Board” 
appear in the Building Code or the Building Code Ordinance, they shall mean the 
Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board. 

 
b. This Advisory and Appeals Board is established to hear and decide appeals of orders, 

decisions, or determinations made by the Building Official relative to the application and 
interpretation of the Building Code and to determine the suitability of alternative 
materials and construction methods. 
 

c. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall also provide technical advice to the Building 
Official to assist in the formation and adoption of revisions or amendments to the 
Building Code and the Building Code Ordinance. 

 
d. The functions, duties and rules of procedure for conducting the business of the Advisory 

and Appeals Board shall be as specified in this section. 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 3 
 

 
 

2.  Members and Qualifications 
 
a. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall consist of seven (7) members appointed by and 
 serving at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors. Initial appointments shall be made as 
 follows: 

    i. Two members shall be appointed to four year terms. 
    ii. Two members shall be appointed for three year terms. 
  iii. Two members shall be appointed for two year terms. 
  iv. One member shall be appointed to a one year term. 
 

b. Thereafter, members shall be appointed for a term of four (4) years, staggered so that at 
 least one but not more than two terms expire each year. 
 
c. The Building Official shall serve as a non-voting ex officio member of the Board and 
 shall act as secretary to the Board. 
 

 d. Members of the Advisory and Appeals Board must be residents of Gila County but 
 cannot be employees of Gila County government. This Board shall include members 
 from the following categories to the extent that persons meeting the qualifications are 
 available and willing to serve: 

 .i An architect duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 
       .ii A professional engineer duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 

        .iii A general contractor duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 
      .iv A person representing the public.  
       .v A person engaged in the electrical, mechanical or plumbing trade. 

 
e.    Each member of this Board shall have substantial experience in at least one of the fields 
 covered by the Building Code and must be qualified by experience and training to decide 
 on matters pertaining to building construction. 
 
f.   Members of this Board shall serve without compensation except for reimbursement of 
 expenses as approved by the Board of Supervisors. This Board shall not be empowered to 
 incur debts, nor make any purchases nor enter into any contracts or agreements binding 
 Gila County. 

 
 3. Vacancies 
 
  a. A vacancy shall be filled in the same manner in which original appointments are made.  

  An appointment made to fill an unexpired term shall be made for the remainder of that  
  unexpired term only. 

 
 b. Board members may resign from their appointed position at any time for any reason.  
  However, a thirty (30) day written notice of resignation should be provided to the  
  Secretary of the Board. 

 
 c.  The Board of Supervisors may remove any member who is absent from more than three  
  (3) consecutive Board meetings or 50% or more of all Board meetings held during any  
  one calendar year or for other due cause as determined by the Board of Supervisors. ` 
  Written notice of removal shall be delivered to the member being removed and a copy  



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 4 
 

  shall be furnished to the Secretary of the Board who will provide the Chairman of the  
  Board with a copy. 

 
 d. Members shall give advance notice of any anticipated absence to the Secretary of the  
  Board to allow the Secretary to assure the presence of a quorum. 

 
 4.   Duties of the Board 

 
a. The Board shall hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by 

the Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the Building Code 
and to determine the suitability of alternative materials and construction methods. The 
Board shall also provide technical advice to the Building Official to assist in the 
formation and adoption of revisions or amendments to the Building Code and the 
Building Code Ordinance. 

 
b. The Board shall elect from its members a Chairman and Vice-Chairman by majority vote 

of the members at the first meeting of each calendar year to serve for a term of one 
calendar year. 

 
c. Legal Counsel shall be provided by the Gila County Attorney or a Deputy County 

Attorney. 
 

d. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings, shall conduct all hearings, and shall exercise 
and perform such other duties as may be required or assigned by the Board. The 
Chairman shall rule on procedure or on order of presentation at all Board meetings or 
hearings. 

 
e. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall assume the duties of the 

Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers and is subject to the same 
restrictions as the Chairman. 

 
f. In the absence of both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, a Chairman pro-tempore 

shall be elected by majority vote from among the members present. In the absence of the 
Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers and is subject to the same 
restrictions as the Chairman. 

 
g. All members present at a hearing or meeting of the Board shall vote unless abstaining due 

to a conflict of interest. In the event of a tie, the Chairman shall call for an additional or 
amended motion in an attempt to resolve the tie. If the tie cannot be resolved, the vote 
shall be reflected in the minutes. 

 
h. Any member of the Board who has a conflict of interest in any matter brought before the 

Board shall make known such interest in the record of the proceeding and shall refrain 
from voting upon or otherwise participating in the deliberations and decisions regarding 
such matter. 

 
i. The Secretary of the Board shall keep or cause to be kept minutes of the proceedings of 

the Board and shall provide an agenda to each Board member prior to the time set for any 
Board hearing or meeting. 

 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 5 
 

j. The Secretary of the Board shall be custodian of the records of the Board. 
 

 5.  Hearings and Meetings 
 

a. The Board shall meet at the call of the Chairman, or at the request of the Building 
Official, but at least two times or as needed in any calendar year. 

 
b. All Board meetings and hearings are subject to the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 

 
c. Notice of the date, time and place of any regular or special meeting or hearing of the 

Board, including an agenda of the matters to be addressed, shall be given at least seven 
(7) days prior to the meeting by posting notice to the general public. 

 
d. The Board may approve, approve with conditions and/or stipulations, deny or continue 

any issue brought before them. 
 

e. The Board shall be the judge of the qualifications of a person appearing as an expert 
witness. The Board shall determine the extent of consideration to be given to the 
testimony or evidence presented by a person appearing as an expert witness. 

 
f. During any hearing or meeting of the Board, The Building Official may be called upon to 

clarify the Code requirement(s) and/or support the position of the Building Safety 
Department on any particular order, decision or determination currently held or being 
enforced. 

 
    6. Quorum and Voting 

 
a. Four members constitute a quorum. If a quorum cannot be obtained, the meeting shall be 

rescheduled. 
 

b. Any vote of the Board shall be recorded in the minutes. If the vote is not unanimous, each 
member’s vote will be recorded individually. 

 
c. An approval of a motion shall be accomplished by an affirmative vote of a majority of 

members present. The motion is then considered to have carried or been passed. 
 
d. Any motion that fails to obtain a majority vote of the members present shall be 

considered a denial of the motion. The motion is considered to have failed or been 
denied. 

 
e. The Board may reconsider a motion which has passed if a member who voted in favor of 

the original motion makes a motion to reconsider within the same meeting and the motion 
to reconsider passes. 

 
  7.   Appeals 

 
a. Any person(s) may initiate an appeal of an order, decision, or determination made by the 

Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the Building Code. A 
Notice of Appeal must be filed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such an order, 
decision, or determination. The Board may refuse to grant a hearing of any case in which 
the appellant requests a waiver of any provision of the Building Code. 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 6 
 

 
b. A Notice of Appeal must be filed with the secretary of the Advisory and Appeals Board 

specifying the reasons and circumstances for the appeal. Appeals of orders, decisions, or 
determinations made by the Building Official relative to the applications and 
interpretation of the Building Code shall be made in writing and shall be directed to a 
specific order, decision or determination of the Building Official. The Board shall limit 
their consideration of the appeal to that specific order, decision or determination. 

 
c. The Secretary of the Board shall furnish copies of all records pertaining to the appeal to 

each member of the Board.  Appeals must be based on a claim that 
i. the true intent of the Building Code has been incorrectly interpreted or 

ii. the provisions of the Building Code do not apply or 
iii. the proposed form or method of construction is equal to or better than required by 

the Building Code. 
iv. A self-imposed or financial hardship does not constitute grounds for an appeal. 

The appellant must bear the cost of any tests or research required to substantiate 
appellant’s claim(s). 

 
d. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing for an appeal within fifteen 

(15) days of receipt of the Notice of Appeal. Public notice of the hearing shall be posted 
(7) days prior to the hearing date. An appeal stays all proceedings against the appellant in 
the matter appealed, unless the Building Official notifies the Board in writing that, in the 
Building Official’s opinion, a stay creates imminent danger to life or property. Under 
these circumstances, proceedings shall not be stayed except by court order or by 
determination of the Advisory and Appeals Board as a result of a properly noticed public 
meeting specifically called for that purpose. 

 
e. If the appellant fails to appear at a hearing, the Board may choose to continue the hearing 

to a later date at which the appellant can be present. 
 

f. In any hearing for appeal, the Building Official may be called upon to clarify the Code 
requirement(s) and/or to support the position of the Building Safety Department on the 
particular order, decision or determination being appealed. 

 
g. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall make a decision within fifteen (15) days of the 

date of the meeting called to decide the appeal. A decision in favor of the appellant shall 
be in the form of a written directive to the Building Official to carry out the decision of 
the Board subject to any conditions and/or stipulations required by the Board. In any case 
where the Board denies an appeal, the Board reserves the right to refuse to consider 
another appeal on the same subject matter and like circumstances for one year from the 
date of the hearing in question. 

 
h. Appeals will be heard at special meetings called and noticed pursuant to the requirements 

of this section. Hearing dates will be scheduled to allow for noticing and posting 
requirements to be met. 

 
i. In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall disclose any evidence, witness(es) 

or testimony, other than their own, that they intend to present at the hearing. Failure to 
disclose may be cause for the Board to delay the presentation of such evidence, 
witness(es) or testimony. 

 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 7 
 

j. The Board may request that the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney be present 
at appeal hearings. In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall disclose their 
intent to be represented by an attorney. The Board may choose to continue a hearing 
where an appellant is represented by an attorney and, for whatever reason, the County 
Attorney or Deputy County Attorney is unable to appear on behalf of the Board. 

 
k. Findings and decisions of the Advisory and Appeals Board shall be binding upon the 

Building Official and the appealing party subject to appeal to the Board of Supervisors. 
Only the appellant or the Building Official may appeal a decision of the Board to the 
Board of Supervisors. All findings, decisions and rulings made by the Board shall be 
reported in writing to the Board of Supervisors. 

 
 8.   Limitation of Authority 
 

 The Advisory and Appeals Board shall have no authority relative to interpretation of the  
 administrative provisions of the Building Code nor shall the Board be empowered to  waive 
 requirements of the Building Code. 

 
SECTION 102 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 Terms used in this Ordinance shall be defined as provided in the adopted Code books, appendices and 

amendments listed in Section 5 BUILDING CODE of this Ordinance, except as herein otherwise 
provided. 

 
 Building Official or Chief Building Official shall mean the Chief Building Official of Gila County. 
 
 Board shall mean the Gila County Board of Supervisors unless the reference is within Section 8 of 

this Ordinance and/or is clearly intended to mean the Advisory and Appeals Board. 
 
 Board of Supervisors shall mean the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
 Building Code or Gila County Building Code shall mean this Building Code Ordinance and, more 

specifically, the collection of code books, appendices and amendments listed in Section 5 BUILDING 
CODE of this Ordinance. 

 
 Building Code Ordinance or this Ordinance shall mean this complete Ordinance. 
 
 County or Gila County shall mean the unincorporated areas of Gila County excluding Indian 

Reservations. 
 
 HUD shall mean the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
 LPG shall mean liquefied petroleum gas. 
 
 OMH shall mean the State of Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing. 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 8 
 

SECTION 103 
ENERGY STANDARDS 

The following minimum energy values shall apply for all commercial and habitable residential 
buildings:  
 Roof: 2x4 construction R-13 
  2x6, 2x8, 2x10, 9.5” & 11.875 I-Joist construction R-19 
  2x12 construction R-30 
  All other dimensions and ceilings with attic spaces R-38 
  Alternative materials - Discretion of the Building Official 
  Wall: 2x4 construction and basements R-13 
  2x6 construction or greater R-19 
  Alternative materials - Discretion of the Building Official  
     Floor (wood or steel framed): R-19 
 Window U-Factor:  .35 
 Skylight U-Factor:  .55 
 

SECTION 103104 
BUILDING CODE 
 

The following described documents containing the following described codes, appendices and 
amendments are hereby adopted by reference, as if fully set out herein, as the Gila County Building 
Code pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-861. 

 
A. International Residential Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, 

Inc. including: 
 
1. Appendix A (Sizing and Capacities of Gas Piping) 
 
2. Appendix B (Sizing of Venting Systems Serving Appliances Equipped with Draft 

Hoods, Category I Appliances and Appliances Listed for Use with Type B Vents) 
 

3. Appendix C (Exit Terminals of Mechanical Draft and Direct-vent Venting Systems) 
 

4. Appendix G (Swimming Pool, Spas and Hot Tubs) 
 

5. Appendix H (Patio Covers) 
 

6. Appendix J (Existing Buildings and Structures) 
 

7. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend section R101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila County.” 
 

b. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 1. by adding “non-
habitable” after “similar”, and by adding “and the floor surface is not more than 30 inches 
above grade.  Floor area is measured using the outside dimensions of the foundation.”  after 
(18.58 m²)  and by adding “Detached accessory structures shall be located an approved 
distance from other structures and property lines.” 

 
c. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 2. by replacing the wording 

in this subsection with “Wood, wire, chain link and similarly constructed fences not over 6 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 9 
 

feet high measured from grade.  Rock, concrete, masonry and similarly constructed fences 
not over 4 feet high unless retaining earth measured from grade.” 

 
d. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 3. by deleting “are not over 

4 feet (1219 mm) in height measured from the bottom of the footing to the top of the wall” 
and replacing it with “will retain 24 48 inches or less of unbalanced fill.” 

 
e. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 10. by adding “Detached” 

before “Decks”, by deleting “are not attached to a dwelling and do not serve the exit door 
required by Section R311.4” and by adding “Detached accessory structures shall be located 
an approved distance from other structures and property lines.” 

 
f. Delete section R105.3.1.1 Determination of substantially approved or substantially 

damaged existing buildings in flood hazard areas. 
 

g. Delete section R112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 
 

h. Amend section R202 Definitions by adding SLEEPING ROOM.  A room within a 
structure consisting of a minimum floor area of 70 square feet and not less than 7 feet in 
any horizontal dimension, has a built in closet either for clothing or storage, and used 
primarily for sleeping. 

 
h.i. Replace Table R301.2(1) CLIMATIC AND GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA with 

the following table: 
 

 TABLE R301.2(1) AMENDED   
CLIMATIC and GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA for GILA COUNTY 

SNOW LOADS1 
BELOW 4,500 ft. elevation 4,500 to 6,000 ft. elevation ABOVE 6000 ft. elevation 

ROOF LIVE LOAD 20 PSF 2 ROOF LIVE LOAD 40PSF ROOF LIVE LOAD 40 PSF 3 
GROUND SNOW LOAD 28 PSF GROUND SNOW LOAD 57 PSF GROUND SNOW LOAD 57 PSF 3 

Includes: Christmas, Claypool, Cutter, 
Deer Creek Village, Doll Baby Ranch, 
Dripping Springs, Gisela, Globe, Gila 

County Fairgrounds, Greenback 
Valley, Hayden, Jakes Corner, Miami, 

North Bay Estates, Punkin Center, 
Roosevelt, Rye, Tonto Basin, Tonto 

Creek Shores, Wheatfields, 
Winkelman                                                                               

.                                                                                         

. 

Includes: Bear Flat, Beaver Valley, 
Bonita Creek Estates, Camp 

Geronimo, Christopher Creek, East 
Verde Park, El Capitan, Ellison Creek 
Estates, Flowing Springs, Geronimo 
Estates, Haigler Creek subdivision, 
Hunter Creek Ranch, Kohl's Ranch, 
Mesa Del Caballo, Oxbow Estates, 
Payson, Pine, Rose Creek Lodge, 
Round Valley, Strawberry, Tonto 

Natural Bridge, Tonto Village, Verde 
Glen, Whispering Pines, Young 

Includes: Canyon Creek Fish 
Hatchery, Colcord Mountain Estates, 
Diamond Point Lookout, El Capitan 

Peak, Gordon Canyon Ranch, 
Mazatzal Peak, Mead Ranch, 

Mountain Meadows, Mt. Ord, Nail 
Ranch, OW Ranch, Pinal Peak, 
Ponderosa Springs, Signal Peak, 

Tonto Creek Fish Hatchery, 
Washington Park                                                                        

. 
1. Some ground snow loads were interpolated from known roof snow loads.  
2. The minimum roof / live load required by Code = 20 psf  
3. or per historical data available.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 10 
 

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY 4, 5 WIND DESIGN 

B C County-wide 

Includes:  Christopher Creek, Doll 
Baby Ranch, East Verde Park, Gisela, 

Geronimo Estates, Haigler Creek, 
Hayden, Jake's Corner, Kohl's Ranch, 

Payson, Pine, Ponderosa Springs, 
Punkin Center, Rose Creek Ranch, 

Rye, Roosevelt, Roosevelt Lake 
Estates, Strawberry, Tonto Basin, 

Tonto Village, Wheatfields, 
Washington Park, Whispering Pines, 

Winkelman, Young 

Includes:  Chaparral Estates, Central 
Heights, Copper Canyon Ranches, 
Christmas Mine, Claypool, Cutter, 

Dripping Springs, Dripping Springs 
Rd., El Capitan, Gila County 

Fairgrounds, Globe, Hobbs Ranch 
Rd., Miami, Peridot, Pioneer Hills, 

Pioneer Pass Rd., Russell Gulch Rd., 
San Carlos, San Carlos Reservoir, Six 

Shooter Canyon 

SPEED:                                                                   
3 Second gust = 90 m.p.h.                                           

Fastest mile wind speed = 76 m.p.h.                                                          
.                                          

TOPOGRAPHIC EFFECTS:                                      
No                                                    

(Exposure B is presumed)                                                                                                                                                               
. 

4. See map on file in Community Development for more detailed information. 
5. Site Category D is presumed   

FACTORS AFFECTING DESIGN 
  BELOW 4,500 feet 4,500 feet and ABOVE 
WEATHERING Negligible Moderate   

FROST 
Bottom of footing must be 12" min. 
below undisturbed ground surface. 

Bottom of footing must be 12" min. 
below undisturbed ground surface and 

18" min. below finished grade. 
WINTER DESIGN TEMP Averages 28 degrees Averages 17 degrees 
MEAN ANNUAL 
TEMPERATURE Averages 65 degrees Averages 55 degrees6 
AIR FREEZING INDEX Less than 1500 cumulative degree days below freezing 
ICE BARRIER 
UNDERLAYMENT Not required 

TERMITES Moderate to heavy 
FLOOD HAZARDS As determined by the Gila County Floodplain Dept. and/or Engineer 
6. Based on Payson area. 
   
i.j. Amend Table R301.5 MINIMUM UNIFORMLY DISTRIBUTED LIVE LOADS by 

replacing the number “30” with “40” for habitable attics and attics with fixed stairs. 
 

j.k. Amend Table R301.5 MINIMUM UNIFORMLY DISTRIBUTED LIVE LOADS by 
replacing the number “20” with “40” for sleeping rooms. 
 

k.l. Amend Table R302.6 DWELLING/GARAGE SEPARATION by replacing all 
references to ½-inch with 5/8-inch Type X. 
 

l.m. Amend R302.7 section Under-stair protection by replacing 1/2-inch with 5/8-inch Type 
X.  

 
m.n. Amend section R305.1.1 Basements by adding “garages and porches” after the words 

“laundry rooms.” 
 

n.o. Amend section R310.5 Emergency escape windows under decks and porches by adding 
“relatively level and unobstructed” before the word “path” and by adding “by 36 inches ² 

o.p. Amend section R311.3.1 Floor elevations at the required egress doors by deleting “7 ¾ 
inches (196 mm)” and replacing it with “8 inches.” 

 
p.q. Amend section R311.3.2 Floor elevations for other exterior doors by deleting “7 ¾ 

inches (196 mm)” and replacing it with “8 inches.” 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 11 
 

 
q.r. Amend section R311.7.5.1 Risers by deleting “7 ¾ inches (196 mm)” and replacing it with 

“8 inches.” 
 
r.s. Amend section R312.1.2 Height by deleting “adjacent fixed seating.” 
 
s.t. Delete section R313.2 One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire systems. 

 
t.u. Amend section R403.1.4.1 Frost protection by deleting Exceptions: 1., 2., and 3.  

 
u.v. Amend section R502.3.3 Floor cantilevers by adding after Table R502.3.3(2) “All other 

floor cantilevers not pertaining to Table R502.3.3(1) and Table R502.3.3(2) shall be limited 
to a span of 48 inches without Building Official approval or engineered design.” 

 
v.w. Amend section 606.9.1 Horizontal lateral support in its entirety to read as follows: 

“Minimum reinforcement requirements for masonry elements shall consist of reinforcement 
by at least one #4 rebar, in both the horizontal and vertical directions at no further than 4 
feet on center.  Additionally, a single #4 rebar is required within 6 inches of the top of the 
masonry walls, placed horizontally and within 6 inches vertically of the end of the wall and 
at openings.”   Concrete walls will have the same requirements as masonry except the 
horizontal reinforcement will be at not more than 2 feet on center. 

 
w.x. Amend section R802.5 Allowable rafter spans by adding “Cantilevered portions of rafters 

that are not notched shall be limited to a span of 48 inches without building official 
approval or engineered design.” 

 
x.y. Delete Amend Chapter 11 Energy Efficiency to state this chapter is optional and not 

required.  If an applicant requests to follow this chapter at the time of plan submission and 
the construction complies with this chapter, the County will note such compliance on the 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
y.z. Amend section M1503.1 General by adding “Changes in duct size or direction shall be 

made through the use of an approved mechanical connection.  Taped connections and/or 
transitions are prohibited.” 

 
z.aa. Amend section G2412.2 Liquefied petroleum gas storage by adding “Installation and 

placement of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) tanks that supply a LPG piping system 
regulated by this Code must be permitted and inspected.” 

 
aa.bb. Amend section G2415.12 Minimum burial depth by deleting “except as provided for in 

Section G2415.12.1” and replacing it with “for metal piping and a minimum depth of 18 
inches (457 mm) below grade for plastic piping” 

 
bb.cc. Delete section G2415.12.1 Individual outside appliances. 

 
cc.dd. Amend section P2503.5.1 Rough plumbing by deleting “for piping systems other than 

plastic,”. 
 

dd.ee. Amend section P2602.1 General by adding “Use of a portable toilet is allowed on a 
temporary basis during construction or repair of an approved private sewage-disposal 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 12 
 

system and is not to be used as permanent sanitary source.  Toilet facilities shall be 
provided for construction workers and such facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary 
condition.” 

 
ee.ff. Delete section P2904.1.1 Required sprinkler locations. 

 
ff.gg. Amend section E3404.9 Energized parts guarded against accidental contact by adding 

“Ground mounted photovoltaic systems containing energized parts operating at 50 volts or 
more shall be guarded against accidental contact by approved enclosures.” 

 
gg.hh. Amend section E3903.2 Habitable rooms by adding “The wall switch shall be readily 

accessible and located in close proximity to the entrance of the room being entered.” 
 

hh.ii. Amend section E3903.3 Additional locations by adding “and the interior” after the word 
“exterior.” 

 
B. International Building Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, Inc. 

including: 
 
1. Appendix C (Group U-Agricultural Buildings) 
 
2. Appendix H (Signs) 
 
3. Appendix I (Patio Covers) 
 
4. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend Section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 

 
b. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 1. by adding “non-

habitable” after “similar” and by adding “and the floor surface is not more than 30 inches 
above grade.  Floor area is measured using the outside dimensions of the foundation.”  
after (11 m²)  and by adding “Detached accessory structures shall be located an approved 
distance from other structures and property lines.” 

 
c. Amend section 105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 2 by replacing the wording 

in this subsection with “Wood, wire, chain link and similarly constructed fences not over 
6 feet high measured from grade.  Rock, concrete, masonry and similarly constructed 
fences not over 4 feet high unless retaining earth measured from grade.” 

 
d. Amend section R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Building 4. by deleting “are not 

over 4 feet (1219 mm) in height measured from the bottom of the footing to the top of the 
wall” and replacing it with “will retain 24 48 inches or less of unbalanced fill.” 

 
e. Delete section 113 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 
f. Amend section 202 Definitions by adding the following definitions: 

 
i. Assisted Living Center.  An assisted living facility that provides resident rooms or  



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 13 
 

residential units to eleven or more residents. 
 
ii. Assisted Living Facility.  A residential care institution, including adult foster care, 

that provides or contracts to provide supervisory care services, personal care services 
or directed care services on a continuing basis. 

 
iii. Assisted Living Home.  An assisted living facility that provides resident rooms to 

ten or fewer residents. 
 
iv. Directed Care Service.  Care of residents, including personal care services, who are 

incapable of recognizing danger, summoning assistance, expressing need, or making  
basic care decisions. 

 
v. Supervisory Care Service.  General supervision, including daily awareness of 

resident functioning and continuing needs. 
 

g. Amend section 202 Definitions by replacing the definition for Personal Care Service 
with “Assistance with activities of daily living that can be performed by persons without 
professional skills or professional training and includes the coordination or provision of 
intermittent nursing services and administration of medications or treatments.” 
 

h. Amend section 308.3 Institutional Group I-1 to read as follows: 
“This occupancy shall include buildings, structures or portions thereof for more than 16 
persons who reside on a 24 hour basis in a supervised environment, receive custodial  
care, and are capable of self-preservation, except as provided for assisted living centers.   
This group shall include, but not be limited to, the following:” 
 

i. Amend section 308.3 Institutional Group I-1 by replacing “Assisted living facilities” 
with “Assisted living centers.” 

 
j. Amend section 308.3.2 Six to sixteen person receiving care by adding “, except as 

provided for assisted living homes” after the words “Group R-4.” 
 

k. Amend section 308.4 Institutional Group I-2 by replacing “Nursing homes” with 
“Assisted Living Centers.” 

 
l. Delete section 308.4.1 Five or fewer persons receiving care. 

 
m. Amend section 310.5.1 Care facilities within a dwelling to read as follows: 

“Licensed care facilities for 10 or fewer persons receiving care that are within a single-
family dwelling are permitted, provided that the requirements of Section 425 for this 
Code are met.” 
 

n. Amend section 310.6 Residential Group R-4 by adding “except as provided for assisted 
living homes” after the words “self preservation.” 
 

o. Amend section 310.6 Residential Group R-4 by replacing “Assisted living facilities” 
with “Assisted living homes.” 

 
p. Amend section  310.6 Residential Group R-4 by adding “and Section 425” after the 

words “in this Code.” 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 14 
 

 
q. Amend section 310 Residential Group R by adding the following sections: 

 
i. 310.6.1 Condition 1.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 

provide supervisory care services, in which occupants are capable of self-
preservation by responding to an emergency situation without physical assistance 
from staff.  Condition facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified as 
Group I-2. 

 
ii. 310.6.2 Condition 2.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 

provide personal or directed care services, in which occupants are incapable of self 
preservation by responding to an emergency situation without physical assistance 
from staff. Condition 2 facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified as 
Group I-2. 

 
r. Amend Chapter 4 Special Detailed Requirements Based On Use and Occupancy by 

adding the following Section 425 ASSISTED LIVING HOMES: 
 

i. 425.1 Applicability.  The provisions of this section shall apply to a building or part 
thereof housing not more than 10 persons, excluding staff, on a 24-hour basis, who 
because of age, mental disability or other reasons, live in a supervised residential 
environment, which provides licensed care services. Except as specifically required by 
this division, R-4 occupancies shall meet all the applicable provisions of Group R-3. 

 
ii. 425.2 General.  Building or portions of buildings classified as R-4 may be 

constructed of any materials allowed by this Code, shall not exceed two stories in 
height nor be located above the second story in any building and shall not exceed two 
thousand square feet above the first story, except as provided in Section 506. 

 
iii. 425.3 Special Provisions.  R-4 occupancies having more than 2000 square feet 

above the first story shall be of not less than one-hour fire-resistive construction 
throughout. 

 
iv. 425.3.1 Mixed Uses.  R-4 occupancies shall be separated from other occupancies as 

provided in Table 508.4. 
 

v. 425.4 Access and Means of Egress Facilities 
 

vi. 425.4.1 Accessibility.  R-4 occupancies shall be provided with at least one accessible 
route as provided in Section 1104.1. 

 
vii. 425.4.2 Exits 

 
viii. 425.4.2.1 Number of Exits.  Every story, basement, or portion thereof shall have not 

less than two exits.  Exception: Basements and stories above the first floor containing 
no sleeping rooms used by residents may have only one means of egress as provided 
in Chapter 10. 

 
ix. 425.4.2.2 Distance to Exits.  The maximum travel distance shall comply with 

Section 1016, except that the maximum travel distance from the center point of any 
sleeping room to an exit shall not exceed 75 feet. 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 15 
 

 
x. 425.4.2.3 Emergency Exit Illumination.  In event of a power failure, exit 

illumination shall be automatically provided from an emergency system powered by 
storage batteries or an onsite generator set installed in accordance with the National 
Electric Code. 

 
xi. 425.4.2.4 Emergency Escape and Rescue.  R-4 occupancies shall comply with the 

requirements of Section 1029, except that Exception #1 does not apply to R-4 
occupancies. 

 
xii. 425.4.2.5 Delayed Egress Locks.  In R-4 Condition 2 occupancies, delayed egress 

locks shall be permitted in accordance with Section 1008.1.9.7, Items 1, 2, 4, 5, and 6.  
 

xiii. 425.5 Smoke Alarms and Sprinkler Systems. 
 

xiv. 425.5.1 Smoke Alarms.  R-4 occupancies shall be provided with smoke alarms 
installed in accordance with Section 907.2.11.2, and such alarms shall be installed in 
all habitable rooms. 

 
xv. 425.5.2 Sprinkler Systems.  R-4 occupancies shall be provided with a sprinkler 

system installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3.  Sprinkler systems installed 
under this section shall be installed throughout to include attached garages and 
Condition 2 facilities including any concealed spaces or spaces containing 
combustible materials.  Such systems may not contain unsupervised valves between 
the domestic water riser control valve and the sprinklers. In Condition 2 occupancies, 
such systems shall contain water flow switches electrically supervised by an 
approved supervising station, and shall sound an audible signal at a constantly 
attended location. 

 
s. Amend section 1008.1.2 Door swing by replacing the wording in exception 4 with “Doors 

within or serving a single dwelling unit in Groups R-2 and R-3, as applicable in Section 
101.2 and R-4.” 

 
t. Amend section 1013.4 Opening limitations by adding “For guards required more than 8 

feet above grade, when a guard is required above the first floor of a building, the 
requirements of this section cannot be met through the use of horizontal members.” 

 
u. Amend section 1101.2 Design by replacing the wording with “Buildings and facilities 

shall be designed and constructed to be accessible in accordance with this Code and ICC 
A117.1, and the “Arizonans with Disabilities Act” (Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 41, 
Chapter 9, Article 8), and the “Arizonans with Disabilities Act Implementing Rules” 
(Arizona Administrative Code, Title 10, Chapter 3, Article 4), which rules incorporate the 
federal “2010 Americans with Disabilities Act Standards for Accessible Design,” and 
shall apply to new construction and alterations. 

 
v. Delete CHAPTER 13  ENERGY EFFICIENCY. 

 
w. Amend Table 1607.1 MINIMUM UNIFORMLY DISTRIBUTED LIVE LOADS by 

replacing the number “30” with “40” for Residential One and two-family dwellings 
habitable attics and sleeping areas. 

 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 16 
 

x. Delete section 1612 Flood Loads 
 

y. Delete section 3109 Swimming Pool Enclosures and Safety Devices 
 

z. Amend section 3412 Applicability by replacing [DATE TO BE INSERTED BY THE 
JURISDICTION…] with “October 1, 1986.” 

 
C. International Existing Building Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code 

Council, Inc. as well as the following amendments: 
 
1. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila County.” 

 
2. Delete section 112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 
3. Amend section 1401.2 Applicability by replacing [DATE TO BE INSERTED BY THE 

JURISDICTION…] with “October 1, 1986.” 
 

D. National Electrical Code, 2011 edition as published by the National Fire Protection Association 
including the following amendment: 
 
1. Amend section 90.4 Enforcement by adding “The procedures and methods used to 

administer and enforce this Code shall be the same as those described in the following 
portions of the 2012 International Building Code: 
 
a. Section 102 APPLICABILITY 

 
b. Part 2 ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT excluding Section 106 FLOOR 

AND ROOF DESIGN LOADS.” 
 

2. Amend section 110.27(A) by adding “Ground mounted photovoltaic systems containing live 
parts operating at 50 volts or more shall be guarded against accidental contact by approved 
enclosures secured and accessible only to authorized personnel.” 
 

E. International Plumbing Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, Inc. 
including: 
 
1. Appendix E (Sizing of Water Piping System) 

 
2. Appendix F (Structural Safety) 
 
3. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 

 
b. Amend section 106.6.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] 

with “per the adopted fee schedule.” 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 17 
 

c. Amend section 106.6.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per 
the Building Code Ordinance, Section 1056 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building 
Permit Fees.” 

 
d. Amend section 108.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with 

“per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 1067 VIOLATIONS AND 
PENALTIES.” 

 
e. Amend section 108.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording after “shall be liable” 

with “per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 1067 VIOLATIONS AND 
PENALTIES.” 

 
f. Delete section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 
g. Amend section 305.4.1 Sewer depth by replacing the first [NUMBER] with “12” and 

the second [NUMBER] with “12.” 
 

h. Amend section 312.3 Drainage and vent air test by deleting “Plastic piping shall not 
be tested using air.” 

 
h.i. Amend section 405.3.1 Water closets, urinals, lavatories and bidets by adding the 

following: 
 

Exception.  Side clearances for accessible or ambulatory water closets shall comply with     
ICC/ANSI A117.1. 

 
i.j. Amend section 504.6 Requirements for discharge piping requirement 2 by adding “or 

discharge at least 6 inches above grade when discharging outdoors.” 
 

j.k. Amend section 504.6 Requirements for discharge piping requirement #5 by deleting 
the words “to the floor.” 
 

k.l. Amend section 701.2 Sewer required by adding “Use of a portable toilet is allowed on 
a temporary basis during construction or repair of an approved private sewage-disposal 
system and is not to be used as a permanent sanitary source.” 
 

l.m. Amend section 903.1 Roof extension by replacing [NUMBER] with “12.” 
 

F. International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, Inc. 
including: 
 
1. Appendix A (Sizing and Capacities of Gas Piping) 

 
2. Appendix B (Sizing of Venting Systems Serving Appliances Equipped with Draft Hoods, 

Category I Appliances and Appliances Listed for Use with Type B Vents) 
 

3. Appendix C (Exit Terminals of Mechanical Draft and Direct-vent Venting Systems) 
 

4. As well as the following amendments: 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 18 
 

a. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 

 
b. Amend section 106.6.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] with 

“per the adopted fee schedule.” 
 

c. Amend section 106.6.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per 
the Building Code Ordinance, Section 1056 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building 
Permit Fees.” 

 
d. Amend section 108.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with 

“per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 1067 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 
 

e. Amend section 108.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording after “shall be liable” 
with “per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 106 7 VIOLATIONS AND 
PENALTIES.” 

 
f. Delete Section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 
g. Amend section 306.3 Appliances in attics by replacing “largest appliance” with “largest 

component of the appliance.” 
 

h. Amend section 306.4 Appliances under floors by replacing “largest appliance” with 
“largest component of the appliance.” 

 
i. Amend section 401.2 Liquefied petroleum gas storage by adding “Installation and 

placement of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) tanks that supply a LPG piping system 
regulated by this Code must be permitted and inspected.” 

 
j. Amend section 404.12 Minimum burial depth by replacing “except as provided for in 

section 404.12.1” with “for metal piping and a minimum depth of 18 inches (457 mm) 
below grade for plastic piping.” 

 
k. Delete section 404.12.1 Individual outside appliances. 

 
G. International Mechanical Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code Council, 

Inc. including: 
 
1. Appendix A (Chimney Connector Pass-throughs) 

 
2. As well as the following amendments: 
 

a. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila 
County.” 
 

b. Amend section 106.5.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] with 
“per the adopted fee schedule.” 

 
c. Amend section 106.5.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per 

the Building Code Ordinance, Section 1056 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building 
Permit Fees.” 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 19 
 

 
d. Amend section 108.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with 

“per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 1067 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 
 

e. Amend section 108.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording after “shall be liable” 
with “per the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 1067 VIOLATIONS AND 
PENALTIES.” 

 
f. Delete section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 
g. Amend section 306.5.1 Sloped roofs by adding “Exception: This section shall not apply 

to group R-3 occupancies.” 
 

h. Amend section 505.1 Domestic systems by adding “Changes in size or direction shall be 
accomplished with an approved transition fitting.” 

 
i. Amend section 1004.1 Standards by replacing the wording after “UL 834” with “Boilers 

shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the ASME Boiler and Pressure 
Vessel Code, and Arizona Boiler Rules, Title 20 Chapter 5.” 

 
H. International Swimming Pool and Spa Code, 2012 edition as published by the International 

Code Council, Inc. as well as the following amendments: 
 
1. Amend section 101.1 Title by replacing [NAME OF JURISDICTION] with “Gila County.” 

 
2. Amend section 105.6.2 Fee schedule by replacing [JURISDICTION TO INSERT...] with “as 

per the adopted fee schedule.” 
 

3. Amend section 105.6.3 Fee refunds by replacing the wording in this section with “per the 
Building Code Ordinance, Section 1056 G Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building Permit 
Fees.” 

 
4. Amend section 107.4 Violation penalties by replacing the wording in this section with “per 

the Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 1067 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 
 

5. Amend sect 107.5 Stop work orders by replacing the wording in this section with “per the 
Building Code Ordinance, SECTION 1067 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.” 

 
6. Delete section 108 MEANS OF APPEAL. 
 
7. Amend section 305.2.1 Barrier height and clearances by deleting “48 inches” replacing it 

with “60 inches.” 
 
8.  Amend section 305.3.2 Double or multiple gates by deleting “18 inches (457 mm)” and  
     replacing it with it with “24 inches (610 mm).” 
 
9.  Amend section 305.3.3 Latches by deleting “Where the release mechanism of the self-   
     latching device is located less than 54 inches (1372 mm) from grade, the release mechanism    
     shall be located on the vessel side of the gate at least 3 inches below the top of the gate, and  
     the barrier shall not have openings greater than ½ inch (12.7 mm) within 18 inches (457 mm)  
     of the release mechanism” and replacing it with “The release mechanism of the self-latching  



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 20 
 

     device shall be located at least 54 inches (1372 mm) from grade, the release mechanism shall  
     be located on the vessel side of the gate at least 5 inches (127 mm) below the top of the gate, 
     and the gate and barrier shall not have openings greater than ½ inch (12.7 mm) within 24 
     inches (610 mm) of the release mechanism.” 

 
I. International Energy Conservation Code, 2012 edition as published by the International Code 

Council, Inc. is adopted as an optional/non required standard.  If an applicant requests to follow 
the code at the time of plan submission and the construction complies with the code, the County 
shall note such compliance on the Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

I.J. Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities ICC A117.1-2009 as  published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., as well as the following amendments: 
 
1. Amend section 203 Administration by adding “The procedures and methods used to 

administer and enforce this Code shall be the same as those described in the following 
portions of the 2012 International Building Code: 
a. Section 102 APPLICABILITY 
b. Part 2 ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT excluding Section 106 FLOOR 

AND ROOF DESIGN LOADS.” 
 
             2.   The Federal 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design shall take precedence over this Code        
       when in conflict.   
 

J.K. Manufactured Home and Factory Built Building Installation Standards, as published and 
provided by the State of Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing (OMH), including the 
following amendments: 
 
1. A permit shall not be issued for the installation or relocation of a manufactured home within 

the unincorporated areas of Gila County unless the home can be shown to comply with the 
manufactured home construction and safety standards adopted by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to 
provide proof of compliance with this requirement.  A label certifying that the manufactured 
home has been inspected and constructed in accordance with HUD requirements in effect at 
the time of manufacture constitutes proof of compliance provided that the date of 
manufacture is not prior to June 15, 1976. 

 
2. Park model trailers will be permitted and inspected in the same manner as manufactured 

homes. However, park model trailers are classified as recreational vehicles (RVs) and, as 
such, are subject to the zoning, building and other regulations that apply to RVs. 

 
3. Manufactured homes are designed and built to be used as single family residences.  The 

conversion of a manufactured home to another use is not regulated by HUD or OMH and 
must be done in compliance with the Building Code. 

 
4. Manufactured homes may be converted for use as storage buildings subject to the following 

requirements: 
 

a. The storage building must be accessory to an established residential use. 
b. The installation and location must comply with the zoning requirements for a 

manufactured home. 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 21 
 

c. The installation and location must comply with the zoning requirements for an accessory 
building. 

d. The manufactured home cannot be: 
i. larger than the residence. 

ii. attached to the residence. 
iii. used as a dwelling, guest house or any habitable use. 
iv. connected to water, sewer or gas. 

e. The manufactured home may be connected to electricity subject to the requirements of 
the adopted Building Code(s). 

f. The kitchen and bathroom appliances and fixtures must be removed. 
g. The manufactured home will be: 

i. permitted as an accessory building. 
ii. inspected per the Office of Manufactured Housing installation guidelines for 

manufactured homes. 
h. Any alterations, remodeling or additions to the manufactured home will be permitted 

separately and inspected per the applicable Building Code(s). 
i. The Gila County Assessor’s Notice of Affixture is required. 
j. The HUD label must be removed and surrendered to Gila County. 

 
K.L. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-864, at least three copies 

of this Building Code shall be filed in the office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and kept 
available for public use and inspection.  For the purpose of making this Building Code accessible 
to the public, the offices of Community Development are hereby designated branch offices of the 
Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  One copy of this Building Code will be kept in 
the office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  One copy of this Building Code will be kept 
in the Globe office of Community Development.  One copy of this Building Code will be kept in 
the Payson office of Community Development. 

 
SECTION 104105 
BUILDING PERMITS 
 

A. Application for a building permit must be filed for all proposed construction within the County 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 2, Article 9, § 11-321 and as required by 
this Ordinance.  Permit applications will normally be accepted Monday through Friday 
(excluding holidays) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. at: 
 
1. Gila County Community Development 

745 N. Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501 
 

2. Gila County Community Development 
608 E. Highway 260 
Payson, AZ 85541 

 
Applications may be submitted electronically or by mail in certain cases with prior arrangements. 
 

B. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 32, Chapter 10, Article 3, § 32-1151, a permit shall not 
be issued to any person(s) who propose to contract the performance of any construction or 
improvement regulated by this Code unless that person possesses a valid, unexpired and 
unrevoked Contractor’s license issued by the Registrar of Contractors of the State of Arizona. 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 22 
 

C. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 32, Chapter 10, Article 3, § 32-1121.A.5, a 
permit may be issued to owners of property who build or improve structure(s) on such property 
and do the work themselves or with their own employees or with duly licensed contractors if the 
structure(s) are intended for occupancy solely by the owner, are not intended for occupancy by 
the public or employees or business visitors and the structure(s) are not intended for sale or rent. 
 

D. While an owner may be issued a permit for the installation of a manufactured home or a factory 
built building, per the Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing, the installation must be done by 
an installer licensed by OMH. 
 

E. Permitting procedures shall comply with the requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, 
Chapter 11, Article 1, § 11-1601 through § 11-1610. 

 
 
SECTION 105106 
FEES AND REFUNDS 
 

A. Building Valuation Data used to calculate permit fees shall be per the adopted fee schedule. 
 

B. Permit Fees consisting of fees due for plan review, building permits, plumbing, mechanical, 
electrical and miscellaneous permits, as described in the respective codes and ordinances, shall be 
per the adopted fee schedule. 

 
C. Abandoned Permit Applications-Extensions and Fees 

An application for a permit shall be considered abandoned 180 days after the date of application 
unless a permit has been issued or the applicant is actively pursuing the issuance of a permit.  The 
Building Official may issue an extension(s) not to exceed 180 days.  Requests for extensions must 
be made in writing and justifiable cause demonstrated. 
 
1. There is no charge for the first request for an extension of a permit application. 

 
2. There will be a $25.00 fee required with the second request for an extension of the same 

permit application. 
 

3. There will be a $50.00 fee required with the third or any subsequent request for an extension 
of the same permit application. 

 
4.  Payment of a fee does not insure approval of a request for extension.  If a request for extension          
   is not granted, any fee(s) paid will be returned. 
 

D. Expired Permits-Extensions and Fees 
Every permit issued shall be considered expired unless the work authorized is commenced within 
180 days after issuance or the work authorized is suspended or abandoned for 180 days after the 
work is commenced.  The Building Official may issue an extension(s) not to exceed 180 days.  
Requests for extensions must be made in writing and justifiable cause demonstrated. 
 
1. There is no charge for the first request for an extension of a permit. 

 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 23 
 

2. There will be a $25.00 fee required with the second request for an extension of the same 
permit. 

 
3. There will be a $50.00 fee required with the third or any subsequent request for an extension 

of the same permit. 
 

  4. Payment of a fee does not insure approval of a request for extension.  If a request for   
     extension is not granted, any fee(s) paid will be returned. 

 
E. Re-Inspection Fees 

In addition to any fees already paid, re-inspection fees may be assessed per the adopted fee 
schedule, at the Building Official’s discretion, or for any one or more of the following reasons 
when, upon the inspector’s arrival at a requested inspection: 
 
1. Access to the site is obstructed. 

 
2. The site is not accessible to the inspector. 

 
3. The permit is not posted on site. 

 
4. The approved plans are not provided on site or are not accessible to the inspector. 

 
5. The inspection record is not provided on site or is not accessible to the inspector. 
 
6. The required work has not been completed. 
 
7. The required work has been covered or concealed. 

 
8. The work deviates from the approved plans without the required review and approval. 
 
9. A third inspection will be required for the same previously noted and uncorrected issues. 
 
10. When re-inspection fees are assessed, no further inspections will be performed until those  
        fees have been paid. 
 

F. Investigation Fees 
 

1. Any person who commences work prior to obtaining a permit as required by this Ordinance 
will be charged an additional fee to cover the costs of investigation and inspection(s) 
necessary to confirm code compliance. 

 
2. The investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the required permit fee and shall be 

charged in addition to the required permit fee.  The minimum amount to be collected may not 
be less than $50.00.  Payment of the investigation fee does not exempt any person from 
compliance with Building Code requirements or any other applicable regulations. 

 
G. Refunds of Plan Review and/or Building Permit Fees 

1. Requests for refunds must be made in writing. 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 24 
 

2. Requests for refunds will be accepted and processed not later than 180 days after the date the 
fees were paid. 

 
3. Refunds will only be issued to the person who paid the fees or his or her designee with 

notarized permission of the person who paid the fees. 
 

4. 100% of any fees paid or collected in error will be refunded. 
 

5. Not more than 80% of the plan review fee will be refunded when the permit is withdrawn or 
cancelled before any plan review work has been done. 

 
6. Not more than 80% of the building permit fee will be refunded when the permit is withdrawn 

or cancelled before any work has been done under such permit and before any inspections 
have been performed. 

 
7. A minimum of $25.00 will be retained for administrative processing of any request for 

refund. 
 

H. Exempt Structures-Site Plan Review Fees 
 

Per section R105.2 of the International Residential Code and section 105.2.1 of the 
International Building Code, certain structures are exempt from the requirement to obtain a 
building permit.  However, these structures are not exempt from Gila County floodplain, 
zoning and wastewater regulations.  To insure compliance, a site plan review and approval is 
required prior to the construction of exempt accessory buildings and decks. 

 
A. A minimum fee of $25.00 will be charged for this review and approval. 

 
I. Code Violation Recording Fees 

The minimum fee to record or un-record a violation to a property deed is $25.00. 
 

J. Temporary Certificate of Occupancy Issuance Fees 
Fee is for new or each extension request. 
1. $100.00 residential. 
2. $200.00 commercial. 

 
SECTION 106107 
VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 
 

A. Criminal Penalties-Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, tenant, 
employee or otherwise, who violates any provision of this Ordinance or violates or fails to 
comply with any order or regulation made hereunder is guilty of a Class 2 Misdemeanor pursuant 
to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-815.  Each and every day during 
which the illegal activity, use or violation continues is a separate offense. 
 

B. Civil Penalties-Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, tenant, 
employee or otherwise, who violates any provisions of this Ordinance shall be subject to a civil 
penalty. Each day of a continuing violation is a separate violation for the purpose of imposing a 
separate penalty. The civil penalty for violations of this Ordinance shall be established by 
separate resolution of the Board of Supervisors, but shall not exceed the amount of the maximum 
fine for a Class 2 Misdemeanor.  An alleged violator shall be entitled to an administrative hearing 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 25 
 

and review as provided in Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 2,  §11-815.  The 
Board of Supervisors shall adopt written Rules of Procedures for such hearing and reviews. 

 
C. Remedies-Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 2, §11-815, an 

alleged violator who is served with Notice of Violation subject to civil penalty shall not be 
subject to criminal prosecution arising out of the same facts.  However, all other remedies 
provided for herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive. The conviction and punishment of any 
person hereunder shall not relieve such person from the responsibility to correct prohibited 
conditions or improvements nor prevent the enforcement, correction or removal thereof.  In 
addition to the other remedies provided in this article, the Board of Supervisors, the County 
Attorney, the Inspector, or any adjacent or neighboring property owner who shall be damaged by 
the violation of any provision of this Ordinance, may institute, in addition to the other remedies 
provided by law, injunction, mandamus, abatement or any other appropriate action, proceeding or 
proceedings to prevent or abate or remove such unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, 
alteration, maintenance or use. 

 
SECTION 107108 
REDRESS 
 
Nothing in this Code precludes any individual, company or corporation from seeking redress through the 
courts concerning any portion of this Code or any ruling made pertaining to this Building Code. 
 
SECTION 108109 
AMENDMENTS AND REVISIONS 
 

A. Amendments and revisions to this Ordinance or to this Building Code may be initiated by any 
member of the public, the Chief Building Official, the Advisory and Appeals Board, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission or the Board of Supervisors. 

 
B. Amendments and revisions to this Building Code or this Building Code Ordinance must be made 

in accordance with the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 2, Article 4, § 
11-251.01.05 and Chapter 6, Article 5, § 11-861 and § 11-864. 

 
C. The duties of the Gila County Building Safety Advisory & Appeals Board include the duty to 

provide technical advice to the Building Official to assist in the formation and adoption of 
amendments and revisions to this Ordinance or to this Building Code.  The Advisory & Appeals 
Board shall hold at least one public hearing on such proposals prior to making a recommendation 
to the Board of Supervisors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Gila County Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03 Page 26 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of December 2016. 
 
 
 
                                                    GILA COUNTY 
 
 
ATTEST:__________________________             NAME ______________________________ 

       Marian Sheppard, Clerk                                  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
        Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
__________________________              
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney, 
Civil Bureau Chief 
for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 

    

 





















































   
ARF-4040     Regular Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Submitted By: Marian

Sheppard, Clerk
of the Board

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Board of Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction of properties
deeded to the State of Arizona by the County Treasurer in 2016.

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) § 42-18301 through 42-18303 outlines
the procedures related to the responsibilities of the County Board of
Supervisors once a property has been deeded by the County Treasurer to
the State of Arizona.  Every year the Gila County Board of Supervisors
conducts a sale/auction of all properties that have been deeded to the
State by the Treasurer in the current calendar year.  This sale typically
takes place in December.

Evaluation
According to state statutes, a list of the properties held by the state by tax
deed was prepared on or before the first Monday in November.  The
list includes a full description of each parcel; name of the former owner, if
known; and the total lien amount which includes the total amount of
taxes, interest, penalties, fees and costs, including the unpaid charges of
the County Treasurer and Recorder.  The list was published on the
County's website on October 27, 2016, and advertised in the official
newspaper of the County for two weeks prior to the sale/auction on
November 23rd and 30th.  The list was also made available to the public
at the office of the Board of Supervisors on October 27, 2016.

Per County process, the Engineering Department has reviewed all of the
properties and it has been determined that none of the properties can be
used by a county, city, town or special taxing district for a public purpose
related to flood control or transportation; therefore, the properties are
being made for sale to the public.

There are fifty-four (54) properties that will be available for purchase at



There are fifty-four (54) properties that will be available for purchase at
the auction, as follows: 101-07-020, 101-07-127, 101-07-239,
101-10-014B, 101-10-014E, 201-06-005P, 205-24-006E, 206-06-033,
206-06-056, 206-06-061, 206-09-031A, 206-10-001, 206-10-068J,
206-17-024, 206-19-118, 206-19-122, 206-19-194G, 206-21-027,
206-21-045B, 206-21-199, 206-22-004, 206-22-060, 206-22-079,
206-24-066, 207-07-501, 207-15-124, 207-15-126, 207-15-128,
207-15-130, 207-15-138, 207-15-223, 207-17-011, 207-17-029A,
207-17-029B, 207-17-060, 208-02-055, 208-03-382, 208-05-066A,
208-07-027, 208-07-028, 208-07-029, 208-07-031, 208-07-033,
208-07-035, 208-07-039, 208-09-035U, 301-18-085, 302-36-465,
304-33-031, 304-33-032, 304-33-040, 304-33-057 and 304-33-444.

Conclusion
All of the applicable statutory requirements have been met with regard to
these newly deeded parcels of land; therefore, it is appropriate for the
Board to conduct the sale/auction.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that a sale/auction of all newly
deeded State-owned properties be held during a regular meeting of the
Board on Tuesday, December 6, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction for the sale of real
property deeded to the State of Arizona by Treasurer's Deed in the year
2016.  (Michael Pastor/Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
101-07-020
101-07-127
101-07-239
101-10-014B
101-10-014E
201-06-005P
205-24-006E
206-06-033
206-06-056
206-06-061



206-09-031A
206-10-001
206-10-068J
206-17-024
206-19-118
206-19-122
206-19-194G
206-21-027
206-21-045B
206-21-199
206-22-004
206-22-060
206-22-079
206-24-066
207-07-051
207-15-124
207-15-126
207-15-128
207-15-130
207-15-138
207-15-223
207-17-011
207-17-029A
207-17-029B
207-17-060
208-02-055
208-03-382
208-05-066A
208-07-027
208-07-028
208-07-029
208-07-031
208-07-033
208-07-035



208-07-039
208-09-035U
301-18-085
302-36-465
304-33-031
304-33-032
304-33-040
304-33-057
304-33-444
305-10-022B
2016 Newspaper Advertisement of 12-6-16 BOS Property Tax Sale







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 1 

 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ 

SALE OF LAND THAT IS HELD BY THE STATE UNDER TAX DEED 

(Deeded by the County Treasurer in 2016) 
(Revised December 5, 2016) 

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §42-18301 through §42-18303, PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona, will 

hold a live auction on TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2016, during its Regular Meeting to sell to the highest bidder the following real property that is 

held by the State under tax deed.  The Regular Meeting will begin at 10:00 a.m. and the auction will take place in the order it is listed on the meeting 

agenda.  The auction will take place at the Gila County Courthouse, Board of Supervisors’ Auditorium, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, and it will be 

simultaneously held at the Payson County Complex, Supervisors’ Conference Room, 610 E. Highway 260, Payson.  Registration of bidders will 

take place at both locations from 9:00 a.m. to 9:45 a.m.  Bidder/Purchaser or Bidder’s/Purchaser’s Agent must be present to bid.  Payment must be 

made to the Clerk of the Board by no later than 5:00 p.m. on DECEMBER 7, 2016.  Only cash, cashier’s check or money order will be accepted.  A 

separate fee of $15 will also be required to record the quit claim deed. 

 

Prospective purchasers are advised that:  1) THE STARTING BID FOR EACH PROPERTY WILL BE FOR THE TOTAL LIEN 

AMOUNT; 2) ALL SALES ARE FINAL; 3) THE TITLE CONVEYED BY TREASURER’S DEED MAY OR MAY NOT BE 

MARKETABLE; 4) EXAMINE PROPERTY BEFORE BIDDING; 5) CHECK THE ASSESSOR’S MAP FOR THE LOCATION OF THE 

PARCEL; 6) SEEK ADVICE ON MARKETABILITY OF TITLE CONVEYED BY A TREASURER’S DEED; 7) NO WARRANTIES OR 

GUARANTEES AS TO THE SIZE OR CONDITION OF PROPERTY IS GIVEN; AND, 8) NO REFUNDS WILL BE MADE. 

 

PARCEL # PREVIOUS OWNER LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

(ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IS IN PARENTHESES AND IN BOLD 

LETTERING, WHICH IS NOT PART OF THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION) 

LIEN 

AMOUNT 

($) 

101-07-020 PHOENIX REAL 

ESTATE INVESTMENT 

GRP LLC C/O  

JOSH ST. ROMAIN 

SECTION: 11 TOWNSHIP: 5 S RANGE: 15 LOT 7 BLK 2 OF HAYDEN 

TOWNSITE, PLAT 170 NE4 SW4 SEC 11 T5S R15E = 0.06 AC (664 N. UTAH 

AVENUE, HAYDEN WITH A BURNED DOWN HOUSE.) 

$2,690.77 

101-07-127 ROSALES, RICARDO M, 

ESTATE OF,  

C/O GENEVIEVE 

GRIJALVA 

SECTION: 011 TOWNSHIP: 05S RANGE: 15E LOT 16 BLK 21 OF HAYDEN 

TOWNSITE, PLAT 170 SW4 SW4 SEC 11 T5S R15E = 0.10 AC (680 N. SAN 

PEDRO ROAD, HAYDEN WITH A HOUSE THAT IS OCCUPIED.) 

$4,479.56 

101-07-239 CONTRERAS, 

JOSEPHINE R., C/O  

ERIC R. CONTRERAS 

SECTION: 011 TOWNSHIP: 05S RANGE: 15E HAYDEN TWNS LOT 23 BLK 

25 (623 W. FOURTH PLACE, HAYDEN WITH A VACANT HOUSE.  ON 

9/17/07, AHCCCS PLACED A LIEN IN THE AMOUNT OF $164,279.) 

$3,636.22 

101-10-014B RAYES, WASIM LOT 14 MTN VIEW SUB NE NE SEC 23 T5S R15E; INC 15’ ALLEY COMM 

AT NE COR SEC 23; TH S 59D27’20W 911.08’ TO POB; TH S 48D14’40W 

15.12’; TH N 49D22’ W 161’; TH S 46D51’30W 134.10’, TH N 43D 08’30W 15’; 

$2,334.23 



 2 

TH N 46D51’30E 147.55’; TH S 49D22’ E 176.44’ POB; APPROX 0.37 AC M/L 

(676 W. HIGHWAY 177 ROAD, HAYDEN WITH A VACANT STORE.) 

101-10-014E RAYES, WASIM SECTION: 23 TOWNSHIP: 5S RANGE: 15E PART SECTION 23 T5S R15E; 

COMM AT NE COR SEC 23; TH S46-58-50W 833.61’; TH N49-34W 197.37’ 

TO POB; TH CONT N49-34W 176’+-; TH 46-51-30W 32.73’; TH S49-22E 

176.44’; TH N48-13-10E 33.45’ TO POB; = 0.13 ACRE M/L (OUT OF 101-10-

014 C)  (676 W. HIGHWAY 177 ROAD, HAYDEN.  THIS IS AN 

EASEMENT BEHIND THE STORE ON PARCEL # 101-10-014B.) 

$581.59 

201-06-005P EWING, GEORGE A. & 

LINDA G. 

SECTION: 0013, TOWNSHIP: 06N RANGE: 10E WELLSITE #3 PCL 2 ROS 

1836; SEC 13 T6N R10E; = 0.01 AC M/L (OUT OF 201-06-005L) (LOCATED 

OFF OF FORT SMITH ROAD, TONTO BASIN – A 25’ X 25’ WELL SITE 

ONLY.) 

$664.02 

205-24-006E STEWART, JAMES C., 

ESTATE OF 

BEG SE COR SEC 34 T1N R15E N 66 D 32MIN 40SEC W 2558.20FT TH 

SWLY ALG CUR RT 241.68FT TH SWLY 58.32FT TH N 6D 04MIN 50SEC E 

212.5FT TO POB: TH CONT N 06D04MIN 50SEC E 190FTTH N 88 D 5MIN E 

300FT TH S 7D 26MIN 10SEC W 228.82FT TH N 82D 28MIN 20SEC W 400FT 

M/L TO POB 1.38 AC M/L DKT 427/97-99 427/77  (E. SAGUARO DRIVE, 

GLOBE - VACANT LAND OFF A HILLSIDE.) 

$10,137.37 

206-06-033 CHAVARRIA, MIKE SECTION: 29 TOWNSHIP: 01N RANGE: 15E INSPIRATION TWNS LOTS 27 

THRU 37 BLK 3 PLAT 39  (A HILLSIDE FROM THE TOP OF PINEWAY 

STREET TO OBSCURE WAY OFF OF EL CAMINO IN CLAYPOOL.) 

$641.86 

206-06-056 CHAVARRIA, MIKE TOWNSHIP: 006 RANGE: 018 INSPIRATION TWNS LOTS 18 THRU 26 INCL 

BLK 6  (A HILLSIDE FROM THE TOP OF PINEWAY STREET TO 

OBSCURE WAY OFF OF EL CAMINO IN CLAYPOOL.) 

$485.85 

206-06-061 CHAVARRIA, MIKE TOWNSHIP: 006 RANGE: 030 INSPIRATION TWNS LOTS 30 31 32 33 34 

BLK 6  (A HILLSIDE FROM THE TOP OF PINEWAY STREET TO 

OBSCURE WAY OFF OF EL CAMINO IN CLAYPOOL.) 

$497.78 

206-09-031A RESCOLA, M. CAROL LOT SEVEN BLOCK 4 COBRE VALLEY TOWNSITE (6028 S MORROW 

AVENUE, CLAYPOOL WITH AN ABANDONED HOUSE.) 

$4,713.06 

206-10-001 HARVEY, CLARA J. TOWNSHIP: 001 EAST MIAMI TWNS PUERTO RICO SUBLOT 1A BLK 1 

(6055 S. PUERTO RICO AVENUE, CLAYPOOL.  ONLY THE AREA 

WHERE THE SHED IS LOCATED.) 

$3,661.76 

206-10-068J SLATER, FREDERICK H. 

& VIRGINIA R. 

SECTION: 0029 TOWNSHIP: 01N RANGE: 15E LOT 5 BLK 13 & EAST 20’ OF 

WILSON AVE ABANDONMENT OF EAST MIAMI TWNST PER PLAT 49; 

SE4 NW4 SEC 29 T1N R15E; = 0.09 AC M/L (COMB PCL 206-10-068E & POR 

WILSON AVE ABNDNMNT BY GILA COUNTY.)  (A HILLSIDE BEHIND A 

HOUSE ON WILSON STREET, CLAYPOOL.) 

$580.85 



 3 

206-17-024 CHAVARRIA, MIKE TOWNSHIP: 015 RANGE: 408 LOT 408 BLOCK 15 OF UNRECORDED MARS 

SECOND ADDITION TO THE ORIGINAL TOWNSITE OF MIAMI; SE4NW4 

SEC 30 T1N R15E; = 0.06 AC (ON ORPHAN STREET, MIAMI WITH A 

VACANT STRUCTURE ON A LOT.) 

$612.87 

206-19-118 CHAVARRIA, MIKE TOWNSHIP: 026 RANGE: 500 MIAMI TWNS LOT 500; E2 LOT 502 BLK 26 

(240 SKYLINE TRAIL, MIAMI – A VACANT LOT. THE TOWN OF 

MIAMI HAS A LIEN ON THIS PROPERTY FOR $9,408.62.) 

$1,134.34 

206-19-122 CHAVARRIA, MIKE MIAMI TWNS LOT 505 BLK 26 (OLD CONCRETE WALLS ON A 

HILLSIDE OFF OF ORPHAN STREET, MIAMI.) 

$496.11 

206-19-194G CHAVARRIA, MIKE  ORIGINAL TWNS OF MIAMI ELY 45’ OF LOT 1032 BLK 103 (A 25’ X 45’ 

CONCRETE SLAB BETWEEN A HOUSE AND CARPORT ON ADONIS 

AVENUE, MIAMI.) 

$509.27 

206-21-027 CAPPS, PATRICIANN, 

TRUSTEE, CAPPS 

TRUST 

LIVE OAK ADD W2 LOT 720 BLK 4 275/406 (754 W. MERRITT STREET, 

MIAMI - A HOUSE THAT IS OCCUPIED.) 

$2,063.02 

206-21-045B FALQUEZ, IGNACIO G., 

ESTATE OF 

SECTION: 30 TOWNSHIP: 01N RANGE: 15E POR OF LOTS 404 & 406, BLK 6 

OF LIVE OAK ADDITION, PLAT 37 DESC AS COMM AT THE NW COR OF 

LOT 404; TH S41D09’E, 15 TO THE POB; TH S48D15’W, 4.0’; TH S41D09’E, 

55.0’; TH N48D15’E, 4.0’; TH N48D15’E, 50.0’; TH N38D04’W, 20.0’; TH 

N48D15’E, 2.7’; TH N38D04’W, 36.03’; TH S48D15’W, 54.22’ TO THE POB; = 

0.07 AC  (196 S. GLASS CANYON, MIAMI WITH AN ABANDONED 

HOUSE.) 

$4,478.00 

206-21-199 CHAVARRIA, MIKE TOWNSHIP: 013 RANGE: 004 SUB OF LOT 4 BLK 13 OF HIGH SCHOOL 

ADD LOT 9; SUB OF LOT 6 BLK 18 HIGH SCHOOL ADD LOT 7 (VACANT 

LAND UNDER ARIZONA WATER COMPANY TANK OFF OF 

PERSHING STREET, MIAMI.) 

$850.04 

206-22-004 CHAVARRIA, MIKE TOWNSHIP: 119 RANGE: 411 INSPIRATION ADD BEG AT NE COR LOT 411 

BLK 119 TH N 53D 42MIN E 44.07’ TH S 36D 18MIN E 27.68’ TO PT ON S 

SIDELINE OF MYRTLE MNG CLAIM A DIST OF 49.58’ TH S 0D 17MINW 

6.25’ TH S 53D 42MINW 9.55’ TO SE COR LOT 411 TH N0D 05MIN W 30.99’ 

ALNG E SIDE SAID LOT TO POB (A VACANT LOT OFF A HILLSIDE ON 

INDIAN ALLEY, MIAMI.) 

$614.44 

206-22-060 BLAIR, BEN W. 

(ESTATE) 

TOWNSHIP: 125 RANGE: 919 INSPIRATION ADD LOT 919 BLK 125 (869 W. 

KEEGAN STREET, MIAMI WITH A VACANT LOT.  THE TOWN OF 

MIAMI HAS A LIEN IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,198.70.) 

$3,850.34 

206-22-079 CAPPS, PATRICIANN, 

TRUSTEE, CAPPS 

TOWNSHIP: 126 RANGE: 927 INSPIRATION ADD LOT 927 BLK 126 (893 W. 

MERRITT STREET, MIAMI WITH A HOUSE THAT IS OCCUPIED.)  

$7,791.74 



 4 

TRUST THE COUNTY TREASURER HAS REQUESTED THAT THIS PARCEL 

NOT BE SOLD AT THIS TIME. 

206-24-066 GRESHAM, CHARLES 

G.  

MAP 704-4-13D TRIANGULAR PORTION OF ICC PCL 3 (LAND OFF OF 

FREDRIC STREET, MIAMI.) 

$509.27 

207-07-501 PRICE & SCALES ALL THAT LAND CONTAINED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 15 

EAST, GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, LYING AT A 

GREATER DEPTH THAN 300 FEET IMMEDIATELY BENEATH THE 

SURFACE THEREOF; TOGETHER WITH ALL OF THE ORES AND 

MINERALS THEREIN AND TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO CARRY ON 

MINING OPERATIONS AT ANY DEPTH GREATER THAN 300 FEET 

BENEATH THE SURFACE THEREOF.  (MINERAL RIGHTS)-SUBSURFACE 

(SUBURFACE RIGHTS-ONLY, MIAMI.) 

 $423.38 

207-15-124 CHAVARRIA, MIKE SECTION:  0026 TOWNSHIP: 1N RANGE: 15E NORTH GLOBE TWNS (LOT 

1): LOT 28 EXCEPT NORTH 150’ (A HILLSIDE BEHIND STRUCK 

PROPERTY AT 200 W. BLAKE STREET, GLOBE.) 

$479.90 

207-15-126 CHAVARRIA, MIKE SECTION:  0026 TOWNSHIP: 1N RANGE: 15E NORTH GLOBE TWNS (LOT 

1): LOT 29 EXCEPT NORTH 150’ (A HILLSIDE BEHIND STRUCK 

PROPERTY AT 200 W. BLAKE STREET, GLOBE.) 

$418.58 

207-15-128 CHAVARRIA, MIKE SECTION:  0026 NORTH GLOBE TWNS (LOT 1): LOT 30 EXCEPT NORTH 

125’ (A HILLSIDE BEHIND FLORES PROPERTY AT 220 W. BLAKE 

STREET, GLOBE.) 

$479.90 

207-15-130 CHAVARRIA, MIKE SECTION:  0026 TOWNSHIP: 1N RANGE: 15E NORTH GLOBE TWNS (LOT 

1): LOT 31 EXCEPT NORTH 117.5’ (A HILLSIDE BEHIND GUERNA 

PROPERTY AT 214 W. BLAKE STREET, GLOBE.) 

$479.90 

207-15-138 CHAVARRIA, MIKE SECTION: 0026 NORTH GLOBE TWNS SE NE (LOT 1) SEC 26 1N 15E; LOT 

33 EXC S 81: OF THE W 270: (118/195) & EXC PT OF THE S 150: OF THE 

208.5: (41/5   49) (A HILLSIDE OFF OF GILLETTE STREET, GLOBE. 

BEYOND THE GUARD RAIL AND DOWN THE HILL.) 

$991.25 

207-15-223 RODRIGUEZ, CLARA 

(ESTATE OF) C/O 

 RAY RODRIGUEZ 

NORTH GLOBE TWNS LOT 1H (391 PINAL STREET, GLOBE, WITH A 

HOUSE.)  A SALE IS PENDING WITH THE CITY OF GLOBE PER A.R.S. 

§ 42-18303 (G). 

$2,748.30 

207-17-011 DC INVESTMENTS 

C/O BARRY DEROSE 

TOWNSHIP: 002 RANGE: 033 WEST GLOBE TWNS LOT 33 BLK 2 (A 

SMALL, TRIANGULAR-SHAPED PARCEL THAT IS LOCATED 

BETWEEN TELLEZ’ PROPERTY AND VALENCIA’S PROPERTY ON 

MIAMI ROAD IN GLOBE.) 

$730.26 

207-17-029A ESTERWOLD, ERIC F.  TOWNSHIP:  007 RANGE: 001 WEST GLOBE TWNS LOTS 1 2 BLK 7 334/743 $582.10 



 5 

C/O ART SERRANO (A HILLSIDE ACROSS FROM 577 W. MIAMI STREET AND BEHIND 

NAVARRO OFF OF BLAKE STREET, GLOBE.)  A SALE IS PENDING 

WITH THE CITY OF GLOBE PER A.R.S. § 42-18303 (G). 

207-17-029B CHAVARRIA, MIKE SECTION: 0026 TOWNSHIP: 1N RANGE: 15E WEST GLOBE TWNS LOT 4 

BLK 7 (A HILLSIDE ACROSS FROM 577 W. MIAMI STREET AND 

BEHIND NAVARRO OFF OF BLAKE STREET, GLOBE.)   

$530.98 

207-17-060 CHAVARRIA, MIKE WEST GLOBE TWNS LOT 18 BLK 10 (VACANT LAND ON THE CORNER 

OF BLAKE STREET AND MOORE STREET, GLOBE.) 

$684.41 

208-02-055 SCHNEIDLINGER, ERIC SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 01N RANGE: 15E POR OF BLK 17 OF GLOBE 

TWNS ALONG WITH POR OF MOJAVE ST BEG AT SE COR OF LOT 17; TH 

SLY, 30.0’; TH WLY, 225.0’; TH NLY, 144.62’; TH ELY, 225.0’; TH SLY, 

112.50’ TO POB NW1/4 SEC 25 T1N R15E = 0.74 AC (HILLSIDE TO CREEK 

UNDER THE BRIDGE OFF MOHAVE  STREET, GLOBE.) 

$990.04 

208-03-382 CAPPS, PATRICIANN, 

TRUSTEE, CAPPS 

TRUST 

SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N RANGE: 15 LOT 4 HASKINS TERRACE PLAT 

126, SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 0.15 AC (959 HASKINS TERRACE, GLOBE WITH 

A HOUSE.) 

$9,530.06 

208-05-066A UNKNOWN OWNER  RANGE: 003 EAST GLOBE ADD PT LOT 3 BLK 1B 54X173X9.6X174.5’ 

BLAKE SUB BEG AT THE SE COR OF BLK 1B E GLOBE ON THE W 

SIDELINE OF 2
ND

 ST RUNNING TH SLY ALNG THE W SIDE LINE OF 2
ND

 

ST EXTENDED 54’ M/L TO THE N BNDRY LINE OF ANDERSON BLAKE 

ADD (HIGHLAND PARK) TH S 45DEG 35MIN W ALNG SAID BNDRY LINE 

TO THE INTRSEC THEREOF WITH THE E SIDE LINE OF CARICO ST AS 

SHOWN ON MAP ENTITLED MC KEVITT HOMESTEAD TH NWLY ALNG 

E SIDE LINE OF SAID CARICO ST TO THE INTRSEC THEREOF WITH THE 

MOST SLY PT OF THAT CERTAIN TR OF LAND DEEDED TO JT LEWIS 

WH APPEARS OF RECORD IN 32/462 THEREOF TH N 54DEG 04MIN E 

173.2’ TO A PT TH N 28DEG 45MIN E 9.6’ M/L TO THE S SIDE LINE NE1/4 

SEC 36 T1N R15E; = 0.73 AC +- A PORTION OF 208-05-066 SEE PROPERTY 

RECORD CARD IN FILE  (CREEK BED OFF OF BOSTON STREET, 

GLOBE.)  A SALE IS PENDING WITH THE CITY OF GLOBE PER A.R.S. 

§ 42-18303 (G). 

$2,233.82 

208-07-027 LONG, WILLIAM SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N RANGE: 15 LOTS 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 IN BLOCK 5 

OF DUNCAN ADDITION PLAT 51; SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 0.63 AC  (DUNCAN 

ADDITION, UNDEVELOPED LOTS, GLOBE) 

$530.98 

208-07-028 LONG, WILLIAM SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N RANGE: 15 LOTS 7,8, 9, 10, 11 & 12 IN 

BLOCK 5 OF DUNCAN ADDITION PLAT 51; SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 0.76 AC 

(DUNCAN ADDITION, UNDEVELOPED LOTS, GLOBE) 

$541.19 



 6 

208-07-029 LONG, WILLIAM SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N RANGE: 15 LOTS 1 & 2 OF BLOCK 6 IN 

DUNCAN ADDITION PLAT 51; SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 0.25 AC  (DUNCAN 

ADDITION, UNDEVELOPED LOTS, GLOBE) 

$463.26 

208-07-031 LONG, WILLIAM SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N  RANGE: 15 LOTS 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 & 13 OF 

BLOCK 6, DUNCAN ADDITION PLAT 51; SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 1.02 AC  

(DUNCAN ADDITION, UNDEVELOPED LOTS, GLOBE) 

$602.62 

208-07-033 LONG, WILLIAM SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N RANGE: 15 LOT 3 OF BLOCK 7 IN DUNCAN 

ADDITION PLAT 51; SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 0.13 AC  (DUNCAN ADDITION, 

UNDEVELOPED LOTS, GLOBE) 

$506.70 

208-07-035 LONG, WILLIAM SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N RANGE: 15 LOT 7 OF BLOCK 7 IN DUNCAN 

ADDITION PLAT 51; SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 0.14 AC (DUNCAN ADDITION, 

UNDEVELOPED LOTS, GLOBE)  

$1,195.91 

208-07-039 LONG, WILLIAM SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 1 N RANGE: 15 LOT 12 IN BLOCK 7 OF DUNCAN 

ADDITION; PLAT 51; SEC 25 T1N R15E; = 0.13 AC DKT 350/198  (DUNCAN 

ADDITION, UNDEVELOPED LOTS, GLOBE) 

$552.82 

208-09-035U SUMPTER, LAVERNE 

INC. 

SECTION: 0036 TOWNSHIP: 01N RANGE: 15E PCL 4 ROS 1707, SEC 36 T1N 

R15E; -1.50 AC M/L (OUT OF 208-09-035S)  (A HILLSIDE OFF OF QUAIL 

PEAK TRAIL, GLOBE) 

$11,750.87 

301-18-085 GENTRY, JAMES P., 

ESTATE OF ½ INT 

RANGE: 084 LOT 84, COOL PINES SUBDIVISION, PLAT 207 = 0.22 AC 

NW1/4 NW1/4 SEC 36 T12N R8E (80’ X 120’ X 80’ X 120’ LOT ON APACHE 

TRAIL ROAD, PINE.) 

$2,278.02 

302-36-465 DANIELS II, MARK 

WAYNE ½ INT 

RANGE: 033 PAYSON RANCHOS UNIT #4 LOT 33A/A 19971981 24 X 48 

K&B BAINBRIDGE MH VIN KBCASNA/B115141 FEE 97-707351  (615 W. 

BARNUM CIRCLE, PAYSON, WITH A DOUBLE WIDE MOBILE HOME 

THAT NEEDS WORK.) 

$4,619.53 

304-33-031 BAR-ON, JONATHON SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 09N RANGE: 10E LOT 30 OF TONTO CREEK 

SHORES OF PLAT 441NE1/4 SEC 25 T9N R10E = 0.16 AC (A COW TRAIL 

IN GISELA WITH LOTS OF OVERGROWTH.) 

$810.46 

304-33-032 BAR-ON, JONATHON SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 09N RANGE: 10E LOT 31 OF TONTO CREEK 

SHORES OF PLAT 441NE1/4 SEC 25 T9N R10E = 0.16 AC (A COW TRAIL 

IN GISELA WITH LOTS OF OVERGROWTH.) 

$840.46 

304-33-040 BAKER, SCOTT 

(PERSONAL REP) 

BAKER, CARL W., 

ESTATE OF ½ INT 

SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 09N RANGE: 10E LOT 39 OF TONTO CREEK 

SHORES OF PLAT 441NE1/4 SEC 25 T9N R10E = 0.16 AC (A COW TRAIL 

IN GISELA WITH LOTS OF OVERGROWTH.) 

$496.46 

304-33-057 HERRING, GEOFFREY 

A. 

SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 09N RANGE: 10E LOT 56 OF TONTO CREEK 

SHORES OF PLAT 441NE1/4 & NW1/4 SEC 25 T9N R10E = 0.18 AC (A COW 

$1,267.21 



 7 

TRAIL IN GISELA WITH LOTS OF OVERGROWTH.) 

304-33-444 GRIFFIN, CONNIE AND 

APRIL 

SECTION: 25 TOWNSHIP: 09N RANGE: 10E LOT 443 OF TONTO CREEK 

SHORES OF PLAT 441SW1/4 SEC 25 T9N R10E = 0.26 AC (A COW TRAIL 

IN GISELA WITH LOTS OF OVERGROWTH.) 

$496.46 

305-10-022B WESTRIDGE TRUST 

FBO THE PUBLIC C/O 

BARBARA J. MINER 

SECTION: 0023 TOWNSHIP: 09N RANGE: 13E THE EAST 30’ OF THE SW1/4 

NW1/4 NE1/4 AND THE WEST 30’ OF THE SE1/4 NW1/4 NE1/4 ALL IN 

SECTION 23 T9N R13E THEREOF; = 0.91 ACRE M/L (OUT OF 305-10-005X) 

(THIS IS PART OF WESTRIDGE DRIVE, YOUNG.) 

$473.52 

  



   

ARF-4068     Regular Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Community Services
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08-25-16 to
06-30-17

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Major Rehabilitation Project HH#9908.

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) administers Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME funding for programs through units of local
government and non-profit agencies which provide rehabilitation to certain property
types, owned and occupied, as the primary residence of low-income homeowners.

The following property types are eligible:
Single-family (one-unit structures);
Condominium units;
Manufactured housing only if the unit upon completion:
1.  Is placed on a permanent foundation (requires certification) and is connected to
permanent utility hook-ups;
2.  Is located on land that is held in fee-simple title, or long-term ground lease with a
term of at least 99 years (50 years for tribal land);
3.  Meets the construction standards of 24 CFR 3280 if manufactured after June 15,
1976; or, meets applicable local and/or State codes if manufactured prior to June 15,
1976.

The following property types are ineligible:
Rental properties;
Units not occupied as primary resident of the owner;
Uninsured properties; Units located in a flood zone that are not covered by a flood
insurance policy. 

Evaluation
Gila County Housing Services currently has Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation



Gila County Housing Services currently has Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation
contracts with the ADOH.  One such contract is the HOME Contract No.
309-127-16-01, which stipulates that all code deficiencies must be corrected and
brought up to code.  Housing services will be providing rehabilitation services to such
a home located in Gila County. 

A Request for Bid Proposals was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on August 17,
2016, with bids due on September 3, 2014. A mandatory pre-bid walk-through was
held on August 31, 2016.  In attendance at the walk-through were Mountain Retreat
Builders, Noble Building, LLC, and Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
 
The bids were received and opened in a public setting on August 31, 2016.  Bids for
this project were submitted by Mountain Retreat Builders, Noble Building, LLC, and
Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.

This contract will ensure all rehabilitation services will be provided and completed by
June 30, 2017.

Providing rehabilitation services to this home will provide a healthy, safe and energy
efficient home for this family.

Conclusion
After extensive review and based on the bid responses received, it is the goal of the
Finance Division Director and the Community Services Division Director to award a
contract to the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder.  By approving this award
request, the Gila County Housing Services Program will be in compliance with the
requirements of HOME Contract No. 127-16-01.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Contract.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Service Agreement No. 110916-1 between
the Gila County Community Services Division, Housing Services, and Rodriguez
Constructions, Inc. for Major Rehabilitation Project No. HH#9908, whereby Rodriguez
Constructions, Inc. will provide housing rehabilitation services to a single family
household unit located in Payson, Arizona, for a fee of $57,250 with all work to be
completed by June 30, 2017.  (James Menlove/Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Service Agreement No. 110916-1 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
Bid Results
Affidavit of Publication



































   
ARF-4066     Regular Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted For: Kelly Riggs, Information Technology Director 
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Information Technology
Fiscal Year: Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

December 1, 2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the County of Gila and the Gila County Superior Court for the
provision of Information Technology (IT) support to the Courts Group.

Background Information
For a number of years the Courts Group which includes the Superior Court Divisions, Court Administration, Clerk
of Superior Court, Probation, Globe Regional Justice Court and Payson Regional Justice Court have maintained a
Court Information System (CIS) Department and staff separate from the County IT Department to meet the
technology needs of the Courts Group. In addition, the Courts Group connectivity is provided through the Arizona
Judicial Information Network (AJIN), which is operated and maintained by the Arizona Administrative Office of the
Courts (AOC).  Maintaining separate departments is no longer a prudent use of resources when
considering technology changes and advances, along with the efficient utilization of staff time.

This MOU will provide for the provision of seamless technology support for the Courts Group utilizing the Gila
County IT Department staff. It will transfer the two existing CIS positions to the IT Department.  The IT Department
will provide one full time equivalent (FTE) with primary responsibility of IT support to the Courts Group.

Evaluation
During the past nine months, the Gila County IT Department has been serving as backup support for the Courts
Group dealing with a number of connectivity issues, network functionality requirements and desktop needs.  After
several meetings and discussions between Court Administration and the IT Department, the idea to combine
resources became a viable proposal.  This MOU will benefit both the Courts Group and the IT Department by
providing a better use of existing positions.

Conclusion
This arrangement will provide greater efficiency and better utilization of staff time and minimize duplication of
services for the provision of IT support services to the Courts Group, as well as provide for additional IT support
services to all County Offices and Departments.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of the MOU for the provision of IT support to the Courts Group.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Gila and the
Gila County Superior Court for the provision of information technology support to the Courts Group.  (Kelly Riggs)

Attachments

County and Courts MoU IT Services
Exhibit A County and Courts MoU IT Services



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Between the COUNTY OF GILA and the  

GILA COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT for the  
provision of Information Technology support to the Courts Group 

 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding by and between the COUNTY OF GILA (“COUNTY”) 
and the GILA COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT (“COURTS”) on behalf of the Courts Group 
which includes Superior Court Divisions, Court Administration,   Clerk of Superior Court, 
Probation, Globe Regional Justice Court and Payson Regional Justice Court, and sets forth the 
terms of an agreement between the parties and the responsibilities of each of the parties hereto. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SUMMARY 
 
The COUNTY and the COURTS desire to cooperate with the provision of seamless information 
technology (IT) support services while maintaining a separation of networks and security and 
recognizing that network oversight and management remains with the Arizona Administrative 
Office of the Courts (AOC). These technology support services will be for all AOC computer 
equipment utilized by COURTS and the Courts Group, beginning December 1, 2016 and 
continuing until December 1, 2026. All technology support will be accomplished with the Gila 
County IT Department staff to better ensure coverage and timely responses without duplication 
of services within Gila County government.  
 
 
COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

1. The County will provide network access and connectivity to the Arizona Judicial 
Information Network (AJIN) and any local courts domains. 
 

2. The County will provide technical support to the courts groups.  
 

3. The County agrees to maintain and support current or as periodically updated hardware 
and any other non-AOC system, domain, or network. 
 

4. The County agrees to support any technical requirements of current or as periodically 
updated Administrative Orders issued locally or by the Arizona Supreme Court. 
 
 



   MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Between the COUNTY OF GILA and the  

GILA COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT for the  
provision of Information Technology support to the Courts Group 

 
 2 

 
 

5. The County agrees to comply with AOC architectural and security requirements, as well 
as any new compliance requirements imposed by Administrative Office of the Courts- 
Information Technology Division (AOC-ITD) relating to devices that access the AJIN. 
 

6. The County agrees to provide assistance in the completion of AOC mandated I.T. reports; 
security audits; and in the breakout of Arizona Courts Automation Project (ACAP) fees. 
 
 

7. The County agrees to provide necessary support and assistance with any current and 
future AOC applications. 
 

8. The County will provide one FTE with primary responsibility of IT support of Courts 
Group, which includes Superior Court Divisions, Court Administration,   Clerk of 
Superior Court, Probation, Globe Regional Justice Court and Payson Regional Justice 
Court, with a duty station on the third floor of the Globe Courthouse. 
 

9. The County will provide appropriate measures for the storage or transfer of confidential 
or restricted digital information pursuant to existing statute, code, or rule. 
  

10. The County will evaluate current and future systems for security or architectural 
deficiencies.  
 
 

COURT RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

1. COURTS will provide and maintain the current and future funding for ACAP device fees 
and pay fees as billed within the COURTS budget. 
 

2. COURTS will provide and maintain a duty station on the third floor of the Globe 
Courthouse for IT support. 
 

3. COURTS agree to an initial budgetary division and transfer to the COUNTY in return for 
services provided, as outlined in Exhibit A for the remainder of Fiscal Year 2017and to 
assist Courts in preparing and submitting the FY2018 budget. 

  
This agreement is subject to review and this agreement can be amended at any time with 
agreement by both the COURTS and the COUNTY subject to the approval of both the 
COUNTY and the COURTS with approval as to form by the County Attorney.  This agreement 
may be terminated with 90 day notice and by prior approval of both the COUNTY and 
COURTS.  
 
 
 



   MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Between the COUNTY OF GILA and the  

GILA COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT for the  
provision of Information Technology support to the Courts Group 

 
 3 

 
 
 
 
 
DATED this 6th day of December, 2016. 
 
GILA COUNTY           GILA COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
______________________________      ______________________________ 
Michael A Pastor, Chairman        Timothy M. Wright, Presiding Judge 
 
 
 
            APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 
 
 

 
______________________________      _______________________________ 
Jefferson R Dalton,          Arizona Attorney General’s Office 
Deputy Gila County Attorney,  
Civil Bureau Chief 



EXHIBIT  A  
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING between the COUNTY OF GILA and the  
GILA COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT for the provision of Information Technology support to 
the Courts Group 
 
 
DIVISION OF FUNDING 
 
The Courts will retain and maintain the current funding for ACAP device fees; the Dodge 
Journey and associated budgeted vehicles expenses; travel / office supplies / training budgets in 
the amount of $48,900.00, as itemized below: 
 
$600.00  4110.60 / Operating supplies, Fuel, Oil 
$600.00   4130.62 / Operating supplies, Auto parts 
$46,750.00   4290.10 / Operating leases, office equipment 
$500.00   4340.61 / Training 
$450.00   4240.10 / Travel 
 
The County will receive two (2) I.T. Support Specialist positions; all service agreements with 
associated funding; and any remaining budgeted funds not otherwise specified totaling 
$148,626.00. 



   
ARF-4070     Regular Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Submitted For: Tommie Martin, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 1

Information
Request/Subject
Election of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the Board of Supervisors

Background Information
On January 22, 2013, the Board of Supervisors elected Supervisor Mike
Pastor to serve as its Chairman and Supervisor Tommie Martin to serve
as its Vice-Chairman.

Evaluation
During the November 2016 General Election, two new Supervisors were
elected to the Board of Supervisors.  The new Board will consist of
incumbent member Tommie Martin, and newly elected members Tim
Humphrey and Woody Cline.

Conclusion
It is appropriate for the Board to elect a Chairman and Vice-Chairman of
the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to elect a Chairman and Vice-Chairman
for the Board of Supervisors (BOS), which will become effective
immediately after the BOS meeting on December 6, 2016.  (Tommie
Martin)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.





   

ARF-4064     Consent Agenda Item      5. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan,
Director 

Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager

Department: Community Services Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07/1/2016-6/30/2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out Version, effective 07/01/2016 -
06/30/2017, between Health Choice Integrated Care, LLC and Gila County DBA Gila County Public
Housing Authority. 

Background Information
This Agreement reflects the Bridge Subsidy Program (BSP) which was a pilot program through a
partnership between the Arizona Department of Health Services, Division of Behavioral Health Services
(ADHS/DBHS) and the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) to expand the supply of Permanent
Supportive Housing (PSH) in Arizona for individuals with serious mental illness enrolled in the public
behavioral health system.  PSH is a best practice housing approach that provides permanent housing
(typically rental apartments integrated in the community) linked with voluntary and flexible
community-based services.  The PSH model is based on a philosophy that supports consumer choice
and empowerment, rights and responsibilities of tenancy, and appropriate flexible, accessible, and
available services that meet each consumer's changing needs.

This initiative is a tenant-based rental assistance program with basic policies similar to the federal
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program.  This initiative will provide ADHS/DBHS consumers
with more housing choices and the flexibility to select a unit and neighborhood that meets their specific
needs and preferences. This program is designed as a "bridge subsidy" to help consumers eventually
access HUD Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers.  To this end, the Bridge Subsidy Program will mirror to
the extent possible HUD's Section 8 HCV Program.  The ADHS/DBHS consumers will receive the rental
assistance until they are able to access a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher, or no more than a five-year
period. 

Evaluation
The Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out Version allocates funds in an
amount of $19,200 for FY2017.  These monies will provide for administration and management of
housing assistance funds and the provision of housing assistance services for adults with serious mental
illnesses in conformance with HUD standards, ADHS/DBHS and Arizona law.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving the Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement -
Close-Out Version between Health Choice Integrated Care and Gila County DBA Gila County Public
Housing Authority, assistance will be provided to eligible citizens of Gila County with housing assistance
services.  The target population of this contract is defined as ADHS/DBHS consumers who are adults
with serious mental illness that are currently homeless or residing in a residential treatment program.

Recommendation



The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Agreement. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out Version between Health
Choice Integrated Care, LLC and Gila County DBA Gila County Public Housing Authority, which will
allocate funds in the amount of $19,200 to be used to help Gila County residents who meet the program
qualifications for the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.

Attachments
Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Agreement Close-Out Version 2016-2017
Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Agreement Close-Out Version 2015-2016







































































   

ARF-4063     Consent Agenda Item      5. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016 - 2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

June 1, 2016 -
December 31, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 14 to Contract No. 700518523 with Arizona Public Service for Energy Wise Low-Income
Weatherization Program Implementation.

Background Information
On July 5, 2016, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 13 to Contract No. 700518523.
On December 15, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 12 to Contract No.
700518523.
On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. 700518523.
On December 17, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 10 to Contract No.
700518523.
On September 3, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 9 to Contract No.
700518523.
On October 9, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. 700518523.
On December 20, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 7 to Contract No.
700518523.
On June 7, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 6 to Contract No. 700518523.
On June 8, 2010, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 700518523.
On January 5, 2010, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. 700518523.
On February 17, 2009, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 700518523.
On February 28, 2008, the Board of Supervisors approved (previously known as PO 700287483) the
"Original Contract"  No. 700518523.
On November 20, 2007, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 and Amendment No. 3 to
Purchase Order No. 700287483.
On July 17, 2006, the Board of Supervisors approved Purchase Order No. 700287483 -- REV E.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 14 to an Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program
Implementation, (Contract No. 700581523) between Gila County Division of Community Services and
Arizona Public Service Company amends the original contract as follows; Defined Terms, Term,
Allocation, For Lack of Regulatory Approval, Subsequent Year Allocation, Scope of Services, Final
Invoice, Remaining Terms Unchanged, and an Attachment "A". 

The term of the agreement is extended to December 31, 2017.  The allocation of the Original Contract
shall "not exceed
$106,429.00" for the calendar year 2017.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 14 to said Agreement, the Gila County



By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 14 to said Agreement, the Gila County
Weatherization Program will provide weatherization services to eligible low-income citizens of Gila
County through December 31, 2017.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 14 to an Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program
Implementation between the Gila County Division of Community Services and Arizona Public Service
Company extending the term of the agreement to December 31, 2017, with a not to exceed amount of
$106,429 for calendar year 2017 and to make some other minor changes.   

Attachments
Amendment No. 14 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 13 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 12 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 11 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 10 Contract No. 700518523 
Amendment No. 9 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 8 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 7 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 6 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 5 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 4 Contract No. 70051823
Amendment No. 3 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 2 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 700518523
Weatherization Agreement Changed from Agreement No. 700287483 to Contract No.
700518523
Original Agreement GC and APS







































































































   
ARF-4050     Consent Agenda Item      5. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted By: John Castaneda, Animal Regulations
Enforcement Mgr.

Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2017 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

12-1-2016 to 12-1-2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to accept grant award from the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee in the amount
of $5,000 to be used for a low cost spay/neuter program in Gila County.

Background Information
This grant application to the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee is for funds that will be used
to ensure that all animals leaving the County animal shelter will be surgically altered by offering a fully discounted
spay/neuter procedure.

On August 16, 2016, the Board of Supervisors authorized the submittal of a grant application in the amount of
$10,000 to Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee.

On October 4, 2016, we received the award letter from the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee
in the amount of $5,000.

Evaluation
Gila County Animal Control currently has a low cost spay/neuter program and this funding would allow us to
expand the program and continue to offer the fully discounted spay/neuter services to more residents. 

Conclusion
This grant award will benefit the residents of Gila County by providing $5,000 in funding for spaying/neutering dogs
and cats.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Health & Emergency Management Division Director that the Board of
Supervisors accept the grant award from the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee.

Suggested Motion
Acceptance of a grant award from the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee in the amount of
$5,000 that will be used to expand Gila County's discounted spay/neuter services in Gila County for a period of one
year.

Attachments

Award letter
Grant Application













   

ARF-3956     Consent Agenda Item      5. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted By: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2017 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 091216 with the Town of Payson.

Background Information
During the Board of Supervisors' Regular Meeting of September 6, 2016, the Board
reviewed an economic development grant request from the Town of Payson to support
the activities of the $16M Greater Payson Area Economic Development Strategic Plan
(Plan).  In reviewing this request, it was acknowledged that it is important for Gila
County to show fair and equitable support for economic development activities
throughout the County.  In turn, Gila County has proposed Vision 20/20-The
Foundation for Retention and Expansion of Commerce in Gila County, which would
establish a structure of government leadership, business leadership and
administrative leadership from all areas of the County.  Until the County is successful
in gaining support for this more comprehensive approach, the Board of Supervisors
decided it would continue to consider economic development grant funding requests on
an individual basis.  During that meeting, the Board voted unanimously to provide an
economic development grant not to exceed $8,500 to the Town of Payson to begin
phase I of the grading and landscaping for the American Gulch Project, which was one
of the proposed first-year initiatives of the Plan; and instructed staff to return to a
future Board meeting with the appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement for Board
consideration.

Evaluation
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 091216 between Gila County and the Town of
Payson has been signed by Town officials and it is being presented to the Board of
Supervisors for final review and approval whereby the County will provide an economic
development grant not to exceed $8,500 to the Town of Payson to begin phase I of the
grading and landscaping for the American Gulch Project.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on



The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 091216 so that the Finance Department may release
$8,500 to the Town of Payson.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the Chairman's signature on
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 091216 with the Town of Payson.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Intergovernmental Agreement No.
091216 between Gila County and the Town of Payson whereby Gila County will
provide an economic development grant in an amount not to exceed $8,500 to the
Town of Payson to begin phase I of the grading and landscaping for the American
Gulch Project as approved by the Board of Supervisors at its September 6, 2016,
meeting.

Attachments
IGA No. 091216 - Town of Payson









   

ARF-4042     Consent Agenda Item      5. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

November 18,
2016 to
November 17,
2020

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Bose Public Affairs Group Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2.

Background Information
On May 12, 2009, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Professional
Services Contract No. 042109-PSC between Gila County and Bose Public Affairs Group
(BPAG) to provide government relations services for the support of development and
execution of county federal programs and projects in the monthly amount of $6,500
and in effect until June 30, 2011.

On June 7, 2011, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the First
Amendment to Professional Services Contract No. 042109-PSC with BPAG, which
extended the term of the contract from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2013.  Staff began
working on amendments to the contract before its expiration. It has been determined
that a new contract would be more appropriate because of the June 30, 2013, end date.

At the July 16, 2013, Board of Supervisors' regular meeting, the Board unanimously
approved Professional Services Contract No. 070113 with BPAG to continue providing
lobbying and consulting services at the federal government level to Gila County at the
rate of $6,500 per month, effective July 16, 2013, through June 30, 2014. 

On November 18, 2014, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Professional
Services Contract No. 103114 between Gila County and Bose Public Affairs Group
(BPAG) to provide government relations services for the support of development and
execution of county federal programs and projects.  The contract amount was
issued as a not to exceed, without prior written approval from the County, amount of
$50,000, for a contract term of November 18, 2014 to November 17, 2015, with the
option to renew for two additional one-year periods.

On August 17, 2015, the Board of Supervisors authorized an increase of $29,645 to



the contract amount, which was the amount, excluding expenses, that BPAG had
estimated their projected services would be through their contract end date of
November 17, 2015.  The increase made a new total contract amount of $79,645 for
the contract term of November 18, 2014 to November 17, 2015.

On the  October 20, 2015, Board of Supervisors meeting, the Board approved
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 103114 to extend the term of
the contract from November 18, 2015 to November 17, 2016; and to increase the
contract amount from $50,000 to $75,000, to be expensed if needed and as requested.

Evaluation
Since 2006, BPAG has provided consulting and lobbying services for Gila County at
the federal government level and has been instrumental in obtaining funding for Gila
County.

Professional Services Contract No. 103114 with BPAG was executed on November 18,
2014, on a retainer basis.  As the County or BPAG sees the need to engage BPAG for
consulting and or lobbying services at the federal government level on behalf of the
County, either email or telephone contact is made between the County and BPAG with
an estimate of the scope of services and cost.  BPAG invoices the County each month,
based upon the services provided, with a not to exceed, without prior written approval
of the County Board of Supervisors, annual amount of $75,000. 

It has been determined by staff that a new four (4) year contract would be more
appropriate at this time. Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2 with BPAG will
allow the County to exercise the option to renew the contract for four
(4) additional years from November 18, 2016 to November 17, 2020.

Conclusion
The extension of the contract term with BPAG will allow BPAG to continue its work
with the County's elected officials and staff to develop and execute the County's federal
program to meet the needs of the citizens of Gila County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Professional Services
Contract No. 071014-2 to extend the contract with BPAG for a four (4) year term from
November 18, 2016, to November 17, 2020 with a contract amount not to
exceed $75,000.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2 with the Bose Public Affairs
Group to provide consulting and lobbying services for Gila County at the federal
government level in a not to exceed amount of $75,000 for the period November 17,
2016, to November 18, 2020.

Attachments
Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2 with Bose Public Affairs Group
Amendment No. 1 



Contract No. 103114-Bose Public Affairs Group



























   
ARF-4076     Consent Agenda Item      5. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Submitted By: Marian

Sheppard,
Clerk of the
Board

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Industrial Development Authority Board of
Directors-Reappointments

Background Information
The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona (IDA),
is comprised of 9 members.  Each Supervisor recommends to the Board of
Supervisors the names of three members who they would like to represent
their specific Supervisorial District on the IDA Board, and the Board of
Supervisors then votes on the appointment(s).  The terms of office for IDA
members is six years.

Stanley Gibson represents Supervisorial District Two, and his term of
office ended on January 19, 2016; however, he has continued to serve on
that Board.  Due to an oversight, notification was not provided to the
Board of Supervisors that Mr. Gibson agreed to serve another term of
office.

On April 7, 2015, the Board of Supervisors appointed Trena Grantham to
the IDA Board of Directors representing Supervisorial District Three to fill
Gerry Kohlbeck's unexpired term of office through December 31, 2016. 

Evaluation
Mr. Gibson and Ms. Grantham have expressed a desire to continue
serving on the IDA Board of Directors for another six-year term of office.

Conclusion
Supervisor Pastor recommends Mr. Gibson's reappointment to the IDA



Supervisor Pastor recommends Mr. Gibson's reappointment to the IDA
Board of Directors retroactive to January 20, 2016, through December
31, 2021.  A one-time adjustment is being made to Mr. Gibson's term of
office so that his term will always end on December 31st.

Supervisor Marcanti recommends Ms. Grantham's reappointment to the
IDA Board of Directors for the term beginning January 1, 2017, through
December 31, 2022.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors reappoint Mr. Gibson
and Ms. Grantham to the IDA Board of Directors.

Suggested Motion
Approval to reappoint Stanley Gibson to the Gila County Industrial
Development Authority Board of Directors for another six-year term
retroactive from January 20, 2016 to December 31, 2021 (with a one-time
adjustment to the term of office); and, approval to reappoint Trena
Grantham to said Board for the term beginning January 1, 2017, through
December 31, 2022.

Attachments
IDA Board of Directors List



 

 

GILA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(Proposed to the BOS on 12/6/16) 

 

Name of 
Member & 

Appointment 
Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Tim Grier D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

B (08/19/13) 
Scott Flake 

- 08/19/13-07/15/19 When term ends, need 
to adjust terms of office 
for all members so they 
are staggered and end 
on 12/31. 

Cliff Potts D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

A (06/07/11) - 06/07/11-06/06/17  

James Feezor D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

B (07/16/13) 
Ray Pugel 

- 07/16/13-06/06/17  

Robert Pastor D (Supv.  Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

A (07/16/13) - 07/16/13-07/15/19  

Stanley Gibson D (Supv.  Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

C (12/06/16) 2 years, 6 months 01/20/16-12/31/21 01/20/16-12/31/21* 

Tim Humphrey  D (Supv.  Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

A (07/16/13) - 07/16/13-07/15/19  

Trena  
Grantham 

D (Supv. Dist. 3) C (12/06/16) 1 year, 8 months 01/01/17-12/31/22 01/01/17-12/31/22 

William A. (Bill) 
Bennett 

D (Supv.  Dist. 3 
recommendation) 

B (04/07/15) 
William Byrne 

- 04/07/15-12/31/19  

Fred Barcon D (Supv.  Dist. 3 
recommendation) 

C (07/16/13) 18 years  07/16/13-07/15/19  

                       * A one-time adjustment has been made to this term of office so that it will expire on December 31st. 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation: August 7, 1972  
B. Regulated by A.R.S. §35-701 through 35-761, and the IDA’s Articles of Incorporation dated August 7, 1972. 
C. Governing Board members:  A nine member board which is appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  
D. Terms of Office:  Members are appointed to six-year terms of office.  The initial governing board was broken into 3 groups of 3 so that the terms of office would be two years apart for 

each group, per A.R.S. §35-705.    
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 



A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



   
ARF-4062     Consent Agenda Item      5. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

October 2016

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for October 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk's Report for October 2016



















   
ARF-4071     Consent Agenda Item      5. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

Financial and statistical reports for October 2016

Submitted By: Dorothy Little,
Justice of the
Peace-Payson
Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for October
2016

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
October 2016 reports













   
ARF-4055     Consent Agenda Item      5. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office October 2016
Monthly Report

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for October 2016

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2016 activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable's Office

Attachments
October 2016





















































   
ARF-4057     Consent Agenda Item      5. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for October 2016

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for October
2016

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly report for October 2016









   
ARF-4073     Consent Agenda Item      5. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 15, 2016, November 22, 2016, & November
29, 2016

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk of the
Board 

Information
Subject
November 15, 2016, November 22, 2016, and November 29, 2016, Board
of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the November 15, 2016, November 22, 2016, and November
29, 2016 Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
11-29-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
11-22-06 BOS Meeting Minutes
11-15-06 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 6 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 29, 2016 

 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Clerk of the Board 

 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; Bradley 

Beauchamp, Gila County Attorney; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County 
Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; and, Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board.  
 

GUESTS:  Tim Humphrey, Supervisor-elect for Supervisorial District 2, and 
Woody Cline, Supervisor-elect for Supervisorial District 3. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  James Menlove led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

A. Information/Discussion regarding the powers and duties, financial 
responsibilities, personnel requirements, open meeting law restrictions, 

and decision making process of the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
Chairman Pastor read aloud this agenda item and called on Vice-Chairman 

Martin to give her comments.  Vice-Chairman Martin expressed her pleasure in 
having the newly elected Supervisors present – Tim Humphrey, Supervisor-

elect for Supervisorial District 2, and Woody Cline, Supervisor- elect for 
Supervisorial District 3.  Vice-Chairman Martin commented that she, too, was 
looking forward to the Board of Supervisors’ (BOS) orientation. 

 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, advised that the information compiled for 
today’s meeting is primarily for the newly elected Supervisors.  He added that 

the BOS orientation will be presented in 3 segments; today, on December 6th 



Page 2 of 6 

 

during the BOS Regular Meeting, and on December 13th during the BOS 
Special Meeting.   

 
Chairman Pastor advised that he met with Supervisor-elect Cline a couple 

times during the past two weeks and once with Supervisor-elect Humphrey to 
share some information with regard to the role and duties of a County 
Supervisor.  When Chairman Pastor was first elected, he wished he had a Gila 

County organizational chart with pictures of department heads and elected 
officials along with their phone numbers, similar to the chart provided by the 
Arizona County Supervisors Association.  He added that when he was newly 

elected 12 years ago, the County was undergoing major changes with regard to 
the management of County roads.  At that time each Supervisor managed road 

maintenance and repairs for those roads located within their Supervisorial 
District.  It was later learned that there was a great amount of liability on the 
Supervisors, so all functions pertaining to road maintenance/repairs were 

consolidated into the Gila County Roads Department under the Public Works 
Division.  Supervisor Marcanti commented that when he was newly elected he 

already had government experience serving on the Globe City Council and 
other boards at which time he received a book that explained parliamentary 
procedure, laws, etc.  He stated at that time he had responsibility for a budget 

of $3M, so undertaking the responsibility for the County’s budget of $96M was 
“a lot to grasp.”  He also mentioned the problems in having County roads under 
each Supervisor.  Chairman Pastor talked about the importance of following 

the Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) and suggested that the best approach for 
the new Supervisors would be to rely on staff.  He added that the County 

Manager works directly for the BOS and stated, “He is probably the key 
component to the whole system.  Make sure to follow a process in order for him 
to run the County for you.  Our responsibility as Supervisors is policy.”  Vice-

Chairman Martin commented she wished she would have known the other 
boards, commissions, and committees that the Supervisors would be required 
to act as governing board members.  She cautioned the newly elected 

Supervisors to not take action immediately on the old stories or issues that will 
be coming from individuals who are disgruntled, but rather to talk to staff in 

order to gather all of the facts before taking on a matter.  She reiterated that 
the County Manager works for the BOS, and added that “everyone else works 
for the County Manager or an elected official.”   She cautioned the newly 

elected Supervisors that the only person they can fire individually is their 
administrative assistant, and that it takes a majority vote of the BOS to fire the 

County Manager.  Chairman Pastor said that he has always relied on the 
County attorneys for good advice.   
 

Mr. McDaniel proceeded to review the statutes that directly apply to counties 
and the BOS, which is located in Title 11 of the A.R.S.   
 

Chairman Pastor recessed the meeting at 11:20 a.m. and reconvened the 
meeting at 11:46 a.m. for a quick lunch break.  Jacque Sanders, Assistant 



Page 3 of 6 

 

County Manager/Librarian, provided an overview of the content of the Gila 
County website and demonstrated the various links to information.  Vice-

Chairman Martin briefly talked about the County’s Open Outdoor Fire 
Ordinance.  Supervisors-elect Humphrey and Cline entered into a question and 

answer period with Board members regarding the Gila County Road Blading 
Schedule that is located on the website, especially with regard to the process 
for grading roads whenever there is a major weather event.  Ms. Sanders read 

aloud the disclaimer statement on the Road Blading Schedule, which states 
that in those types of situations, adjustments will be made to the Schedule.  
Supervisor-elect Cline asked for clarification on the type of maintenance 

provided on Forest Service roads, which was done.   
 

Mr. McDaniel proceeded to review management’s role and responsibilities and 
he stated that the BOS is the elected authority to represent the people and 
provide the services they need and which the BOS is authorized to provide.  He 

stated that the role of the County Manager is to implement the policies set by 
the BOS; carry out the Board’s directive; and, to manage and control County 

staff.  He stated, “You are the CEOs (Chief Executive Officers) to a $94M 
enterprise; $49M is General Fund dollars.”  He advised that with the County 
having 600 employees and all of the related day-to-day operations, the key is 

for management to know and understand the policies of the BOS.  He 
commented that one of the Leadership Principles of the County is that staff will 
follow County policy, which is the reason that staff is integrally involved in all 

processes and department heads attend all regular meetings of the BOS.  Mr. 
McDaniel briefly covered the Arizona Open Meeting Law as it relates to 

communication amongst Board members. Supervisor-elect Cline stated, “From 
my standpoint, we are only as strong as a board.  We are stronger as a county, 
not just north and south.”  Supervisor-elect Humphrey inquired about the 

status of recruiting a new County Manager since Mr. McDaniel has submitted 
his resignation letter notifying the BOS of his intention to retire.  Mr. McDaniel 
commented that it was his intent to submit his resignation letter while the 

existing Board was in place in order to rely on their experience in recruiting a 
new County Manager, and to involve the newly elected Supervisors in the 

hiring process.  He advised that hiring a new County Manager will be the 
number one priority at the beginning of the new year.  He explained that the 
BOS orientation was being provided at this time because he feels that it is even 

more important for the newly elected Supervisors to have an understanding of 
County government.  Mr. McDaniel stated that his retirement letter includes an 

offer to continue working to help transition in the new County Manager.  Vice-
Chairman Martin complimented Mr. McDaniel on the good working 
relationship he has developed with other elected officials of the County, which 

she said was not good in prior years.  She mentioned that Mr. McDaniel had 
previously stated that he would like to retire from the County not later than 
March 2017.  Chairman Pastor also complimented Mr. McDaniel on his many 

accomplishments, which include improving the morale of County employees 
and improving the reputation of Gila County as he believes that Gila County is 



Page 4 of 6 

 

known as one of the more efficient running counties in Arizona.  Mr. McDaniel 
advised that all positions in Gila County government have a job description, 

which is very detailed regarding the work to be done; however, he 
recommended that the BOS concentrate more on the type of behaviors that it 

wants from the new County Manager to decide what is important.  He added, 
“For the record, I’m at a point in my life and career where I’ve done just about 
all I can do.  I think the County deserves more and better, and that somebody 

new here can take it to the next level.  What I’m concerned about is losing 
some ground that we’ve built because we’ve come a long way in 6 to 7 years in 
some key areas with regard to how the place is run that made a difference and 

I just hope that those key factors are held…” 
 

Mr. McDaniel referred to tab number 4 of the BOS Orientation Binder, which 
was the Gila County Strategic Plan and proceeded to review it.  He advised that 
when the Strategic Plan was developed, it involved all elected officials, 

department heads with the BOS, and a facilitator was hired to help with the 
process.  He recommended that the new BOS engage in writing an amendment 

to the Strategic Plan or develop a new one.  He reviewed the County’s financial 
sustainability and advised that when he joined the County in 2000, it was 
probably the most financially sound county in Arizona.  He gave all of the 

credit to John Nelson, who was the former Finance Director and Deputy 
County Manager.  He cautioned the new BOS to have the controls in place to 
manage the resources so they don’t dwindle.  He stated, “Every budget (cycle), 

we have always reduced the amount of (employee) FTE (full-time equivalency), 
so we can continue to provide them with salaries and benefits they need to be 

productive workers here.  Supervisor-elect Cline expressed a concern for some 
County employees that receive a low salary and questioned if there are 
processes in place to address and possibly adjust certain salaries.  Mr. 

McDaniel stated that beginning in 2012, the County implemented a two-stage 
employee performance appraisal process whereby salary raises have been given 
twice yearly; the first increase was given at a certain percentage of the 

employee’s salary based on the employee’s performance rating, and the second 
increase was given six months later based on the Consumer Price Index for a 

cost of living adjustment.  He proceeded to provide information on the process 
for the Compensation and Classification Study that was conducted in 2014.  
He stated, “If you agree as a board that there are still employees who are below 

a manageable wage, I would recommend getting a consultant in to evaluate 
that, but I don’t recommend doing a new study.”   

 
Mr. McDaniel called on James Menlove, Finance Director, to present the 
annual budget process, which was done.  The process for the BOS to select 

yearly capital improvement projects was also reviewed.  Supervisors-elect 
Humphrey and Cline both requested a more detailed explanation of the 
County’s rainy day (reserve) fund, which was done. 

 



Page 5 of 6 

 

Chairman Pastor recessed the meeting at 1:42 p.m. for a short break and 
reconvened the meeting at 1:55 p.m. 

 
Mr. McDaniel called upon Shelley McPherson, Human Resources Director, to 

explain the County’s Authorized Position List, recruiting and hire process, and 
Merit System Rules and Policies, which was done.  Supervisor-elect Humphrey 
requested a more detailed explanation of the Compensation and Classification 

Plan study results and he inquired if another study needed to be done.  Ms. 
McPherson explained that the Plan is continually being reviewed and 
adjustments to pay ranges are made at various times based on an algorithm 

tool.  Mr. McDaniel advised that the most recent adjustment to pay grades was 
done in 2014.  Vice-Chairman Martin added that the Compensation and 

Classification Plan was implemented two years ago; however, she added that it 
was “on the heels of what was done more than 10 years ago.” 
 

Mr. McDaniel reviewed the various types of management meetings that take 
place.  County leadership meetings are held on a quarterly basis whereby 

elected officials and department heads are invited; the County Manager meets 
monthly with officials of the judicial system, the County Manager meets 
monthly with the Assessor, Recorder, Treasurer and School Superintendent; 

the County Manager meets monthly with the Management Team, which is 
comprised of department heads; and, he meets every two weeks with the 
Administrative Team which consists of the Deputy County Manager, Assistant 

County Manager, Finance Director and Human Resources Director. 
 

In ending the presentation, Ms. Sanders requested that the Supervisors and 
Supervisors-elect bring their BOS Orientation Binder to the December 6th 
meeting at which time additional written materials will be provided. 

 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to 
allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within the 

jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss items 
that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to 

Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the 
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may respond to 
criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to review 

a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for further 
discussion and decision at a future date.  

 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 

Item 4 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on information presented.  
 



Page 6 of 6 

 

Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events. 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:43 p.m.  
 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 2 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 22, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline  
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                      
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian 
E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and, Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a special session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Adam Shepherd led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results 
contained in the Official Canvass of the General Election held November 
8, 2016, in Gila County, Arizona and declare the results official.   
 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, provided the Official Canvass of the 
November 8, 2016, General Election Results booklets to the Board members 
and briefly reviewed the summary sections in said booklet.  He commented that 
in the State of Arizona, Yavapai County had the highest voter turnout with 
84.47% and Gila County had the second highest voter turnout at 77.63%.  He 
stated that there were no major issues with the election process at the precinct 
locations, and that the new voting equipment functioned well.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously canvassed the election results contained in the Official Canvass 
of the General Election held November 8, 2016, in Gila County, Arizona and 
declared the results official.   
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 



Page 2 of 2 
 

within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open 
call to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may 
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may 
ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future 
agenda for further discussion and decision at a future date. 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 4 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.  
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.  The County 
Manager did not provide any comments. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:11 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 



Page 1 of 7 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 15, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; Jefferson 
R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian E. 
Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and, Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jeff Dalton led the Pledge 
of Allegiance and Father Arnold Aurillo of the Holy Angels Catholic Church in 
Globe delivered the invocation. 
 
Chairman Pastor advised that he received two requests from the public to 
speak to the Board.  He stated that he would give the citizens the opportunity 
to address the Board at this time via a call to the public.   
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to 
allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within the 
jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss items 
that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to 
Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the 
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may respond to 
criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to review 
a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for further 
discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
Laurie Hilliard of Community Bridges provided information and an open 
invitation to an event to be held at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, November 16, 
2016; and stated that this would be a good opportunity for the community to 
come together at Miami High School Auditorium for a town hall event entitled, 
“Call for Action” regarding opioid abuse awareness and prevention.   



Page 2 of 7 
 

George Stetson of Strawberry, Arizona asked the Board to consider his request 
to stop paying taxes to and to be eliminated or excluded from the Pine-
Strawberry Water Improvement District (District) boundary.  He stated that the 
property owners in the area adjacent to Fossil Creek have private wells because 
there is no main water line in the area.  He added that all of the neighboring 
property owners have signed a petition to become independent from the 
District’s boundary.   
 
Chairman Pastor advised that under the Call to the Public agenda item, the 
Board is not allowed to make decisions; however, he would direct staff to 
provide Mr. Stetson with additional information on the Board’s level of 
authority with regard to special taxing districts. 
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that he would follow up with Mr. 
Stetson and commented that the District’s Board of Directors will need to be 
heavily involved in this issue because the Board of Supervisors has limited 
involvement.  He offered to seek help from the District’s Board of Directors to 
resolve this issue. 
 
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-16-05, a liquor 
license application submitted by James Martin Escobar for a new Series 
No 12 Restaurant License at the Mi Familia Mexican Food 3 restaurant 
located in Pine.   
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that there is an internal review 
process for all liquor license applications submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors.  She stated that the Planning and Zoning Department, Health 
Department, and Treasurer’s Office have reviewed the application and have 
verified that there are no pending issues with regard to their 
departments/office.  Ms. Sheppard hasn’t received any written objections to 
this application; therefore, she recommended proceeding with the public 
hearing.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no comments were 
received; therefore, he closed the public hearing.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
adopted Order No. LL-16-05.  The Board’s recommendation for approval will be 
sent to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for final review 
and approval. 
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature 
on the CenturyLink Quote and Managed Services Agreement for 
Implementation of Next Generation 9-1-1 technology.  
 



Page 3 of 7 
 

Debra Williams, 9-1-1 Coordinator, stated that the above stated agreement 
essentially defines how CenturyLink is going to update the 9-1-1 technology 
from analog to digital for the County.  It also defines the components and who 
is responsible for the maintenance.  The Managed Services Agreement for 
Implementation of Next Generation 9-1-1 technology defines the cost 
of installation of the hardware needed to support digital 9-1-1 and to provide 
maintenance for a 5-year period.  "Managed Services" means a change in the 
way the costs of the 9-1-1 network are recovered by CenturyLink.  Under the 
analog system all costs related to support of the network are billed 
individually.  "Managed Services" combines these costs and bills per 9-1-1 
workstation or seat.  The Gila County Sheriff's Office has three 9-1-1 seats. 
  
The Arizona Department of Administration 9-1-1 Program office currently 
provides financial support of the County 9-1-1 network via the Arizona State 9-
1-1 fee charged to customers by telephone companies.  Annually, State 9-1-1 
personnel develop the budget and manage the funds approved by the Arizona 
Legislature.  Should this funding become unavailable during the agreement 
period, the County has the option to cancel the CenturyLink agreement, or pay 
the remainder of the agreement from the County budget. Ms. Williams added 
that she will be responsible to authorize payments to CenturyLink.  The 
funding for this agreement has been approved by the Arizona Department of 
Administration 9-1-1 Program office for a five-year term effective from the start 
of service date as determined by the agreement and in the amount of 
approximately $370,000.  The Board held a clarifying discussion with Ms. 
Williams and Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer (via ITV), regarding the 
execution of the agreement, Finance Department involvement, and the monthly 
cost to the County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the Chairman's 
signature on the CenturyLink Quote and Managed Services Agreement for 
Implementation of Next Generation 9-1-1 technology. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all responses received for 
Request for Qualifications No. 061916 - Pre-Design (Phase 1) - Site 
Development Alternatives for the Payson Courthouse Complex; award to 
the most qualified respondent; and authorize the Chairman's signature on 
the award contract for a contract amount of $71,940 with project 
completion no later than 120 days from the Notice to Proceed date.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, stated that on July 26, 2016, 
the Board of Supervisors authorized the advertisement of Request for 
Qualification (RFQ) No. 061916 - Pre-Design (Phase 1) - Site Development 
Alternatives for the Payson Courthouse Complex.  The RFQ was advertised in 
the Arizona Silver Belt on August 3, 2016, and August 10, 2016, with a bid due 
date of August 19, 2016.  A mandatory pre-proposal walk-through was held on 
August 10, 2016, at 9:30 a.m. Twelve contractors attended the walk-through 
and were qualified; and, five proposals were received.  Staff ranked the 



Page 4 of 7 
 

proposals and Woodson Engineering & Surveying ranked the highest.  The 
Payson Courthouse Complex is in need of site improvements to address both 
existing and future pedestrian and vehicular traffic usage.  The services to be 
provided by Woodson Engineering & Surveying will play a critical role in 
helping Gila County to identify the best utilization of the site and associated 
costs of potential improvements; and, the services of an architect will be 
provided.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously awarded a contract for Request for 
Qualifications No. 061916 - Pre-Design (Phase 1) - Site Development 
Alternatives for the Payson Courthouse Complex to Woodson Engineering & 
Surveying, and authorized the Chairman's signature on the award contract. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with Navajo County for the repair of a portion of Route 12 
within Gila County.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that approval of this Intergovernmental Agreement with 
Navajo County will allow road work to be done by Navajo County on Route 12 
in Gila County.  Route 12 provides the primary access to the community of 
Cibecue.  Navajo County is funding this road work; therefore, it will be done at 
no cost to Gila County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with Navajo County for the repair of a portion of Route 12 within 
Gila County.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider an offer to purchase 
Assessor's parcel number 301-24-144F located in Pine and, if approved, 
authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that this item for Board consideration is a written offer 
from Patrick and Debora Cottrell to purchase Assessor’s parcel number 301-
24-144F, which was deeded to the State of Arizona in care of the Board of 
Supervisors by the County Treasurer in 2016.  The property is located in Pine 
and it is within the Cottrell’s fenced back yard.  Mr. McDaniel advised that the 
Board may consider accepting the Cottrell’s offer of $50 to purchase the 
property because the Cottrells are owners of contiguous real property and the 
conditions for purchase apply according to the Arizona Revised Statutes.  Staff 
recommended that the Board sell this parcel to the Cottrells.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board accepted 
an offer of $50 from Mr. and Mrs. Cottrell for the purchase of Assessor's parcel 
number 301-24-144F, and authorized the Chairman's signature on the Quit 
Claim Deed.   
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 



Page 5 of 7 
 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Adoption of revised Resolution No. 16-10-01, a 25-year franchise 
granted to Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc., to add language to 
the resolution (section numbers 15-17) that is required in all contracts.  
(A copy of the Resolution is attached to the minutes and permanently on file in 
the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Approval of FY 2017 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG 
No. 2017-004 between the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Arizona 
Attorney General's Office in the amount of $33,900 to cover the existing 
salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate, with no 
cash match funds required, for the period July 1, 2016, through June 30, 
2017.  
 
C.  Approval of the following individuals to serve as Justices of the Peace 
Pro Tempore for the respective justice courts with all terms expiring on 
December 31, 2017:   Globe Regional Justice Court - Rebecca Baeza, Ron 
McDaniel, Don Calendar, Paul Larkin, Paul Julien and Gary Scales; and, 
Payson Regional Justice Court - John Perlman, Paul Larkin, Ron 
McDaniel, Jerri Antunes, Paul Julien and Gary Scales.  
 
D.  Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 
040815 between the Superior Court in Gila County and Raymond Geiser 
to increase the contract amount by $3,488.16 for an amended contract 
amount of $139,131.16 to cover the 5% increase received by attorneys in 
Fiscal Year 2015.  
 
E.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADHS17-133182) between the Arizona Department of Health 
Services and the Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division 
to accept an increase in the contract amount by $55,870 to provide 
continued Public Health Emergency Preparedness services and Zika Virus 
community outreach, public education, and mosquito surveillance 
programs.  
 
F.  Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. 071816 between Gila 
County and the Town of Hayden whereby, upon request from the Town of 
Hayden, the County will provide various types of equipment and/or 
services on occasion and when available for safety needs and/or various 
activities and events by the Town of Hayden beginning July 1, 2016, 
through June 30, 2017.  
 



Page 6 of 7 
 

G.  Approval to reappoint Walter Del Campo to the Gila County Building 
Safety Advisory and Appeals Board for another 4-year term of office 
beginning January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2020.  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of the September 2016 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
I.  Acknowledgment of the September 2016 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
J.  Acknowledgement of the October 2016 monthly departmental activity 
report submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
K.  Approval of the October 25, 2016, and November 1, 2016, Board of 
Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
L.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of October 17, 2016 
through October 21, 2016; October 24, 2016 through October 28, 2016.  
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public at this time.  
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  
 
At 10:40 a.m. upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously voted to go into executive session. 
 



Page 7 of 7 
 

Item 7 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of Supervisors may 
vote to go into executive session on one or all of the items listed in this 
section.  No action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.)  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session to 
receive legal advice from its attorney regarding the lawsuit of Strawberry 
Ridge Estates LLC v. Gila County, 1 CA-TX-14-0004; consider its position 
in the lawsuit; and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. 
§ 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).  If the Board does go into executive session, the 
County Attorney’s Office suggests that after the Regular Meeting has been 
reconvened, the Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to 
proceed as directed in executive session. 
 
At 11:35 a.m., Chairman Pastor reconvened the regular session and asked for a 
motion from the Board regarding the executive session agenda item.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously instructed the County Attorney’s Office to proceed as directed in 
executive session. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:36 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-3897     Consent Agenda Item      5. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

11/01/16, 11/08/16, 11/15/16, 11/22/16, and
11/29/16

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of November 1, 2016, November
8, 2016, November 15, 2016, November 22, 2016, and November 29, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of
November 1, 2016, November 8, 2016, November 15, 2016, November 22,
2016, and November 29, 2016.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
11/01/16 Human Resources Report
11/08/16 Human Resources Report
11/15/16 Human Resources Report
11/22/16 Human Resources Report
11/29/16 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐16 Feb‐16 Mar‐16 Apr‐16 May‐16 Jun‐16 Jul‐16 Aug‐16 Sep‐16 Oct‐16 Nov‐16 Dec‐16

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 135 11 10 19 9 19 10 16 14 6 8 13

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 102 8 5 17 5 13 6 9 17 7 10 5

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 15 1 4 1 0 3 3 1 1 0 0 1

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 60 5 1 5 5 0 13 7 9 7 3 5

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 99 6 8 8 9 9 6 8 9 13 4 19

OTHER ACTIONS 70 5 1 4 1 3 14 8 11 11 7 5

REQUEST TO POST 104 7 7 11 6 13 13 13 10 9 8 7

  Total Transactions 585 43 36 65 35 60 65 62 71 53 40 55 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 1, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Michael Burdess – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 10/24/16 – General Fund – DOH 04/04/16 
2. Michael Halbert II  - Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 11/04/16 – Rabies 

Control Fund – DOH 08/22/16 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Felicia Smith – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 11/07/16 – General Fund – Replacing Stephanie 
Szpotowski  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Amy Loyd – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 11/09/16 – General Fund 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

5. Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – Vacated by Michael Halbert II 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 8, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Lucinda Campbell – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 12/30/16 – Health 
Service(.95)/Family Planning(.05) Funds – DOH 11/13/06 

2. Jessica Lopez – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 11/10/16 – General Fund – DOH 03/09/15 
3. Barbara Guthrey – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 2 – 11/18/16 – General Fund – DOH 

09/16/83 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Ragnheidur McCormack – Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk – 11/14/16 – General Fund – 
Replacing Ginger Dunning 

5. Christine Lopez – School Superintendent’s Office – Administrative Assistant – 11/14/16 – General Fund 
– Replacing Christie Jung 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

6. Donna Krah – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 10/26/16 – General(.50)/Adult Probation Service 
Fees(.50) Funds 

7. Sharon Listiak – Health and Emergency Services – PHEP Assistant – 11/01/16 – Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness Fund 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

8. Sheriff’s Office – Nurse – Vacated by Michael Burdess 
9. Assessor’s Office – Provisional Appraiser – Vacated by Jessica Lopez 
10. Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – Vacated by Barbara Guthrey 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 15, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Jared Peden – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/03/16 – General Fund – DOH 05/02/16 
2. Vincent Hillard – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/04/16 – General Fund – DOH 08/10/15 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Guy Peterson – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/21/16 – General Fund – Replacing Johnie 
Brake 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Christine Elmer – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 11/30/16 – Public Works Fund 
5. Valerie Pizano – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 09/08/16 – General Fund 
6. Kristin Chism – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 11/23/16 – General Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

7. Dorothy Little – Payson Justice Court – Justice of the Peace – 12/26/16 – General Fund – Salary 
adjusted per ARS §22-125 

8. Jesse Bolinger – Globe Justice Court – Justice of the Peace – 12/26/16 – General Fund – Salary adjusted 
per ARS §22-125 

9. Lucinda Campbell – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 11/14/16 – From Health 
Service (.95)/Family Planning (.05) Funds – To Health Service (.85)/Family Planning (.15) Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Melissa Kennedy – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 11/27/16 – General Fund – DOH 07/05/11 
2. Laurie Kline – Clerk of Board – Deputy Clerk of Board – 12/02/16 – General Fund – DOH 02/22/11 
3. Brian Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 11/14/16 – General Fund – DOH 06/27/83 
4. Heather Boyer – Probation – Probation Manager – 12/16/16 – Various Funds – DOH 12/02/96 
5. Ginger Chester – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 11/18/16 – Diversion Intake (.50)/Juvenile 

Standards (.50) Funds – DOH 08/15/16 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

6. Monica Boyce – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 11/28/16 – Diversion Intake (.50)/Juvenile 
Standards (.50) Funds – Replacing Ginger Chester 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

7. Manuel Rodriguez – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 11/21/16 – General Fund – 
Replacing Destinee Barajas 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

8. Ridge Halenar – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/14/16 – General Fund  
9. Danny White – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/14/16 – General Fund 
10. Patricia Valenzuela – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 11/30/16 – Public Works Funds  
11. James Bonnie – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/14/16 – General Fund 
12. Matthew Binney – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/24/16 – General Fund  
13. Eliana Cabrera – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 12/21/16 – General Fund 
14. Marylyn Lee – Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk – 12/14/16 – General Fund 
15. Jonica Flores – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/14/16 – General Fund  
16. Walter Wyrick – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 12/06/16 – Facilities Management 

Fund  
17. Duane Dowler – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operations Worker Senior – 12/19/16 – 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund 
18. Benjamin Rowe – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operations Worker Senior – 12/13/16 – 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund 
19. Roy Bruno – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 11/23/16 – General Fund  

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

20. Mark Warden – Public Works – From Building Maintenance Technician Lead – To Construction Project 
Manager – 11/28/16 – Facilities Management Fund – FY17 position 

21. Robert Deck – Probation – From Juvenile Detention Officer – To Surveillance Officer – 11/21/16 – 
From General Fund – To General(.50)/Adult Probation Service Fee(.50) Funds – Replacing Marcos 
Diaz 

22. Betty Hurst – Finance – From Purchasing Agent – To Contracts Administrator – 11/28/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Dana Sgroi 

 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 22, 2016 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

23. Rubin Mays – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/14/16 – General Fund – Extending probationary 
period an additional six months 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

24. Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – Vacated by Mark Warden 
25. Clerk of Board – Deputy Clerk of Board – Vacated by Laurie Kline 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 29, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Gordon Gartner – Sheriff’s Office – Temporary Professional Standards Investigator – 11/16/16 – 
General Fund – DOH 05/23/16 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

2. Terry Phillips – Payson Constable’s Office – Deputy Constable(.48) – 10/04/16 – General Fund 
 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

3. Juliane DeSpain – Probation – From Juvenile Detention Officer – To Administrative Clerk Senior – 
11/28/16 – From General Fund – To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – Replacing Therese 
Berumen 

4. Nicole Weaver – From Public Works – To Finance – From Administrative Clerk Specialist – To 
Accounting Associate – 12/12/16 – From Public Works Fund – To General Fund – Replacing Germain 
Bohrn  

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

5. Celena Cates – Health and Emergency Services – Executive Administrative Assistant – 11/21/16 – From 
Health Service Fund – To Public Health Accreditation Fund – Change in fund codes for twelve months 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

6. Finance – Purchasing Agent – Vacated by Betty Hurst 
 
 



   
ARF-4072     Consent Agenda Item      5. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for Weeks Ending 11-41-16; and 11-11-16.

Submitted For: James Menlove, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 11-04-16; and 11-11-16.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of October 31, 2016 through
November 4, 2016; and, November 7, 2016 through November 11, 2016.

Attachments
Report for County Manager approved contract for Weeks ending
11-04-16 and 11-11-16
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 091514
Professional Services Contract No. 101116 with Diane Montgomery,
PLLC
Avondale Contract No. 13412 with Stanley Security
Service Agreement No. 092716 with Trinity Services Group
Service Agreement No. 110316-1with Mountain Retreat Builders, LLC
Service Agreement No. 110316 with Mountain Retreat Builders, LLC
Service Agreement No. 110716 with Mountain Retreat Builders, LLC
Service Agreement No. 110216-1 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
Service Agreement No. 101816 with Steve Coury Ford
Payson Sheriff's Office-Extended Warranty Plan with Goserco, Inc.
GlobeSheriff's Office-Extended Warranty Plan with Goserco, Inc.



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
October 31, 2016 thru November 04, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

091514 
Superior Environmental 

Solutions, Inc. 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

extend the contract from 
09-17-16 to 09-16-17 

 
$4,800.00 

 
09-17-16 to 09-16-17 

 
11-02-16 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to 
extend the term of the contract from 
September 17, 2016 to September 16, 
2017. Contractor sprays herbicide weed 
eradicator at the Pinal Cemetery to 
substantially reduce the weed population. 
The time and money spent by our 
employees trying to keep weeds under 
control is too costly. 

 
101116 

Diane Montgomery, 
PLLC 

 
Professional Services 

Contract (Legal Services) 

 
$17,000.00 

 

 
11-01-16 to 10-31-17 

 

 
11-02-16 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Gila County Superior Court Utilizes this 
attorney to provide legal services for 
indigent citizens. 

 
Avondale Contract No. 

13412 
Stanley Security 

 

 
Push Button Switch 

Installation 

 
$2,430.00 

 

 
12-31-16 

 
11-02-16 

 
Expires. 

 
This will help receptionist grant access to 
the public and vendors without have to 
get up and swipe a card at the Copper 
Building. 
 

  



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

November 07, 2016 thru November 11, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

092716 
Trinity Services 

 

 
Booking Cubes and Lobby 

Cashiers 

 
$33,150.00 

 

 
10-19-16 to 06-30-17 

 

 
11-09-16 

 
Expires 

In a continued effort to eliminate 
Detention Staff from handling cash: The 
lobby cashiers would allow family and 
friends of inmates to deposit money 
directly into an inmate’s trust account 
without any money exchanging hands 
with detention staff. The booking cubes 
allow arrestees the ability to deposit any 
cash they have on their person into their 
trust accounts without detention staff 
needing to touch it. The card swipes allow 
detention staff the ability to release 
inmates from custody with a pre-loaded 
debit card (containing the balance of their 
trust account) which can be used 
anywhere that accepts debit/credit cards. 
Moving to pre-loaded debit cards 
prevents detention staff from having to 
issue paper checks to released inmates 
which can be forged or altered. 

 
110316-1 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders, LLC 

 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10768 

 
$11,150.00 

 

 
11-09-16 to 06-30-17 

 
11-09-16 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this contract is, but not 
limited weather-strip doors, replace 
glass, air seal windows, repair wood 
siding, seal fire place, air seal ductwork, 
insulate floor. 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

110316 
Mountain Retreat 

Builders LLC 

 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10791 

 
$11,850.00 

 

 
11-09-16 to 06-30-17 

 

 
11-09-16 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this contract is, but not 
limited to replace refrigerator, install new 
furnace, remove all coolers, and window 
a/c units, insulate, seal furnace cabinet, 
seal cabinet, caulk house as needed. 

 
110716 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders LLC 

 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10179 

 
$10,850.00 

 

 
11-09-16 to 06-30-17 

 

 
11-09-16 

 
Expires 

The purpose of this contract is, but not 
limited to replace refrigerator, install 2 
ton gas pack system, upgrade electric, 
repair belly pan insulation, general 
window repairs, remove evaporative 
cooler and vent free heater. 

  



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

November 07, 2016 thru November 11, 2016 

 
110216-1 
Rodriguez 

Constructions, Inc. 

 

 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10775 

 
$10,550.00 

 

 
11-09-16 to 06-30-17 

 
11-09-16 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this Weatherization 
contract is but not limited to, install 
furnace system complete with ductwork 
etc., repair water heater flue, caulk house 
complete, blow fiberglass open attic. 
 

 
101816 

Steve Coury Ford 

 

 
Program & Replace 

Throttle Body, and Wiring 
for Fleet Vehicle 

 
$1,165.16 

 

 
12-16-17 

 
11-09-16 

 
Expires 

Diagnostic, Program & Replace Throttle 
Body and wiring repair, due to rodent 
damage. Only one quote as vehicle is 
disabled, and currently at service location 
and unable to be towed. 
 

 
Goserco, Inc. 

 

 
Extended Warranty Plan 

for Voice Logging 
Recorder-Payson 

 
$4,465.21 

 

 
01-01-16 to 12-31-17 

 
11-09-16 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Extended Warranty Plan for Voice 
Logging Recorder for the Gila County 
Sheriff’s Office/Jail Control Center in 
Payson, AZ. 
 

 
Goserco, Inc. 

 

 
Extended Warranty Plan 

for Voice Logging 
Recorder-Globe 

 
$4,662.19 

 

 
01-01-16 to 12-31-17 

 
11-09-16 

 
Option to Renew 

Extended Warranty Plan for Voice 
Logging Recorder for the Gila County 
Sheriff’s Office/Jail Control Center in 
Globe, AZ. 
 

 

















































































































































































   
ARF-4074     Consent Agenda Item      5. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

Oct. 24-30, 2016; Oct. 31-Nov. 6, 2016; Nov. 7-13,
2016; and, Nov. 14-20, 2016

Submitted For: Amber
Warden,
Accountant
Senior 

Information
Subject
Finance reports/demands/transfers for Oct. 24-30, 2016; Oct. 31-Nov. 6,
2016; Nov. 7-13, 2016; and, Nov. 14-20, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for Oct. 24-30, 2016; Oct.
31-Nov. 6, 2016; Nov. 7-13, 2016; and, Nov. 14-20, 2016.

Attachments
Finance Report 10/24/16 - 10/30/16
Finance Report 10/31/16 - 11/6/16
Finance Report 11/7/16 - 11/13/16
Finance Report 11/14/16 - 11/20/16







































































































































































































































































   

ARF-4075     Executive Session Item      8. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

N/A Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Consideration of Strawberry Ridge Estates LLC. v. Gila County, 1 CA-TX-14-0004. 

Background Information
On May 26, 2015, the Arizona Court of Appeals filed an opinion reversing a prior ruling
of the Arizona Tax Court.  The reversal reinstates the tax appeal of Strawberry Ridge
Estates v. Gila County.

Evaluation
Due to the Court’s reversal which reinstated Strawberry Ridge Estate’s tax appeal, the
Board should vote to go into executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney,
consider its position in the lawsuit, and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant
to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).

Conclusion
Due to the Court’s reversal which reinstated Strawberry Ridge Estate’s tax appeal, the
Board should vote to go into executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney,
consider its position in the lawsuit, and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant
to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).

Recommendation
The County Attorney’s Office recommends that the Board should vote to go into
executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney, consider its position in the
lawsuit, and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.



Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§ 38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) to receive legal advice from the Board of
Supervisors' attorney regarding the lawsuit of Strawberry Ridge Estates LLC v. Gila
County, 1 CA-TX-14-0004; consider its position in the lawsuit; and, after the regular
meeting has been reconvened, move to direct the County Attorney’s Office to proceed
as directed in the executive session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   

ARF-4081     Executive Session Item      8. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted By: Athena
Gooding, Legal
Secretary, Lead

Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2015-2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Sunrun Inc. v. The Arizona Department of Revenue, et. al. TX 2016-001025.

Background Information
The Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors received a summons and
complaint on November 21, 2016 in the matter of Sunrun Inc. v. The Arizona
Department of Revenue, et. al., TX2016-001025.

There are eight other Arizona counties named in this lawsuit. The Arizona Attorney
General's Office has offered to represent the counties' interests in this lawsuit. 
 

Evaluation
The Gila County Board of Supervisors may vote to go into executive session pursuant
to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) or (4) for discussion or consultation for legal advice with its
attorney or attorneys and to consider its position and instruct its attorney or
attorneys regarding its position in pending litigation or in settlement discussions
conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation.

Conclusion
During an executive session the offer of the Arizona Attorney General to represent the
interests of Gila County in this matter may be considered.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office recommends that the board vote to go into executive
session for discussion or consultation with its attorney or attorneys for legal advice
and to consider its position and instruct its attorney or attorneys regarding its position
in Sunrun vs. Arizona Department of Revenue, TX2016-001025. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.



Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding the offer extended by the Arizona
Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County's interests in the matter of Sunrun
Inc. v. Gila County, et. al., TX 2016-001025, and, after the regular meeting has been
reconvened, move to direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the
executive session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments



   

ARF-4084     Work Session Item      9. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/06/2016  

Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr.,
County Manager

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: FY 2016-2017 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January
2017-December
2020

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Newly elected Board of Supervisors Orientation

Background Information
In the November 8, 2016 General Election, Tim Humphrey and Woody Cline were
elected as Gila County Supervisors to Districts 2 and 3 respectively.

Evaluation
County government is relatively complex and highly regulated, hence it is extremely
important for newly elected members to receive a thorough orientation to ensure their
effectiveness in serving the citizens of the County.

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion regarding the powers and duties, financial responsibilities,
personnel requirements, open meeting law restrictions, and decision making process of
the Gila County Board of Supervisors. (Tommie Martin)

Attachments
Part 2 - BOS Orientation
Clerk of the Board Department Presentation



Board of Supervisors Orientation (Part 2) 

 

Regular Meeting of December 6, 2016 

Information/Discussion regarding the powers and duties, financial responsibilities, personnel 

requirements, open meeting law restrictions, and decision making process of the Gila County 

Board of Supervisors. (Tommie Martin) 

 

Discussion/Presentation Outline 

  

A. Open Meeting Law Summary and Public Records Requests Discussion (Jacque) 

 

B. Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Roles and Responsibilities (Marian) 

 

C. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire and Statement Requirements (Shelley & Marian) 

 

D. Overview of the Board’s Agenda Process (AgendaQuick) (Don & Marian) 

 

E. Internal Boards, Commissions and Committees (Don & Marian) 

 

F. External Committees and Organizations in which the Board Members Participate 

(Supervisor Martin) 

 

 Boards, committees and organizations for calendar year 2017:   

  1) Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office   

   Detention Officers & Non-Uniformed Officers;  

  2) Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office   

   Dispatchers;  

  3) Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board;  

  4) Gila County Board of Health;  

  5) Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee;  

  6) Central Arizona Governments Regional Council;  

  7) County Supervisors Association Legislative Policy Committee;  



  8) Eastern Arizona Counties Organization;  

  9) San Carlos Apache Tribe Partnership Steering Committee;  

  10) Coalition of Arizona/New Mexico Counties;  

  11) Gila Community College Allied Health Care Advisory Committee; and,  

  12) Gila Community College Industry and Mining Advisory Board.  

 

 



CLERK OF THE BOARD  
OF SUPERVISORS 



ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES 

• BOS Meeting Calendar 
• BOS Agenda and AgendaQuick™ 
• BOS Meetings 
• Open Meeting Law 
• Countywide Policy Manual 
• Boards, Commissions & Committees 
• Liquor Licenses 
• Franchises 
• State-Owned Land 
 
 

 
 



BOS MEETING CALENDAR 

• Prepares meeting calendar in accordance with 
statutory requirements for budget adoption, 
etc. 

• Calendar is posted on the outside wall of the 
Courthouse and on Board of Supervisors’ web 
page. 



BOS AGENDA AND AGENDAQUICK™ 

• Prepares BOS meeting agenda 

– Ensures that all agenda staff reports and 
attachments are correct and accurate. 

– Agenda review meeting takes place on the 
Tuesday before the BOS meeting (except Work 
Sessions). 

– Finalizes, publishes and posts agenda by noon on 
the Thursday before BOS meeting. 



BOS AGENDA AND AGENDAQUICK™ 

• AgendaQuick™ (AQ) Administrator 

– Establishes AQ users and authority levels. 

– Provides training to AQ users. 

– Installs updates to AQ system. 

– Troubleshoots problems with AQ system. 

– Establishes and maintains the AQ Schedule that 
is located on the Gila County Intranet. 



BOS MEETINGS 

• Assists BOS Chairman, if needed, with 
protocol and flow of meetings. 

• Records meeting and publishes audio to 
County website within 72 hours of meeting. 

• Takes and transcribes meeting minutes. 

• Responsible for BOS approved documents to 
include signage, County seal, recording, 
distribution and records retention. 



OPEN MEETING LAW 

• Ensures that agendas, public notices, minutes, 
ordinances, etc. are created in accordance with 
Arizona Open Meeting Law (OML) requirements. 

• Assists internal customers and boards, 
commissions and committees under the purview 
of the BOS with OML requirements. 

• Preserves the records of all BOS actions in 
accordance with the OML. 

• OML information is located on the front page of 
the County website. 



COUNTYWIDE POLICY MANUAL 

• Gila County has always had policies and procedures – 
some written and unwritten. 

• Purpose – To improve and standardize operations in 
Gila County, which will help establish consistency and 
fairness in the key processes that effect all County 
elected offices and departments. 

• January 2012 – County Manager created the 
Countywide Policy Review Committee to review all 
existing policies and to help develop new policies. 
– 5 members:  County Manager, Deputy County Manager, 

H.R. Director, Finance Director, and Clerk of the Board 



COUNTYWIDE POLICY MANUAL 

• Many eyes review policies before being 
adopted – Policy Review Committee, 
Management Team, BOS Work Session, and 
BOS Regular Meeting. 

• A Policy Manual was created for all BOS-
approved policies and procedures, which is 
maintained by the Clerk of the Board. 

• All BOS-approved policies are listed on the 
BOS web page. 

 

 



BOARDS, COMMISSIONS 
& COMMITTEES 

• There are many boards, commissions and 
committees (BCCs) that are under the purview of 
the BOS. 

• In 2013, the BOS adopted a policy to establish 
uniform appointment and operational guidelines 
for existing or future members of BCCs. 

• In coordination with Staff Liaisons, ensures 
compliance with all of the laws and regulations 
for each BCC. 



BOARDS, COMMISSIONS 
& COMMITTEES 

• Inputs all BCC member changes into 
AgendaQuick™. 

• Responsible for maintaining the BCC Binder. 

• Ensures that signed loyalty oaths are on file in 
the Clerk’s office for each BCC member. 

• In 2017, information on each BCC will be 
provided on the County website. 



LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS 

• Per Arizona Revised Statutes, liquor license 
applications for establishments located within 
unincorporated Gila County are sent to the BOS.  
Certain types of applications must be reviewed by 
County departments and elected offices to ensure all 
County permitting requirements are being met.  

• The BOS is required to issue a “recommendation” for 
approval or disapproval to the Arizona Department of 
Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC).   

• The DLLC has final approval for all liquor license 
applications. 



LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS 

• Processes all liquor license applications to 
ensure posting requirements are met; routes 
application to applicable County departments 
and elected offices; establishes public hearing 
date and presents information to the BOS; 
submits the BOS recommendation to the 
DLLC; and, retains all records in accordance 
with statutory requirements. 



FRANCHISES 

• A.R.S. §40-282 (B) states, “Every applicant for a 
certificate of convenience and necessity from the 
Arizona Corporation Commission must obtain the 
required consent, franchise or permit of the 
proper county, city and county, municipal or other 
public authority.” 

• Franchises are required by the BOS to ensure that 
County rights-of-way are protected. 

• The BOS has an established, formal process for all 
franchise applications to ensure compliance with 
state law.  



FRANCHISES 

• Processes all franchise applications and issues 
a recommendation to the BOS for approval or 
disapproval. 

• Cable franchises are issued for 15 years and 
utility franchises are issued for 25 years. 

 



State-Owned Land 

• Administers the inventory and sales of land 
that has been deeded to the State of Arizona 
c/o BOS. 

• Authorized by the BOS to sell parcels through 
an over-the-counter process for the lien 
amount. 

• Oversees the BOS Annual Property Tax/Sale 
auction of newly deeded parcels. 


	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Presentation by the Southern Gila County Economic Development Corporation
	Att1_SGCEDC Presentation 12-6-16
	 Item 3.A. - Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03, Building Code Ordinance for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona
	Att1_Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03-FINAL
	Approved as to form:

	Att2_Building Code Ordinance No. 2016-03-DRAFT
	Approved as to form:

	Att3_Ordinance Current
	Att4_Ordinance Public Notice
	 Item 4.A. - Board of Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale_Auction for Properties Deeded to the State in 2016
	Att1_101-07-020
	Att2_101-07-127
	Att3_101-07-239
	Att4_101-10-014B
	Att5_101-10-014E
	Att6_201-06-005P
	Att7_205-24-006E
	Att8_206-06-033
	Att9_206-06-056
	Att10_206-06-061
	Att11_206-09-031A
	Att12_206-10-001
	Att13_206-10-068J
	Att14_206-17-024
	Att15_206-19-118
	Att16_206-19-122
	Att17_206-19-194G
	Att18_206-21-027
	Att19_206-21-045B
	Att20_206-21-199
	Att21_206-22-004
	Att22_206-22-060
	Att23_206-22-079
	Att24_206-24-066
	Att25_207-07-051
	Att26_207-15-124
	Att27_207-15-126
	Att28_207-15-128
	Att29_207-15-130
	Att30_207-15-138
	Att31_207-15-223
	Att32_207-17-011
	Att33_207-17-029A
	Att34_207-17-029B
	Att35_207-17-060
	Att36_208-02-055
	Att37_208-03-382
	Att38_208-05-066A
	Att39_208-07-027
	Att40_208-07-028
	Att41_208-07-029
	Att42_208-07-031
	Att43_208-07-033
	Att44_208-07-035
	Att45_208-07-039
	Att46_208-09-035U
	Att47_301-18-085
	Att48_302-36-465
	Att49_304-33-031
	Att50_304-33-032
	Att51_304-33-040
	Att52_304-33-057
	Att53_304-33-444
	Att54_305-10-022B
	Att55_2016 Newspaper Advertisement of 12-6-16 BOS Property Tax Sale
	 Item 4.B. - Contract Award for Major Rehabilitation Project HH_9908
	Att1_Service Agreement No. 110916-1 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
	Att2_Bid Results
	Att3_Affidavit of Publication
	 Item 4.C. - Memorandum of Understanding for the provision of Information Technology support to the Courts Group
	Att1_County and Courts MoU IT Services
	Att2_Exhibit A County and Courts MoU IT Services
	 Item 4.D. - Election of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the Board of Supervisors
	 Item 5.A. - Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out Version with Health Choice Integrated Care, LLC 2016-2017
	Att1_Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Agreement Close-Out Version 2016-2017
	Att2_Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Agreement Close-Out Version 2015-2016
	 Item 5.B. - Amendment No. 14 to Contract No. 700518523 with Arizona Public Service for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program Implementation
	Att1_Amendment No. 14 Contract No. 700518523
	Att2_Amendment No. 13 Contract No. 700518523
	Att3_Amendment No. 12 Contract No. 700518523
	Att4_Amendment No. 11 Contract No. 700518523
	Att5_Amendment No. 10 Contract No. 700518523 
	Att6_Amendment No. 9 Contract No. 700518523
	Att7_Amendment No. 8 Contract No. 700518523
	Att8_Amendment No. 7 Contract No. 700518523
	Att9_Amendment No. 6 Contract No. 700518523
	Att10_Amendment No. 5 Contract No. 700518523
	Att11_Amendment No. 4 Contract No. 70051823
	Att12_Amendment No. 3 Contract No. 700518523
	Att13_Amendment No. 2 Contract No. 700518523
	Att14_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 700518523
	Att15_Weatherization Agreement Changed from Agreement No. 700287483 to Contract No. 700518523
	Att16_Original Agreement GC and APS
	 Item 5.C. - Arizona Companion Animal Spay and Neuter Committee Grant Award
	Att1_Award letter
	Att2_Grant Application
	 Item 5.D. - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 091216 with the Town of Payson
	Att1_IGA No. 091216 - Town of Payson
	 Item 5.E. - Approval of Bose Public Affairs Group Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2
	Att1_Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2 with Bose Public Affairs Group
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 
	Att3_Contract No. 103114-Bose Public Affairs Group
	 Item 5.F. - Reappointments to the Gila County Industrial Development Authority Board of Directors
	Att1_IDA Board of Directors List
	 Item 5.G. - October 2016
	Att1_Clerk's Report for October 2016
	 Item 5.H. - Financial and statistical reports for October 2016
	Att1_October 2016 reports
	Justice Report Oct 2016.pdf
	jp0404 oct 2016

	 Item 5.I. - Payson Regional Constable's Office October 2016 Monthly Report
	Att1_October 2016
	 Item 5.J. - Monthly Report for October 2016
	Att1_Monthly report for October 2016
	 Item 5.K. - November 15, 2016, November 22, 2016, & November 29, 2016
	Att1_11-29-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att2_11-22-06 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att3_11-15-06 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 5.L. - 11_01_16, 11_08_16, 11_15_16, 11_22_16, and 11_29_16
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_11_01_16 Human Resources Report
	Att3_11_08_16 Human Resources Report
	Att4_11_15_16 Human Resources Report
	Att5_11_22_16 Human Resources Report
	Att6_11_29_16 Human Resources Report
	 Item 5.M. - Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 11-41-16_ and 11-11-16.
	Att1_Report for County Manager approved contract for Weeks ending 11-04-16 and 11-11-16
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 091514
	Att3_Professional Services Contract No. 101116 with Diane Montgomery, PLLC
	Att4_Avondale Contract No. 13412 with Stanley Security
	Att5_Service Agreement No. 092716 with Trinity Services Group
	Att6_Service Agreement No. 110316-1with Mountain Retreat Builders, LLC
	Att7_Service Agreement No. 110316 with Mountain Retreat Builders, LLC
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 110716 with Mountain Retreat Builders, LLC
	Att9_Service Agreement No. 110216-1 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 101816 with Steve Coury Ford
	Att11_Payson Sheriff's Office-Extended Warranty Plan with Goserco, Inc.
	Att12_GlobeSheriff's Office-Extended Warranty Plan with Goserco, Inc.
	 Item 5.N. - Oct. 24-30, 2016_ Oct. 31-Nov. 6, 2016_ Nov. 7-13, 2016_ and, Nov. 14-20, 2016
	Att1_Finance Report 10_24_16 - 10_30_16
	Att2_Finance Report 10_31_16 - 11_6_16
	Att3_Finance Report 11_7_16 - 11_13_16
	Att4_Finance Report 11_14_16 - 11_20_16
	 Item 8.A. - Strawberry Ridge Estates LLC. v. Gila County, 1 CA-TX-14-0004.  
	 Item 8.B. - Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter of Sunrun Inc. v. Gila County TX 2016-001025
	 Item 9.A. - Newly Elected Supervisors Orientation
	Att1_Part 2 - BOS Orientation
	Att2_Clerk of the Board Department Presentation

